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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17 - Q

PartI - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

The interim consoiidated financial satements of AgriNurture, Inc, and subsidigries
(collectivelyreferred to as the "Group™) as of and Far the period ended March 31, 2022 and

with comparativefinpures as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2021 - are filed as part of

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

The following Management Discussion and Analysls should be read In conjunction with the
attached interim consclidated financial statemeants of Agrifurture, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
andfor the three months ended March 31, 2022,

Business Overview

Incorporated on 04 February 1997, Agrinurture, Inc. (the "Company” or "ANI") started Its
huziness nperations in the same year a5 an importer, trader and fabricator of post-harvest
agricultural machineries intended to Imprave the productivity as we!l as increase the Income
of Filipino farmers. Formerly known as Mabubay 2000 Enterprises, Inc., ANI was the first to
bring into the Philippine market the Mega-Sun brand of grain dryers and thereafter
established itself as one of the more reliable local supplier and manufacturer of conveyor
systems and other rice mill equiprment.

AN eventually diversified into other various agro-commercial businesses, specifically focusing
onthe export trading of fresh Philippine Carabao Mangoes as its main revenue stream. Since
then, ANI has became one of the Philippines’ top fresh mango exporters to the waorld market.
Mt present, ANT also supplies other home-grown fruits such as banana and pineapple to
customersin Hong Kong, Mainland Chira, the Middle East and to the different European
regions.

Tha fallowing are the recent davelopments regarding its continuous business expansian:

« On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the sharehoiders of the
Farent Company, respectively, have approved the issuance of shares. to Plentex
Philippines, Inc, (Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Farent
Company has agreed to issue the same at a value of P18 per share which is to be paid
through the l=suance of 30,000,000 shares of Plentex Limited.

Plentex is 2 Philippine Corporabion that is developing a substantial large scale agri-
businesscenter In Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex is & subsidiary of Plentex Limited, uniisked
Australian public company In Vicoria, Australia.

Ag ak data of repart, the 6,172 800 shares were subscribed and 2,057,600 shares wers
paid,

« On February 1, 2021, the Group entered into a Memorandum of Agreement ("MOA")
with the Unified Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ("UBTT") and the National Commission on
Indigenous Peoples ("NCIP") to promote indusive agricufturad and economic growth by
pursuing land productivity thro the develogment of rice and corn plantation inBansalan,
Davan del Sur. The Group will imvast in the devalopment, operation and management
of the rice and com plantation while the UBTT will be entitied to an annualroyalty fee
Annual Net Profit sharz in the project. Further, all employmant and labor requiremeants
of the project shall be primarily sourced from the UBTT. NCIF shall monitor and svaluate
commpliance of the parties in the terms and conditions of the MOA, The Group, along with
the project shall develop programs on health, skills devalopment and altemative
lvelihood for the communities, The parties, in collaboration with other national
government agencies shall likewise conduct tree planting activities in at leasttwo
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thousand (2,000} hectares of land.

As at date of report, the parties have complied with the reguirements to fully execute
the agreement, Including but not limited to the Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC),
as indicated by the sswance of a Certification Precondition by the NCIF,

On February 23 2021, Ocean Bochemistry Technology Research, Inc, ("OBTI™) and
Greeneargy Holdings, Inc. {("GHI") have entered inte a subscription agreement for the
lssuance of 37,500 coommon shares of OBTI at par value of P100 per share for a total
aggregate wvalue of #3 750,000, OBT1 is a corporation primacly engaged in
manufacturing and trading, and is 51% ownad by M2000 Imex Company, Inc, (“TMEX")
prior to. GHI's subscription while M2000 Imex Company, Inc, ["IMEX") is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ANI.

A5 at dake of repart, the subscription agreement has heen executed and the foregoing
transaction completed.

On May 12, 2021, the Group received @ Medium Graen Rating from Cicero Shades of
Green for its Green Bond offering. Cicero Shades of Green is a subsidiary of the climate
research institute CICERD. It provides independent, research-based evaluations of
green bond investment frameworks to determine their environmentol strength, Their
Second Opinions are graded Dark Green, Medium Green, Light Green and Brownto offer
invesiors better insight into the environmeptal quality of green bonds.

The Graup has praviously secured the authority to issue long term Green Bonds of up
to 75 milllan eurn with maturity of up to 7 vears, including the issuance of commercial
papers, with terms and conditions to he recommended by management and ta ha
approved by the BOD, The issuance shall fund the agricultural project expansion of the
Group geared towards climate change adaptation and minimized environmental
footprint.

fs at date of report, the Group is completing the documentary requirements and
securing necessary board approval for the incorporation of a8 wholly-owned foreign
subsidiary for the issuance of green bonds.

On May 12, 2021, the Group has entered into a Memarandum of Understanding (MOL)
with the Department of Agriculture (*DA™) and the Authority of Freeport Area of Bataan
(“AFABY). The MOU aims to establish an Agri-Sector Digitalization Program which shall
fave & “general purposs and objective of faciitating the implemeantation and rolling aut
of financial inclusion of all stakeholders in the agricultural sector, particulariy the
unbanked stakeholders such as the country's farmers and fohecfolk, through a
regulated financial technology platform and licensed virtual currency. The diants of
and/or participants in the financal technofogy exchange platform and licensed virtual
currency shall be purely Non-Filipines located outside the Phillppines”.

Under the MOU, the Group undermock to perform the following:

i Favilitate, togather with the DA and AFAR, the implamentation of the 1TANT a-
commerce piatfarm as a financial technolagy (FinTech) ecosystem far the
country'sfarmers and fisharfolks;

i gecure @ license from AFAB for the issuance and use of Agr Token In the
Freeport Area of Bataan ("FAB™), and upon Issuance of said licensa, allow the
issuance of the Agri Token to the participants of the FinTech ecosystem;

i, cause the establishment of a branch of an affiliate bank within FAB upon
approval of the BSP, which shall be the custodian bank for the Agr Token,
ard which shall likewise service the banking needs of the locators within FAE;

iv.  establish and secure a license for an AgriX¥change Commodities and Futures
Trading Center ("AgriXchange™) with AFAB: and

v.  ensure the capability of the AgriXchange to actas a Virtual CurrencyExchange
far the conversion of fiat to virtual currencies and vice versa, in accordance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The MOL also provided that the Group and the Loca! Government Units in FAR, with the
support of the D&, shall develop and establish a food terminal, cold/dry storages, and
|pgistics hub in FAB to boost the country’s food security program. The MOU shall have
immediate effect upon signing by the partles,

As at date of report, the Group is in the process of complying with its obfigations under
Fl
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the MOU, including but not mibked to secunng 2 license from AFABR to use its virtual
CUrrency.

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD agproved to accept the Letter of Intent {LO1)
of VYnesto Capital to finance the expansion project of the Group, Under the LOI,
the Group was ebigible to avail up to USS100,000,000 of leng-term financing. The
financing shall be a long-term oan with interest peqgged at treasury bill plus 3%, After
the acceptance of the LOI, the formal application process shall commence. As at date
of report, the LOT application process is not et completed,

On Fabruary 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of shares of
Binangonan Rural Bank, Inc. (BER3). The subscription is in line with the inclusive growth
thru the establishment of an acricultural ecosystem being envisicned by the Group.
ERE has licensed financial technelogy platforms that can improve the access af Filipino
farmers especially those in the remote area, to the Agrl Agra Micro Financing. As at
date of report, the subscription agreement between the Group and BRE is not yet
compietad, Also, the Group is in the process of securing letter of no obiection from BSP
to transfer to Greenergy Holdings, Tnc,

Un March 20, 020, the Group's 8O0 approved the amendment of the terms and
conditions of the stock rights offering. It shall have the entitlerment ratio of 2.5 1, with
every axisting shareholder of 2.5 shares shall be entitled to 1 stock rights share, with
the offer price of P1 par valua,

On August 19, 2021, the Group's BOD confirmed the authorty to conduct the Stock
Rights Offering of common shares to all eligible sharehelders of the Company at the
entitlement ratlo of 2.5:1 and offer price of PL.00 per share. The number of shares to
e offered shall be 288,000,027,

As zt date of report, the Group s in the process of application of the Stock Rights Offer
of the 288 000,027 commoan shares which shall be listed and traded on the Philippine
Stock Exchange.

2n March 20, 2020, the Group’s BOD approved the amendment in the terms and
conditions of the following issuances and listing of warrants;

a. Issuance and listing of up to 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of the Group’s
employees credit cooperative as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shail have the exercise price of a8 discounted rate of 5% of the
weightad average price of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying comman share upon conversion. Expiry date and other
ralevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the
approval of the SEC.

b. The warrants shall have the exertise price of 2 discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average wvolume of trede 320 davs prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years fromm date of issuance, The retio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent ta 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and other
retevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the
aporoval of the SEC,

c. Issuance and listing of stock warrants in favor of existing stockholders as of
record date as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration. to be
exercised after 5 years fram date of issuance, Existing stockihclders owning 10
common shares as of record date, shall be entitled to 1 warrant. The ratio shall
be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underying common share upon conversion, Record
date, axpiry date and other reevant terms and conditions shall be detarmined
by the BOD.

d. lssuance and listing of stock warrants in favar of current directars as approved
by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shail have the exarcise price af a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted aversge vaolume trade of 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying commaon share upon conversion. Expiry date and other
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refevant terms and conditicns shall be determined by the BOD. Each director
serving at the ime of issuance is entitied te up ta 100,000 warrants.

On October 10, 2020 and Kovember 5, 2021, the Group's BOD and sharehoiders,
respectively, appraoved the amendment/s to the terms and conditions af the
issuance of warrants to sxisting sharehalders to b bundled to the Company’s
Stock Rights Offering. The issuance to shareholders participating in the Stock
Rights Offaring, with every sharehalder availing of three (3) Stock Rights, shall
he ‘entitied to one (1) war@Ant. The ratio shall be one {1] warrant equivalent o
one (1) underlying comimon chare upon conversion. The warrants shall have the
exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the valume weighted average price
of trade fifteen (15) days prior to malurty, to be exerciced after five (5) years
from date of listing.

e. Issuance and listing of 10,000,000 stock warrents In fevor of ANL Foundation as
approved by the BOD on April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weichted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of Issuance, The ratio shall be 1 warrant
eguivakent ta L underlying comman share upan conversian, Expiry date and other
relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, The Issuance and
listing of the warrants shall be for the purpose of generating funds for the
corporate social responsibility programs of the Growp.

On May 5, 2020, the Group has entered into @ Memorandum of Agreement with the
Crepariment of Agriculture ("DA"}). Under the Agreement, the Group shall be an official
program partner-participant of DA's e-KADIWA nl Anl at Kita Program. &s such, the
Group becomes an onling seller of agricultural products,

The DA's e-KADIWA n Anl at Kita Program is a market system which facilitates the
selling of major agricultural goods at reasonably low prices to the consuming public
throuvgh partnership with Local Governmeant Units and the Private Sectors. To further
the services of the KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program, the DA has launched the e-KADIWA,
an online market portal or platform whereby buyers and sellers of agricultural and
fishery products can transact online.

fs at date of repart, the Group is actively participating in the foregoing program through
its ANT Express anline platform.

On November 26, 2020, the Group has entered into @ Memorandum of Agreement
C"MOA"Y with the Philippine International Trading Corporation ("PITC") to collaborate
on the importation of raw materals to provide healthier and more affordable "Bigkla”
Bigas-Mais (rice-corn) blend to the Flliping consumers. The Group is 58t to locally
produce with its corn contract growers and Include in its product portfolio the *BigMa®
Brand. The "BigMa" or Bigas-Mais blend is a Low Glycemic and rich In dietary fibhar
staple food alternative for the Flipino consumers. With the production of BigMa, the
Group will he able to reduce carbon foot print, provide mare livelinood to local farmers
as the spurce of "Mais®, help the country achieve food-staple sufficiency faster, while
providing a healthier and affordeble option to the public.

As at date of report, the Group mede its Imitlal shipment through the foregoing
collaboration durng the 1st quarter of 2021,

2n December 28, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the acguisition of additional
shareholdings In Fucang Trading Limited (Fucang) from 51% up to 71% for a price to
e determined based on the audited net book value of Fucang as at December 31,
2021. As at date of report, the additional acguisition is not yet compieted.

Fucang, & subsidiary, acquired 70% awnership of Guangzhou Lexian Frult Industry Co,,
Ltd. {Lexian] in 2018, a fareign entity iIncorporated in China engaged in wholesale trade
(see Note 31).

On October 13, 2018, the Group entered into a joint venture agreement for a
development of the property located in Taytay, Rizal, bisected by the Manggahan
Flondway. The property covers B52 hectares more or less of which is covered by fitles
under different names, all of which are gither directly or indirectly under the third-party
individual, Each square meter is valued at £1,500. The joint venture shall Inclede but
nat imited to the formation of the following: Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 -
Food Terminal and Phase 3 = Property Development Corporation. As at Decamber 31,
2021 and 2020, the Group has made deposits totaling PS08.7 million for the acquisition
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to the 859 hectares, carresponding to portions thereof. As at reporting date, the third
party 15 still completing the titling of the whaole portion of the property until end of the

third quarter to fully exgcute the joint venture agresment. The parties are in the
process of executing the projects under the Jont Venture Agreement (see Noke 15,

On October 25, 2018 the BOD of the Group authorizes the expansion of business
opergtions in Australia through acquisition of existing companies. Accardingly, on
December 28, 2018 the Group made a deposit amounting to AUS172,000 or £6.3
million to BSK PTY LTD (see Note 15). The main activity of the Austratlan operations
i5 primarily processing of fruit and vegetables for distribution to food processors,
schools, restaurants, mining sites and airlines. As at reparting date, it is already in the
process af finalizing the acquisition agreement and it will be incdluded as a subsidiary
on the first quarter of 2022

On November 8, 2018, the Group has signed a P1.9 billion deal with a Chinese Company
for the purchase of various agricufture produce particulary trapical fruits. The contract
was signed with SinoChem Group (SinoChem), a Beljing based conglomerate engaged
in the production and trading of chemicals, fertilizers and otheragricultural products.
Under the agreement, SinoChem will buy tropical fruits from the Group’s contract
growers in the Philippines in the next three years. SincCheam will alsoprovide support
through the supply of affordable fertilizers. The deal aims to provide support to local
farmears and boost country's market acress to China.

Due to the health and mobility restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic,
both parties opted to defer the implementation af the agreement in 2020 and plan to
finglize the terms thereof In 2022, The parties intend o utillze this deal in the BigMa
(rice-corn mix) Project and expansion af banana plantation.

On December 20, 2019, the Bodard of Directors of the Group approved joint venture or
any similar engagement with Desartment of Justice through Bureau of Corrections for
the development of at least 2,000 hectares of integrated Agri-Tourism com plantation
In Falawan, The Group will fund the development while the Bureau of Corrections will
provide the land. The proposed joint venture is intendec to expand the Group's
business through corn production and agri-tourism. As at reparting daie, the Bureau
of Corrections is awaiting the endorsement of the agreement by the Department of
Jugtice to finalize the transaction. Also, due to the health and mobility restrictons
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the implementation of the agreement in
2020 was deferred. However, the parties plan to finalize the terms thareaf in 2022,

On November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to register, participate,
and appoint @ company administrator/s or representative/s In Rice Exchange, which is
a digital marketplace for international rice trading. As at reporting date, the Group s
cormpleting its application for registration,

On COctober 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Parent Company, respectively, epproved the increase of the Group’'s authorized capital
stock from P2,000,000,000 to up to PS,000,000,000. The increase is intended for any
future capital raising activities. Thiz is alsa in anticipation of the issuance of warrants
and stock rights offer of 258,000,027 commaon shares from the Group's existing capital
stock.

On Movember 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of Agrinurture
Development Holdings, Inc. ("ADHI") of nine hundred ninety-nine {99%9) primary shares
of Agrinurture HK Holdings, Ltd. (ANT HK} at par value of USD 1. ANT HK is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Parent Company and ADHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Greenergy Holdings, Tnc.

On September 7, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the autheority to incorporate a
wholly-owned foreign subsidiary, Agriurture Financial S.a r.l. in the Grand Cuchy of
Luxembourg, for the issuance of the long-term green bonds of up to 75 million Euros,
As ai date of report, the Group isin the process of incorporating the foreign subsidiary.
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On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the mcrease in suthorized capital stock of the
Graup from one billion {P1,000,000,000) divided into one billion (1,000,000,000) common
shares to two billlon (£2,000,000,0007 divided inbto two billion (2,000,000,000) common
shares bath with a par value of one pess (PL1). Hence, this has given effect to the subscription
of Earthright Holdings, Inc. to two bundred fifty million common shares (250,000, 000),
increesing the total subscribed shares from G6E,003,686 In 2017 to 1,018,224 068 In 2018
and total subscribed and paid shares from 668,003,686 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018,
Subscription raceivable at par value amounted to £191 615,200 and 2193 672,800 as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

On February 24, 2020, the Board has approved tha decrease in the par value of the shares
of the Group from one peso (RL.00) o ton centavos (PO.10). The Board has Hkewise appravad
the reclassification of 40 million (40,000,000} unissued common shares with gar value of one
peso (PL.O0) per share or an aggregate par value of forty million pesas {P40,000,000) to
400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par value of ten centavos (PO.10) per share or an
aggregate par value of forty millien pesos (P40,000,000) subject to the approval of the SEC.

Upon approval of the SEC, the Growup's authonred capital stock will increass to twenty billion
{20,000,000,000) shares for & total par value of two bBillion pesos (F2,000,000,0000 which
shall be divided into the following:

a, Common shares, consisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavos
(BD0.10) per share for a total par value of #1,960,000,000;

h. Preferred shares, consisting of 400,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavos
(PD.10) per share for a total par value of P20,000,000;

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privireges, limitations and restricticns
which shall also appaar on the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corparation:

. The right to vote and be voted for;

B. The nght to receive, out of unrestricted retained earnings of the Group, participating
dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the BOD under the prevailing market
conditions or such other relevant factors as the BOD may consider. Said dividend may
be declared and payable at the discretion of the BOD after taking into account the
Group’'s eaming, cash flows, financizl conditions and other factors as the BOD may
constder relevant; and

¢. In the liguidation, dissolution and winding up of the Group, whether voluntary or
otherwise, the right to be paid in full or retably, insofar as the assets of the Groug will
permit, the par value or face value of each preferred share as the BOD may determing
upen their issuance, plus unpaid and accrued dividends up to the current dividend
period, before any assets of the Group shall be paid or distributed to the holders of the
carmmuen shares.

d. The common shares shall possess all the rights, privileges and preragatives provided by
law, including the right to vote and be voied for.

The stockholders of the Group shall have no pre-emptive right to subscribe to or purchase
any or all issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Group.

The change in par value is intended to increase the number of shares of the Group that il
give mare trading opportunities to the shareholders and investors, The decreasa in par value
will make the shares more affcrdable to small investors, hence will be more marketable and
liquid in the market,

The reclassification is intended for any future capital raising activities. The amount to be
raized shall be used as additional working capital and funding for the Group's expanshon
project particularly the creation of the Agricuttural Ecosystam to banefit focal farmers.



As 2t reporting date, the approval for the decrease In the par value of the shares was
deferredby the stockholders.

Cn MNovember 5, 2021, the Parent Company's BOD confirmed the approval of the
reciassification of the Farent Company’s Forty Million (40,000,000) unissued comman
shareswith par value of One Peso (P1.003) per share or an aggregate par value of Farty
Million Pesos{FPhp40,000,000.00) to 400,000,000 vobng preferred shares with par value
of Ten Centavos{#0.10} per share or an aggregate nar value of Forty Million Pesos
(P40,00D,000), to be subscribed by Earthright Holdings, Inc.

The Group's registerad principal office address i5 at Mo, 54 National Road, Dampol
II-&, Pulilan, Bulacon.

The Company aparates its agro-caommercial businesses through operating divisions and
wholly-owned ar majorty-owned subsidiaries that are organized Into business segments.

REVENUE
[Philppme Pesia} March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Philippine Operations
Export P 280,894,319 p 138,823,565
Local Dstrbutian and Others 304,963,985 93,353,318
Retal & Franchising 7,436,671 b, 3530 485
Sub-total P 593,294,975 P 538,567,368
Forelgn Operathons
Hongkong/China 496,539,164 £53,348,737
Taotal P 1,080 834,139 B 1,201,916, 105
BResulls of Operations

Threse Months anded March 31, 2022 wversus March 31, 2031

Met Sales

The ANI Group generatad a consalidated sale ef goods and services of Php 1.1
billign for themonths ended March 31, 2022 9% decrease ovar the same period
fast year. For the firstthree manths of 2022, Phillppine operations contributed
54%% while salas from Foreign operations accounted for 46% of consolidated
sales. Sale of goods and services by business segment are as followis:

# [Due to the implementation of lockdown and limited mobility In vanous parts of
China in the latter part of 2021, export of bananas and various goods decreases
which resulted to the Group’s export sales to PRp280.89 milllon, 2 35% lower
compared Lo the same pedod in 2021, The decrease is brought sbout by the
challenge in the pgistics in China brought about by the pandemic.

» Llocal distribution sales posted an increase of 227% toc Php 304.96 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2022 from Php 92.35 million for the same
period in 2021, Sslesincrease significantly since the start of pandemic wherein
the demand For rice and fresh produced Increases. Further, the Group launched
its own e-commerce pladorm  through s ANI  Express  wabsite



https://ani .lam m.ph, and mobile application

i : = where
custumers can on:ler fresh p*nduce canneﬁ beveragas rice and other essential
goods for delivery to customers. The Group is also launching new products such
as Plant Based Meat, Non Dairy Ice Cream, Big Chill Healthy Drinks in cans for
local and export distribution whichis expected to start to record double digit
growth for the rest of the coming quarters,

« Retall and franchising sales registered an increase of 16.37% amounting to
Php7.44 million for the first quarter of 2022 from Php6.39 millien for same period
in 2021,

» Combined Foreign trading cperations posted an almost 25% decrease in sales
in the firstquarter of 2022 from 663.35 million in 2021 to Php496.54 millian in
2022 due to decrease in sales of residential and commercial units since the
lockdown in China startedbrought about by the COVID-19.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of:

« Cost of purchasing fruits and vegetables and raw materials from growers
and othertraders and suppliers including freight in charges;

« Cost of real estate includes development cost for all properties to be scld,
includingshops, offica buildings and hotels located in China

« Personnel expenses, which include salary and wages, employee benefits and
retirementcosts for employees involved in the production process;

= Repairs/maintenance costs, depreciation costs relating to production
equipment, vehicles, facilities and buildings;

+ Fuel and oil costs relating to the production and distribution process

For the three months ended March 31, 2022, ANI Group's cost of sales amounted to
Php239.64 million dewn by 10% from Phpl.04 bilion for the same period in 2021, relative
to the increasein sales during the guarter.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit down by Php10.30 million or 6% from Phpl60.49million to
Fhpl50.19 million for the thr2e months ended March 31, 2022 for same period |ast year.
The decrease wasdue to significant decrease in revenue from foreign operation

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses consist of selling expenses and administrative
expenses; whichinclude the following major items:

Taxes and licenses

Galaries, wages and other employee benefits
Advertising

Fental

Depreciation and amortization

Freight cut and handling cost

- & & & § ®

Consolidated operating expenses for the first cuarter of 2022 amounted to PhpB89.08
millien down from Php92.12 million for the same period last year, due to the pandemic
issue where thereal estate Company's operations was shut down since the start of
implementation for a total lockdown in Chira.



Finance Costs

Financa Costs for the first quarter of 2022 amounted tc Php 1020 million compared to
Fhp 14.60 million for the pravious year.

Met Profit

Consolidated ner profit up by Php2.29million or 5.72% from Phpd0.07million to
Fhpd42.36million for the three months ended March 21, 2022 fo- same period last year,
The increase wasdue bo significant increase in revenue in local distribution.

Einancial Condition

Assets

ANI Group’s consclidated total assets as of March 31, 2022 amounted to P5.89 billion
2 stight decrease of0, 6% from P 5.94 bilbon at December 31, 2021, The following explain
the mavements in the asset accounts:

# The Graup's cash balance detreased by P32.32 million from B 80,19 milllan in 2021
to P47.87 milllon in 2022 primarily due to payment of payables and loans during
the period.

= Receivables decreased by PS5, 0<4million during the quarter from P741.84 million
=in 2021 to P736.80 million in 2022.

»  Advances to related parties increased=hy P3,73 million due to advances made
from warious subsidiaries during the guarter while advances to stocckholder
decreased by PLO4.55 millicn from P275.73 million in 2021 to 2279.90 million
in 2022 dueto liguidation and collections during the guarter,

« Inventory balance increasec from & year end 2021 balance of BL.32 billion ta
£1.36 billion in 2022 due te increase in demand for fresh produce during the
fUArTter.

» Deposits for future investments include deposits mads by Fucang to acquire
60% ownership of the subscriptlions to Guangzhou Tianchen Resl Cstate
Development Co., Ltdand 30% of Lushan Supply Chain Management { Shanghai)
Ca., Ltd., a company engagedin banana trading in China.

# Property, plant and cquipment including intangibles, investment proporty and
right-af- use assets decreased from 22.05 bilhan in Decernber 31, 2021 to H2.04
billion in March 31, 2022 due to amartization during the period.

Liabilities
Conzolidated liabliities amounted to 1.63 bifllon as of Manch 31, 2021.

Tata current liabilites amounted 2 #£1.55 billion and £ 171 billion as of March 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, The decrease is mainly due to payments
of loans and bormowings and trade payablas.

Equity

Consolidated steckholders” equity amounted to P4.30 billion as of March 31, 2022, The
increases due to the improverments of results of operations during the period.



Liguidit iR reas

Met cash used in operating activities for the first three months of 2022 was 37.72 million

Net cash flow provided by nvesting activities is 85.71 million due to collections and
liquidation of advances during the period.

MNet cash used in financng activities is Php90.31 million which is due to payments of
loans, leasesand advances from related parties during the period.

The company has no knowledge and not aware of any material event/s and

uncertainties knownto the management that would address the past and would have
an impact on the future operations of the foliowing:

a) Any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will have amaterial Impact on our liquidity

b) Any events that will trigger direct or contirgent financial cbligation that is
materialto the company, including any default or acceleration of obligation.

¢} A&ll material off-halance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created duringthe period.

d) Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of
such commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.
e} Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are
reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/incame from continuing operations.

fi Any significant elements of income/loss did not arise from our continuing cperation.



AGRINURTURE INC AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule of Financial Indicators

FOR THE PERIOD

ENDED
FINANCIAL KEY

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR DEFINITION MARCH 31
Current Liguidity : 2022 2021
CURRENT RATIO Currert Assets 1.80 1.80

Current Liabilities
Currenl Assel - Inventorny -
QUICK RATIO Prapayments 0.80 0.B6
Current Liabilities

SOLVENCY RATIO/DEBT TO Total Liabilities 0.28 0.53

EQUITY RATIO Stockhalder's Equity ' i
ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO Total Assels 1.38 1.53

Total Equity
INTEREST RATE COVERAGE Income Beiore Interest and Tax 4.67 3.78
RATIO
Finance Cosl
Profitability Ratio:
Return on Assels Meat Income 0.0 0.01
Average Total Asset

Return on Equity Net Income 0.01 0.01

Average Total Equity




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Requiation Code, the Issuer has duly causad this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Issyer AGRINURTURE INC.

SignatureandTitle A NIO L.TIU
Chairman / President

Data May 15, 2022
SlgnatureandTitle NETHS.TAN
Treasurer,

Dats May 16, 2022



AGRINURTURE; INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MARCH 31, 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Amounis in Phifippine Pesos)
Notes 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 6 47,873,651 B0,195,232
Trade and other receivailes - net 7 736,795,395 741 836,091
Due from ralated parfies = net 22 279,898,831 276,167,524
Pue fram stockbolders 2 171,187,015 475,733,442
Inventaries 8 1,364,451,495 1,317 725,194
Prapayrments and other current assats - nel g 194,087 6E2 191 E22 938
Total Cument Assets 2,794,294,069 2. 883,483 421
Moncurrent Assets
Fmancial assets at far value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT 10 49,107,600 47 801,400
Property and equipment - net 12 584,121,001 614,541,285
Investment property 13 1,220,900,340  1,188,425,936
Intangible assels - net 14 157,989,167 167,174,787
Right-of-Lse ascets 28 74,715,005 79,686,049
Biekgical assets 15 94,328,410 59,301,732
Deferred tax as=at 27 10,009 10,009
Deposits and other noncurment assets = net 16 905,941,353 896,196,918
Total Noncurment Assets 3,097,112 885 3,053,138,126
5,891, 406,954 5.936,621,547
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,047,725,513 2,049,828,067
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables ) 538,379,193 6l1431,024
Shart-term loans payable 18 BOG,100,000 847 800,000
Current portion of:
Long-term nans payahie 18 62 894 637 o 195,081
Lease iahilmes 28 291,160 291,160
Due to related parties 22 117,580,933 154,989,542
Income tax payable 22,690,836 4,207 801
Tatal Cument Liabiities 1,547,936,759  1,708.914 608
Moncurrent Liabilities
Mancurrent portion af;
Long=term lans payabe 18 30,408,993 29 372 043
Leage hakbilities 28 318,472 JlgAars2
Retirement henefit ahiity 26 19,275 038 19,275,038
Defered tax Eahilites 27 34,363,238 3,606,569
Total Moncurrent Liahilties 824,365,741 F9.572.122

Total Liabiitics

1,632,302 500

1,788 486,730

(Forwerd)

L&



(Carryforward)
Notes ” 2022" 2021
Equity
Capital stock P1 par valus 20 832,831,688 B32,831,6B8
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares in
2021 and 2020
Subscribad - 1,024,446,888 shares in 2021 and
2020 (net of subscriptions receivable at par value
of P191,615,200 in 2021
and P193,672,800 in 2020)
Additional paid-in capital 20 3,602,050,960 3,602,050 960
Deficit (1,810,171,502) (1,848,388,705)
Net cumulative remeasurement gain
on retirement benefits 26 1,785 1,785
Foreign currency translation reserve 271,536,873 236,545,517
Revaluation surpius - nat of deferred tax 12 84,611,960 84,611,960
MNoncontroling interest 31 1,278,242,688 1,240,481,612
Total Equity 4,259,104,452 4,148,134 B17

5,891,406,952

5,936,621,547

See accompanying Notes te Consolidated Fmancial Statements.
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2022 2021
NET REVENUE 19 1,089,834,139 1,201,916,105
COST OF SALES 23 939,641,731 1,041,427,738
GROSS PROFIT 150,192,408 160,488,367
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 24 89,076,576 92,119,488
OPERATING PROFIT 61,115 832 68,368,879
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Gain on change in fair value of biological assets 15 15,026,678 -
Finance costs 18 {10,901,690) (14,600,723)
Interest income G 2,508 2,072
Other income - net 25 656,837 148,711
4,784 333 [14.449.940)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 65,900,165 53,918,939
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current 19,784,361 13,850,947
Deferred 3,756,670
23,541,031 13,850,947
NET PROFIT 42,359,134 40,067,992
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Reclassificable to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 68,610,500 22,175,185
Not reclassificable to profit or loss
Revalation increment - net of deférmred tax
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 110,969,634 62,243,177
Net profit (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 38,217,203 22,372,303
Noncontroling interest 4,141,931 17,695,689
42,359,134 40,067,992
Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 73,557,742 31,401,294
Nencontroling interest 37,411,892 30,841,883
110,969,634 62,243,177
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to equity holders
of the Parent Company 0.05 {0.04)

See accampaning Notes o Consallxing Fmancil Staltemonis.



AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
2022 2021

CAPITAL STOCK - P1 par value
Balance at beginning of year 832,831,688 B30,774,088
Paid-up during the year - =

B32,831,688 830,774,088
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 3,602,050,960

Additions during the year

3,567,071,760

Balance at end of year

3,602,050,960

DEFICIT

Balance at beginning of year
MNet profit (loss), as restated
Other comprehensive incomea

3,567,071 ,760

(1,848,388,705)
38,217,203

(2,386,988,752)
22,372,303

Balance at end of year

|

(1,810,171,502)

NET CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GAIN
ON RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(2,364,616,449)

Balance at beginning of year 1,785 3,974,345
Remeasurement loss - -
Balance at end of year 1,785 3,974,345
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
Balance at beginning of year 236,545,517 3,825,623
Exchange differences during the year 34,991,356 18,667,894
Balance at end of year 271,536,873 22493 517
REVALUATION SURPLUS - NET OF

DEFERRED TAX BE4,611,960 20,386,919
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
Balance at beginning of year 1,240,481,612 789,096,138
Share in;

Net profit during the year 4,141,931 17,695,689

Exchange difference on transiation

of foreign operations 33,619,145 13,146,193

Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits - -
Balance at end of year 1,278,242, 688 819,938,020
TOTAL EQUITY 4,259,104,452 2,900,022,200

Ses accampanying Naotes o Consalidared Financlal Stataments.
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Amounts in Philfppime Pesos)
2022 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax 65,900,165 53,915,939
Adjustments for:
Depreciztion and amortization 18,803,085 20,898,562
Finance cost 10,901,690 14,600,723
Interest ncome (2,508) (2,072
Gan on change in far value of bologeal asset {15,026,678) -
Operating profit before working capital changes BD,E75,754 B A16,152
Decrease {Incraase’) In:
Trace and other receivades 5,043,696 (19.932,759)
Tnventones {46,726,301) (£1,592,927)
Prepayments and other current assats (2,264,744) (4,298,227)
Increase (decrease] in trade other payables (73,051,831) (20,747 738)
Met cash proviced by {used in) operations {36423,426) 22,844,515
Income [2xes paid (1,301,326) (4,811,320}
Interest received 2,508 2,072
Met cash Fows provided by (usad in)
opereting aibvities (37,722,244 18,035,267
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Coliectons received from:
Related parties 31,814,086
Stockholkders 104,546,427
Advances made to;
Stockhokders (45,135)
Related partiog (17,A30,148)
Decrease (ihcrease) in.
Cther noncurrent assets (9,744,435) {1,650,585)
Additions to:
Property amd aguipment - (8,316,537
Inwvestment property (32,474,404) (2.5644.450)
Binlogical 3ssets {20,000,000)
Praceeds from sale of propesty and aquipmant 53 380,043
Met cash fiows provided by (us=d m)
nvesting actvities 95 707,632 B.518 231

{Forward )



fCarnorvard)

.EE.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from:

| pan avalments

Advances from related parties
Payments of:

Loans payabis

Interest

Bodvaaces frorm related parties

Lpase Kability

=

{11,603,479)

(67 ,801,800)
{10,901,690)

(23,927,324)
31,219,541

{14,600,724)

Met cash flows provided by {used In}

financing activities (90,306,959) (7,308,507)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

DIFFERENCE ON CASH - net
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (32,321,581) 17,244,991
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 80,195,132 S¥ 626,380
CASH AT END OF YEAR 47,873,651 74,871,371

D8 Acoamoanying Nobes o Lonrokdated finarsad abalements.
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AGRINURTURE, [NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounis in Philippine Pesos)

1. Corporate Information and Status of Oparations

AgriNurture, Inc. [the “Parent Company®) was registered with the Philipoine Securities and
Exchange Commiction (SEC) an February 4, 1997 ta engage in the manufacturing, producng,
growing, buylng, sellirg, distributing, marketing at wholesale only Insofar as may be permitted
by law, all kinds of goods, commedities, wares and merchandise of every kind and descripfion
and to entar into all kinds of contracts for the export, import, purchase, acquisition, sale at
wholesale only and other disposition for Its own account as principal or in representative capacity
as manufacturer's representative, up consignment of all kinds of goods, wares, merchandise or
products, whether natural or artrficial,

In March 2009, the SEC spproved the change in the Parent Company's primary purpose to
engage in corporate farming, in all its branches for the planting, growing, cultivating and
precucng of crops, plants and fruit bearing trees, of all kinds ard in connection te engage in
agri-tourism and other plkeasurable pursuits for the enfoyments ard sppraciation of mother
nalure and ecology and to engage in the- establishment, operation and maintenance of
egulpment,. stractures and fadlities for the preservation, conservatbon and sterage of fopds,
greins and supplies, like cold storage and refrigeration plants,

The Parent Compeny's secondary purpose include, among others, to purchase, acquire, lease,
sell and convey real properties such as land, bulldings, factores and warehouses and machines,
cguipment and other personal properties asz may be necessary or incidental to the conduct of
the corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of capital stock, debentures and ather
evidences of indebtedness, of other securities, as may be deemed expedient for any business
or property acquired by the Parent Company.

The Parent Comgany and its subsidiaries {collectvely referred to as the "Group”) are invalved
in Yarious agro-commercal businesses =uch as export trading and distribution of fruits and



- 2"1 -
vegatanles, retall franchising and real estate.

The consofidated Anancial statements have bees prepared on a going concern basis, which
aszumes that the Group will be able to continue increasing revenues and improving operalions
desplte losses from operations up to 2016, Whilte the Group has Incurmed accumulated losses of
F£1,810,171,502 and £1,848,388, 705 as at March 31, 2022 ard December 31, 2021, the Group’s
managament assessed that the golng corcern assumpticn remalns to be appropriate since the
Group hes been continuousty growing revenue and Improving profitability and Is continuing to
Expanc its cora buslness and increase the distribution
(frults, vecetebles and rice) and export seles channels. 1ks retall arm is expanding the franchise
nebwork with steps to cover not only the Philippines on a national basis but overseas as well.
The Group hos started an active campaign ta gain new and recover dients through marketing
and selling activities in the Philippines and overseas. Part of these activities include looking for
more oppotunities in the greater Middle East, China and Asian markeats. Also, with the addition
of Zhangshan Fucang Trading Ca., to the Groupan 2017, it will continuouely deliver axcaptional
guality goods and services and improve its presert business activities through commodity
trading, real estate develogment, and set up of new pialfonms. The Group shall continue o grow
proanic business and expand new materials with new product introductions in the coming years
to completsly wipe out acocumulated losses,



- 35 -

The consatidated financial statements do not indicate any adjustmenss to reflect possible future
effects ol recoverability and classilication of assets or the amount and classification of Habilitles
that may result should the Group be unable to continue 2s a golng concern. Moreaver, most
lpans were already converied to term loans in order o increase the fexibility of the Group's
capital and minlmize the Immedizte Impact on operational cash flows, As at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, the Group’s current assets already exceeded its current liabilities by
P1,245,320,360 and P1,174 568,513, respeciively. Further, the Group launched its awn e-
commerce platform through its mobile application and ANI Express website where customers
can order fresh produce, canned beverages, rice and other essential goods for delivery to
custormers. The Group is also lsunching new products such as Plant Based Meat, Non-Dairy Tce
Cream, Big Chill Healthy Drnks in cans for local and export distribution. These developments
are expectad to contribute to a positive growth in the future for the Group's revenue and net
Eamings.

The follswineg are the recent developments o conbinuous business expansion:

s On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Farent Company, respactively, have approved the istwance of shares o Plentex
Fhilippines, Inc. {Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Parent
Company has agreed to issue the same at a value of BL8 per share which is ta be paid
through the issuance of 30,000,000 shares of Flentex Limited.

Plentex is 2 Philippine Corporation that is developing a substantial large scale agri-business
center in Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex % a subsidiary of Pentax Limited, unlisted Australian
public company In Victaria, Austraiia,

As at date of report, the 6,172,800 shares were subscribed and 2,057,600 shares were
paid.

= O Febreary L, 2021, the Group entered inlo & Memoranduim of Agreement ("MOA") with
the Unifled Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ("UBTT') and the National Commission an Indigenous
Feoples ("NCIP™) to promate inclusive agricultural and sconomic growth by pursuing land
productivity thru the development of rice and comn plantation in Bansalan, Davaa del Sur.
The Group will iInvest in the development, operation entd management of the rica and com
plantation while the UBTT will be entitied toan annual royalty fee Annual Net Profit share
in the project. Further, all empicyment ard |abor reculrements of the profect shall ba
primarily sourced from the UBTT. NCIP shall monitor and evaluaie compliance of the
parties in the terms and conditions of the MOA. The Group, along with the project shall
develop programs on health, skils development ansd alternative lvelihosd for the
communities, The parties, in collabaration with other national gowernment agencies shall
likewise conduct tree planting adtivites in al least two thousand (2,000) hactares of land,

Az al date of repart, the parties have comiplied wath the requirements to hilly execgke the
agreement, induding bDut not limited to the Free and 2ricr Informed Consent (FPIC), as
inglcated by the ssuance of a8 Cartifcation Precondition by the NCIP,

# On Febroary 23 2021, Ocean Biochemistry Technology Research, Inc. ("OBTI™) and
Gresnergy Holdings, Inc. ("GHL™) have entered nto a subscription agreement for the
issuznce of 37,500 common shares of OBTI at par value of 100 per share for a total
aggrgate value of £3,750,000. OBTI is 2 corporation primarily engaged in manufacturing
and trading, and is 51% owned by M2000 Imex Company, Inc. ("IMEX") prior to GHI's
subscription while M200D Imex Company, Inc. ("IMEX") s @ wholly-owned subsidiary of
IﬂMI-I-

f5 ar date of report, the subscription agreement has been executed and the foregoing
tranzaction complatad.

« OnMay 12, 2021, the Group received a Med um Green Rating from Cicero Shades of Green
for its Green Bond offering. Cicero Shades of Green is a subsidiary of the climate research
institute CICERD. It provides independent, research-based ewvaluations of green bond
investment  framewaorks  to determine their  environmental strength.
Thelr Second Opinions are graded Dark Green, Medium Green, Light Green and Brown to
offer investors betler insight into the envircnmental quality of greern bonds,
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The Group has previously secured the autharity to issue long term Green Bonds of up to
73 melllion ewo with maturity of wp ta 7 years, including the ssuance of comimercial papers,
with terms and conditions to be recommended by management and to ba agproved by the
EOD. The issuance shall fund the agricultural projec expansion of the Group geered
towards climate change adaptation and mindmized environmental footprint,

Az al date of report, the Group fe completing the documentary requirements and securing
necessary beard approval for the Incorporation of a wholly-owned forelgn subsldiary for the
issuence of green bonds,

On May 12, 2021, the Group has entered nto & Memoarandur of Understanding {(MOW)
with the Department of Agriculture ("DA") and the Authaority of Freeport Area of Bataan
{"AFAB™). The MO aims to establish an Agri-Sector Digitalization Program which shall
have a “gencral purpose ond objocthive of facllitating the implementation and rolling out of
financial inclusion of all stakeholders in the agricultural sectar, particularly the unbanked
stakeholders such as the country's farmers and Ffishesolk, through a regulated hinancial
technobogy platform and licensed virtual cumency. The clients of and/or participants in the
financial technology exchange piatform and licensed virtual currency shail be purely Non-
Filipinas located outside the Philippinas”.

Under the MOU, the Group undertock o perform the folowing:

ii. fzcilitate, together with the DA and AFAE, the implementation of the 1AMI a-
commerce platform as a fnancal technology (FinTech) ecosystem for the
country'sfarmers and fisherfolks;

il. sacure a license from AFAB for the issuance and use of Agn Taken in the Fresport
Area of Bataan ("FABR™), and upon isssance of said liceanse, aliow the issuanea of
the Agri Token ta the participants of the FinTach ecosystam;

iit.  cause the establishment of 2 branch of an affiliate bank within FAB upon approval
of the BSP, which shall be the custodian bank for the Agri Token, and which shall
likewise service the Banking needs af the ocators within FAB;

iv. establish and secure a license for gn AgriXchange Commodities and Futures
Trading Center ("AgriXchange”) with AFAR; and

W,  ensure the capability of the Agrikchange to act as a Virtual Currency Exchange
for the conversion of fiat to virtual currenoes and vice versa, in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The MOU zlsa provided that the Group and the Local Government Units in FAB, with the
support of the DA, shall develop and estaslish & food terminal, coldfdry storages, and
logistdcs hub in FAB to boost the country's food security program. The MOU shall have
immediate efect upan signing by the parties.

A5 at date of report, the Group i in the process of complying with its obligations under the
MOU, mcludimg but not lmited b securing a icense from AFAR ta use its virkual currency,

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD appraved to accept the Letter of Intent (LOI) of
Ynesto Capilal to finance the expansion project of the Group, Under the LOI,
the Group was eligible o avail up o USS100,000,000 of long-term Hrancing. The financing
shall be a long-term loan with interest pegged at treasury bdl plus 3%, After the
acceptance of the LOI, the farmal application process shall commence. As at date of report,
the LOI applcation process is not yet comp'eted.

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the subscripbon of shares of
Binangonan Rural Bank, Tnc, (BRB]. The subscription is in line with the inclusive growth
try the establishment of 2n agricuitural ecosystem belng envisioned by the Group. BRB
has licensed financial technology platforms that can improve the access of Flipine farmers
especially those in the rerncte anes, to the Agri Agra Micre Financing. As at date of report,
the subscription agreement between the Group and BRB Iz not yet completed. Also, the
Group isin the process of securing letter of no objection from BSP to transfer to Greenergy
Holdings, Inc.
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On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment of tha terms and
conditions of the stock rights offering. It shall have the entitlement ratio ol 2.53:1, with
every existing shareholder of 2.5 shares shall be entltled o 1 stock rights share, with the
cifer price of PL par value,

On fwgust 19, 2021, the Group’s BOD confirmad the authonty to conduct the Stock Rights
Mfering of common shares to all eligible shareholdars of the Company at the entitlernent
ratio of 2.5:1 and offer price of P1.00 per share. The number of shares to be offered shall
be 255,000,027,

Az al date of report, e Group ks in the grocess of application of the Stock Rights Offer of
the 288,000 027 common shares which shall ba listed and traded on the Philippine Stock
Exchange.

On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment in the terms and
conditions of the following issuancas and listing of warrants:

a. Issuance and listing of up to 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of the Group's
emplovees credit cooperative as appraved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted
average price of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, 10 be exercised afer 5
vears fram date af issuance. The ratic shall be 1 warrant equivatant to 1 underlying
caommen share upon conversion. Explry date and other relevant terms and
conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the approval of the SEC.

b. Thawarrants shall have tha exarcise price of a discountad rate of 5% of the waighted
aversng volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be exerdsed after 5
years from date of Issuance. The ratic shall be L warrant equivalent to 1 underlying
commen share upon conversion, Expiry date and ofther relevant terms and
eonditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the approval of the SEC.

€. Issuance and listing of stock warrants in Fawvor of existing stockholders a5 of recard
dakte as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warranta shall have the exercige price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted
gvergge volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, (o be exercsed after 5
yvears from date of issuance, Existing stockhelders owning 10 common shares as of
record date, shall be entitled to 1 warrant. The ratio shall be 1 warrant eguivalent
ka1 underlying commaon share upon conversion, fecord date, expiry date and other
relevant terms and conditions shall be determimned by the BOD,

d. Tesuance and listing of stock warrants in faver of current directors 83 spproved by
the BCO on February 12, 2013,

Thae warrants chall have the exgrcise price of 2 discounted rate of 3% of the weighted
average volume trade of 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be exercsed after 5
vears from date of isssance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant equivalant to 1 undarlying
cammon share upon conversion, Expiry date and other relevant terms and
conditions shall be determined by the BOD. Each director serving at the tme of
issuance is entitled to up to 100,000 warrants.

On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD and shareholders,
respactively, approved the amendment)/s to the terms and conditions of the issuancs
of warrants to existing sharsholders to be bundied bo the Company's Stock Rights
Ciffering. The issuance ta sharehalders partidipating in the Stock Rights Offering,
with every shareholder availing of three (3) Stock Rights, shall be entitled to one
{1} warrant. The ratio shall be ore (1) warrant aguivalent to one (1) underlying
common share upon conversion. The warranis shall have the axercise price of a
discountad rate of 5% of the volume weighted average price of trade fiftesn (15)
days prior to maturity, to be exercised after five (5) years from date of listing.
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e. Issuance and listing of 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of ANT Foundation as
approved by the BOD on April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of & discounted rate of 3% of the weighted
average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be exercised after 5
vears from date of issuance. The ratic shall b2 | warrant equivalent to 1 undarlying
cammon shara upon conwversion. Expiry date and other relevant terms and
canditians shall be determined by the BOD. The issuance and listing of the warrants
shall be for the purpose of generating. funds for the corporate soclal responsibiity
programs of the Group,

On May 5, 2020, the Group has entered Intc 8 Memorandum of Agresment with the
Depertrment of Agriculture ("DA"). Under the Agreement, the Group shall be an official
program partner-participant of DA’ a-KADTWA ni Anl a7 Kim Program. A3 such, the Group
btecomes an online seller of agricultural products,

The DA's e-kADIWA nl A0l at Kita Program 15 a8 merket system which faclitates the sefling
of major agricultural goods at reasonably low prces to the consuming public throagh
partrership with Local Government Units and the Private Sectors. To further the sannces
of the KADIWA ni Ant at Kika Program, the DA has launched the e-EADIWA, an online
market porial or platform whereby buyers and sellers of agricultural and Mshery products
can transact onling.

As at date of report, the Group is actively participating in the foregoing program through
its ANl Express online platform.

On Movember 26, 2020, the Group has entersd into a Memorandum of Agreament ("MUA")
wiith the Philipping Intemational Trading Comporation ("PITC") to collaborate on the
impartation of rAaw materials to provide healthisr and maore affordabie “2igMa” Rigas-Mais
{rice-coim] blend to the Fliging consumers, The Group s set o gcally produce with its
oom contract growers and include in s product portfolio the "RigMa® brand. The *RigMa®
or Bigas-Mais biend is a Low Glycemic and rich in dietary fiber staple food alternative for
the Flipino consumers. With tha production of BigMa, the Group will be abls to reduce
carbon foot print, provide more livelinood 1o lecal farmers as the source of "Mals”, help
the country achieve fecd-staple sufficiency faster, while providing & healthier and
affordabbe cption to the public.

Az atdate of report, the Group made its initlal shipment through the foregoing collaboration
durirg the 1st quarter of 2021.

On December 28, 2020, the Groups BOD approved the acguisition of additienal
shareholdings in Fucang Trading Limited (Fucang) from 519% up to ¥ 1% fora price to be
determined based on the audited net book value of Fucang as at December 31, 2021, As
at dete of report, the additional acguisition is not yet.completed.

fFucang, & subsidiary, acguired 70% ownership of Guangzhou Lexian Frut Industry Co.,
Ltd. {Lexian) in 2018, a foreign entity incorporated in China engaged in wholesale trade
{see Nota 31).

On October 13, 2018, the Group entered into a joint venture agresment for a development
of the property located in Teytay, Rizal, bisacted by the Manggahan Floodway. The
proparty covers 359 hectares mare or less of which is covered by titles under different
names, all o* which are aither directly or indirectly uncer the third-party mdividual, Each
square meter is valued at P1,500. The joint venture shall indude but not limited to the
formation of the following: Phass 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 = Food Terminal and
Fhasa 3 — Propérty Development Corporation. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Group has made deposits totaling FS508.7 million for the acquisition to the B59 hectares,
commesponding to portions thereof, As at reporting date, the third party is still completing
ine ttling of the whole portion of the property until end of the third guarter to fully execute
the joint venture agreement. The parties are in the procass of executing the projects under
the Joint Venture Agreement (see Note 15).
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On October 25, 2018 the BOD of the Group authorizes the sxpansion of business
ogperations in Australia through acquisition of exisiing companies. Accordingly, on
December 28, 2018 the Group made a depasit amounting ta AUsI72,000 or £5.3 million
to BSK PTY LTD (see Mote 15). The main activity of the Australian cperations is primarily
processing of frult and vegetables for distribution to food processors, schools, restaurants,
mining sites and airlines. As at reporting date, it is already in the process of finalizing the
acquisition agreement and it will be included as a subsidiary on the first gquarter of 2022,

On November 8, 2018, the Group has signed & £1.5 billlon deal with a Chinese Company
for the purchase of verlous agriculture produce partioulary tropicel frults. The contract
vras signed with SinoChem Group (Sinelhem), a Bapgirg based conglomerate engaged in
the production and trading of chemicals, fertilizers and other agricultural products. Under
the agreement, SinoChem will buy tropcal fruits from the Group's contrack growers in the
Philippines in the pext three years, SinoChem will also provide support through the supply
of affordable fertibizers. The deal aims to provide support ko local farmers and boost
ounkry's market access to China.

Due zo the health and mobilty restnictons brought about by the COVID-19 pandermic, both
parties opted to defer the implementation of the agreement in 2020 and plan to finalize
the terms thereof in 2022, The parties intend to wtilize this deal in the BigMa (rice-carm
miix) Project and expansian of banana plantation.

On December 20, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Group approved joint venture or any
similar engagement with Department of Justice through Buraau of Corrections far tha
devalopment of at least 2,000 hectares of integrated Agri-Tourism com plantation in
Falawan. The Group will fund the develapment while the Buréau of Comections will pravide
the land. The proposed joint venture is intendad to expand the Group's business through
om production and agri-tourism. As at reporting date, the Bureau of Corrections is
owiaiting the endorsement af the agreement by the Department of Justice to finalize the
transaction. Also, due to the heaith and mebility restrictions brought about by the COVID-
19 pandemic, the implementation of the acreement in 2020 was deferred. However, the
partias plan to finalize the terms thereof in 2002,

On hovemnber 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to regisker, participate,
and appoint a company adminisktrator/s or representatives/s in Rice Exchange, which is a
digital marketplace for international nce trading. As ab reparting date, the Group is
completing its application for registration,

On Cetober 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the BOD and the chareholders of the Parent
Comaany, respectively, approved the increase of the Group's authorized capital stock from
F2000,000,0040 to up to BS,000,000,000, The increase s intendad for any futers capital
ralsing activities, This is also In anticipation of the issuance of warrants and stock rights
cfferof 288,000,027 common shares from the Group's existing capital stock.

On Hovember 5, 2021, the Group’s 800 spproved the subscripton of Agrinuriure
Development Holdigs, Inc. ("ADHI") of mine hundred minety-nine {$99) primary shares
of Agrinurture HK Heldings, Ltd. (ANI HK) at par value of USD 1. ANI HE is a whally
owned subs|/diary of the Parent Company and ADHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Gresnergy Holdings, Inc.

O September 7, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to intorporate a wholly-
cwned forelgn subsidiary, Agridurture Financial S& rl. in the Grand Duchy of
Luxermbourg, for the issuance of the leng-term green bonds of up to 75 million Euros. As
at dete of report, the Group is in the process of incorparating the foreign subsidiary,
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On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Graup
froam ane Biloan (FL1,000,000,000] divided intc one CIgn {1,000,000,000) camimon shares 1o
twin hillion (P2 000,000,000 sivided inta two billion (2,000,000,000) commnn shares both with
a par value of one peso (A1), Hence, this has given effect to the subscription of Earthright
Holdings, Inc. o two hundred fifty million common shares (230,000,000), inCreasing the total
sub=cnbed shares from 668,003,686 in 2017 to 1,018,274 088 in 2018 and tokzl subscribed and
paid shares from 668,003,680 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018, Subscription receivable at par
value ampounted to P191,615.200 and F193,672 800 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
rasnactively.

On February 24, 2020, the Board has approved the decrease in the par value of the sharas of
the Group from one peso (RL.00) to ten centavos (BE.10). The Board has likewise approved the
reciassification of 20 milllcn (40,000,000% unissued common shares with par value of one peso
{P1.00) per share or an aogregote par volue of farty million pesos (P40, 000,000 to 400,000,000
voting preferred chares with par value of ten centavas [PO.10) per share or an aggregate par
value of forty million pesos (P40,000,000) subject to the approval of the SEC.

Lipon approval of the SEC, the Group's authorized capital stack will increase to twenby billion
(20,000,000,000) shares for a total par value of two billion pasos (F2,000,000,000) which shall
be divided inta the follawing:

g. Comman shares, consisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with & par valus of ten centavas
{P0.10) per share for a total par value of P1,960,000,000;

B. Preferred shares, consisting of 400,000, 000 shares with 3 par value of ten centavos (#0107
per shara for a total par value of P40, 000,000,

Ihe preferred chares shall have the tollowing nghts, prvileges, imitatbions and restrichions which
shall also appear on tha Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corpeoration:

a. The right to wote and be voted for:

b. The rght to receive, out of unrestricted retained samings of the Group, participating
dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the BOD under the prevailing market
conditions or such other relevant factars as the BOD may conssder. Said dividend may be
declared and payable at the discretion of the BOD after taking inte account the Group's
earming, cash flows, financial canditions and other factors as the BOD may consider
relevant; end

c.. Intheliguidation, dissolution and wirding up of the Group, whether voluntary or otherwise,
the right to be pald in full or ratably, insofar as the esssets of the Group will permit, the par
velue or face value of each preferred share as the BOD may determine upon thelr issuance,
plus unpaid and accreed dividends up to the current dividend pariod, before any assets of
the Group shall be pald or distributed (o the holders of the common shares,

d. The common shares shall possess all the rights, privileges and prerogatives provided by
law, including the right to vote and be voted for

The stockhnlders of the Group shall have no pre-2mptive right to subscribe to or purchase any
or all issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Group.

The change in par value is intended ta increass the numbar of shares af the Group that will give
more trading opportunities te the sharehalders and investoss, The decrease in par value will
make the shares more affordable to small investors, hence will be more marketable and liguid
in the market.

The reclassification Is intended for any future capital raising activities. The amount to be rasad
shall be used as additional working cagpital anc funding for the Group’s expansion project
particularky the creation of the Agrcultural Ecasysten ta benefit local farmers,
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#z at reporting date, the approval for the decrease in the pas value of the shares was deferred
by the stockhoiders.

On Novembsar 5, 2041, the Parent Lompany’s BOLD contirmed the approval of the reclassihcation
of the Parant Company's Farty Million (40,000,000) unissued common shares with par value of
One Peso (P1.00) per share or an aggregate par value of Forty Million Pesos (Php40, 000, 00000}
to 400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par valua of Ten Centavos (P0.10) per share or an
agoregate par value of Forty Million Pesos (P40,000,000) to be subscrbed by Earthrighe
Holdings, e,

EIf fCOVIDIG P i

In a move to cantain the COVID-19 pandemic, the community quarantine which was Initially
imposed on March 18, 2020, which has series of extensions throsghout the year 2020, was still
in effect as at audit report date, These measures have caused disruptions to business and
economic acbivities, and its impact on businessas still continue to evalve, However, the amourtt
of finarcial effect to the Group cannot be rehably and reasonably determined nor estimated. The
pandemic has significant impact on the Group's business due to manragement's dedsion o
tempararily close operations in compliance with government’s call for enhanced community
gquarantine. However, the pandemic and ECGQ has minimal impact on the Group's local operations
since its product are essential goods, Supsrmarket sales increased during the start of the ECO
bioth in volume and in price and is further improved by the launching of the Group’s own onfing
platform where It delivers frash frults ang vegetables to Its custemers, [n 2020, the combined
foreign trading operation posted a decreasz in sales due to non-operation of Ching and Hongkong
Eub_fr‘.ldiﬂ-riEE. But upon lifting of lackdown by the Chinese government, the operations of China
subsidiaries are improving. The Group’s management and BO0 will continuously maonitor the
impact and will plan accordingly tno minimize and {or) mitigars fusther risk on the Group's
financizl performance and position. The Group hes teken measures to preserve the health and
safety of its stakehaolders as well a5 the business operations.

The Group's reglstered principal office adcress is at Mo, 54 Mational Road, Dampo! -4, Pulllan,
Bulacan.

Thae consolidated financial statements as at and for the yoass ended Deocamber 31, 2021 and
2020 were guthorized and approved for issuance by the Group's BOD on May 13, 2021,

4. Basis of Preparation

Basie of b K e lidatei E ial S "
The consolidaled nancial statements of e Grous heve been prepaned using the historical cost
basis, except for cartain financial instruments carriec at sither amortized cost or at fair value,
inventones which (s carmed at lower of cost or net realizablz value, biological assets which s
presented using the falr value less estimated cost Lo sell, Investment property which s preserted
using the fair value method and property and eguipmant which s presented using revaluation
model, These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P), the Group’s
functional and reporting currency under Philippine Financia Reparting Standards (PFRS). All
values are roundad to the nearest peso, excapt when otherwse indicated.

The consaldated financial etatements provide comparative information in respect of the previous
penod.

Statemont of Compliance

The consolidated financial staterments of the Group have been prepared in compliance with PFRS.
PFES includes stztements named FFRS and Fhilippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
interpretations of the Philippineg Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations
Committes (3IC) and Internationad Financial Reporting Interpretations Committea (IFRIC) which
have been approved by tha Finandial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the
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Functinngl Currenoy
Ttems inciuded in the consolidated finandal statements of the Group are measured using the
Phifppine Pesc (&), the currency of the primary economic envinonmeat in which the Group
operates (the "funchional carrency”) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso except when
otherwise indicated,

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entiby are measured using that functional currency,
The respeciive functional currencies of the subsidiaries and associates are presented in
Noka 1.

The Group chose to present its consolidated finascial statements using the Group's functional
CUrTEncy.

Current and Non-carrent Presentation

The Graup classifies an asset as current when!

It expects to realize the asset, or intends to el or consume it, in its normal operating oyde;
It holds the asset primardly fior the purpose of trading;

It expecis (o reglize the asset within twelve (12) months after the reporting period; or

The asset Is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset Is restricted from belng exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve (12} months after the reporting pericd.

= ® @ =

The Group classifies all obhar assets as nen-ourrent.

The Group classifies a liakility as current when:

It expects to sattle the liability in its rommal cperating cycle;

It halds the liability primaly for the purpose of trading;

The liability is due to be sattled within bwelve {12) months after the reporting period; or

It does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least twelve
112) months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other Habdlities as non-current,

. ®r ¥ W

Nefarred tax assets and liahilities are classifind a5 non-current assets and liabilities, respectively,

Principies of Consolidation
The consolidated financis! statements of the Group comprise the accounts of the Parent
Company and ii5 subsidianes where the Parent Company has contiol,

Specfically, the Perent controls an investee (F it has:

# power gver the investee (l.e.. existing rights that give It the curment abllity to direct the
relevant activities of the Investes);
exposyre, or rights, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability t0 use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Whan the Parent has less than a majorty of the voting o similar rights of an investee, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances i assessing whether it has power ower an
invastee, including:

« the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
» rights arising from other contractual zrrangement; and
» the Sroup's voting rights and potential voting rghts.

The Parent ra-assesses ks control over an imvestes if facts and circum stances indicate that thers
are changes te one or more of the three elements of control.
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which contrel is transferred to the Group and
Cease [0 be consolidatad froem e date on which control 1S transferned out of the Group.
Consphlidated financial stateéments are preparer using uniform accounting policles for like
trensactions and other ewvents In similar Crcumstances, Intercompany balances and
transactions, including intercompany profits and unreatized profits and losses are eliminatad.

When the Parent loses control aver a subskdiery, at the dats when ocontrod Is lost, Gt

{a} derecognizes the assels [including any goocwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary ot their
carrying amount; {b) derecognizes the carrying amount of any noncontroliing interests including
any componmnents  of other comprehensive income  attnbutable to them;
{c} recognizes tha fair value of tha consiceration received; (d) recognizes the fair value of any
investrment retaimned in the Former subsidiary at its far value; (&) accounts for all amounts
recognized In other comprehenslve Income In relation to the subsldiary on the same basis as
would ke requrad if the parent bod directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities; and (£}
recognizes any reculting difference as gain or loss in profit or loss attributabie to the Parent.

The financial stakements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Group using consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, ‘adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thelr sccounting pelicies In line with those usec by
other memrbers of the Group.

Mon-controlling interests represent interests in cerain subsidiaries not held by the Parent
Company and are presented separataly in the consolicated statements of comprehensive income
(lozg) and consolidated statements of changes Ir equity and within equity In the conselidatad
statements of fnancal position, separately from equity attributable to the eguityholders of Parent
Company.,

Moncontrolling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held bythe
Group. Transactions with nancontrolling interest are accounted for usng the entity concept
mathod, wheraby the difference betwean tha consideration and tha book value of tha share of
the net assels acquired | recognized as an equily trensactkon.

& change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, s accounted for as
an equity ransaction.
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The consolidated financial statements include the Parent Campany and the fallowing subsidiaries
{cobectively referred to as the Group):

Cwnership
Intarast
Country of Eunctional
Inuestas Incorporation Principal Activity Currency 2021 2020
First Claas Agricuilure Trading (Ag-icuiusa Prailippaee Faso
; Fillippmas 100%  100%
Corparafior (FCAL) el |FHF]
¥ Pl 1 [P
MZ000 [MEX Company, [rc. (IMEX]  Philippmes  Toil and manutacuricg ':';1";] T 100%  100%
Best Cholca Hamyest Fshppine Peso
AgHciiniml Poep. [RCHAS] Phrilippones Farm manegement {HR) 100% L0
Fresh ard Gresn Harvest Agriouftural Tracing (agRcuiurna. Fashippene Peso
Cusripanny, e, (FEHYY Phillppines e PHEY 100%  L00%
Luethoy Frult 8 agetabhe Trading (sgricuius Pl pang Peso
Products, Tnc. [LEVPIY" Prlippines anods) PHR s I
Minmufactaring fpros essing .
Frutilicious Company, Inc. (FCE) Philryines tading frocen Ph"“:'::’:;:’"" 100%  100%
arieultural prechices :
§ ; Trading fag-icutusa ol pine Poso
Fasmwilla Farwing Ca ., Inc. {FFCI) Philippmes P} iPHE] 510G i
Fresh ard Green Pabawmn . Fadippine Presn "
Agriventires, Ine (FGP)* Mol Farsr manggeinent (PHPY 51% 1%
: Food anid bevirage Bnllipping Paca
& L]
Thee: Blag CRill, Eng. (TBL) Philippmes rubaling (PHE B0 A%
- i Ford ds Deyvardge FrEHppins feso
Hupryy Corpaation [HEY hilippanes rekaliing PHP) BOTe B0
Goads avd Wurrilan for Filipmne Pesa
a0 e { it Philippines Ratwil and wholsale (B 100%: 1001 %y
Agrmytiure HE Holdings Lo Hong Eong Callar
EARL HK) Hong ¥ong Helding Company (MR 100% %
Agrinvurture {181 Lid. (851 1L * Herg Korg fracng and recail T ;Tgxn"""" 100%  100%
)

Briteshi VMirgm Tradirg (sgricuira
Islands goods)
Zomgslien Fuoang Tradz ; Chrumese Yuan
Co. Ltd, (Fucang) China Trading anc real esiate 51 % al%e

(ENY]
= Direcr @l (aairect awrsTship

lenyful Fniry {Snaite) Limikad (IFT} = U5 Dollpr (S0  51% 1%

3. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Councll {FRSC) approved the (ssuance of new and
resvised Phillppine Financlzl Reporting Standards {FFRS), The term "PFRS" in general includes
2ll applicable PFRS, Philipping Accountine Standards (PAS], and Interpretations issued by the
Philipping Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committes (SIC) and
International Financial Reporting Interprezations Corrmittes (IFRIC) which have been approved
by the FRSC and adopted by SEC.

These new and revised PFRS prascribe new accounting recagrition, measurement and disclosure
reqguirements applicable to the Company. When apgicable, the adoption of the new standards
was made in accordance with their transitional provisions, atherwise the adoption is accounted
for s change in acccunting palicy under PAS B, Accounting Palicles, Changes In Accouniing
Estimates and Errors.
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3.01 Mew and Revised PFRSs Applied with Mo Material Effect on the Consalidated
Financial Statements

The following new and revised PFRSs hawve been adopited in these consolldated financial
staterments. The application of thess new and revized PFRS: has not had any matenal impact

on the amounts reporiod for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future
transactions or arrangements.

« Amendments to PFRS 16, COVID-18-rewated Rent Concessions
The following are the amendments to PFRS 16:

F  provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19 related rent
cnncession is a lease modification:

= require lessees that apply the exempton o account for COVID-19 refated rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications;

= require lessees that apply the exemption o disclose that fack; and

# reguire lessees to apply the exemption retrospectively in accardance  wath
FAS 8, but not require them to restate prior period figures.

The amsndments are effective for annual reparting periods beqginning an or after
June 1, 2020,

3.02 New and Revised PFRSs in Issue but Not Yet Effective

The Company will adept the followlng standards and interpretatdons enumereted below when
they become effective. Except @s otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the
adoption cf these new and amended PFRS, to have significant Impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

v Amendments to PFRS 16, COVID-18-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
The foliowing are the amendments to PFRS. 16:

» permit a ‘essee to apply the practical expedient regarding COVID-15-related rent
CONCESSICNS 10 rent concassions for which any reducticn in lease payments affects anly
payments ariginally due on or before 30 June 2022 (rather than only paymenis originally
duz on or Defore 30 June 2021);

# require a lesses applying the amendment to da sa for annual reporting perinds beginning
on or after 1 April 2021,

# require a lesgse applying the amendment 10 do so retrospectively, recognising the
cumulative effect of initially applving the amendment as ar adjustment to the opening
batance of retained earnings (or other comgonent aof equity, as appropriate) at the
beginming of the annusl reporting period in which the lessee first applies tha
amendment; and

= specify that, in the reporting perad In which & lessee first applies the amendment, a
lessee is not required to disclose the informaticon reguired by parsgraph 28(F) of
1A% B.

The amezndments are effective for annual reporting perdods beginning on or after
April 1, 2021, with earlier application permitted.
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» Amendments to PFRS 3, Referencea o the Conceprual Framework

The foliowing are the amendments in reference to the conceptuai framework:

» update PFRS 3 so thet it refers o the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of 1989
Framework;

= add to PFRS 3 & requirement that, for trensactions and other events within the scope of
PAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual
Fremework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and

» add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent
assets geguired ina busiress comibinathon,

The anendimeiils are efective for annual periods baginning en or after January 1, 2022, with
earlier application permitted If an entty also applies all other updated refererces (published
together with the updated Conceptual Framewcork] at the same time or eariier.

Amendments to PAS 18, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit 8 company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items preduced while the company is prepanng the
asset for its intended use, Instead, 3 company will recognize such sales proceeds and related
cost in profit or loss,

The ameandments-are effective Far annual perniads beginning on or after January 1, 2022, with
earlier application permitted. An entity applies the amendments retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary far
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the
baginning of the eariest perod presented in the finandal statemeants in which the antity first
applizs the amendments.

Amendments o PAS 37, Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfilng & Conlracr

The amendments specify that the "cost of Fulfilling’ a contract comprises the "casts that relate
directly o the contract”. Costs that relatz directly to a contract can either be Incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the alfocstion of the
cepreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipmant used in fulfilling the
contract].

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, with
eariier apphcaton permitted. Entities apply the amendments to conrtracts for which the entity
has not yet fulfiled all its obligations at the beginning of the annusl reporting periad In which
the entity first applies the amendments, Comparatives are not restated.

Annual Improvemeanis to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

] i, b - The smendment permits a
subsidiary that applies paragraph Dlof{a) of PFRS 1 tc measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to PFRSS.

Amendments {0 PFRS 9, Fees in the "1 per canl” fest f inancial [fabiities -
The amendment clarfies which fees an aentity includes when it applies the '10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.5 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An entity
includes only fees paid or received between the =ntity (the borrowear) and the lender, including

fees paic or receivied by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf,

i ives - The amendment to Dlustrative Example 13

Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Incenbives
ancompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the reimbursement of
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leasshold improvemeants by the leszor n order to resolve any potantial confusion regarding
the treamment of lease Incentlves thal might arise because of how lease incentives arg
Hustrated In that example.

Amendments to PAS 41 Taxation i faiv value meassurements - The ameandment removes the
requirerrent in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for entities o exclude taxation cash flows when
measuning the fzir vaiue of a hialogical asset usnig a presant value technique. This will ensure

conssteancy with the requirements in PERS 13,

The amendments are effective for annwal reporting periods beglnning on or after January 1,

Amendments W PAS L, Clessifcatfon of Lialiities as Carrent or Non-current
The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

# clarify that the classification of ligbilibes as current or non-current should be basad on
rights that are in existence 2t the end of the reporting pericd and align the wording in
all affected paragraphs to refer to the "right® to defer settlement by at least twelve
menths and make expliat that only fights i place "at the end of the reporting period”®
should affect the classificabion of a lability;

# clarity that classification is unaflected by expectations aboul whether an entity will
exerciza its noht o defer settlement of a hablity; and

¢ mzke clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, eguity
instruments, other assets or services,

The amendments defer the effactive date of the January 2020 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or KNon-Current {Amendments to PAS 1) to annual reparting periods beginning on ar
after January 1, 2023, Earlier applcation of tha January 2020 amendments continues ta be
permitted.

Amendments to PAS 8, Definifion of Acoounhiing Estimates

The definition of accounting estimates has been amended as follews: accounting estimates
are "maonetary amounts in financial stetements that are subject to measurament Lncartainny”.

The amendment also clarifies the following:

» Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
staterments o be measured ina way that involves measurament uncertainty.

» A change in actounting estimate that resu'ts From new information or new developments
is not the correction of an error. In addition, the efects of a change in an input or a
measurement technigque used to develap an accounting estimate are changes In
accounting estimates i thay do not result from the correction of priar periad errors.

» A change in an acoounting estimete may effect only the current period’s profit or loss,
or the profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the
change relating to the cuomant period is recognized as income o @xpense in the current
periad. The affect, if any, on future periocs is recognized as income or expense in those
future periods.

The amendments are effective for anneal reporting penods beginming on o or  after
January 1, 2023 and changes In accounting policies and changes In accounting estimates that
coour an or after the start of that period, with earller application permitted,
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Amendments to PAS 1 and FFRS Practice Statemrent 2, Disclosure Initiative = Accounting
Fulicies

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

& an entity |5 now required to disclose its materiel accounting policy infarmation instead
of 'ts significant accounting policies;

¥ several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material actounting
policy Information and to give examples of when accounting polcy informaton is likely
te e material )

The amendmaents also clanfy the following:

= accounting policy information may be material because of its natura, even if the related
arrounts are immataral;

» accounting poficy information is materal if users of an entity’s financial statements

wolld meed It to understend other matedal Information in the financial statements; and

if an entity discloses immateriz] accounting policy information, sech information shatl

nat pbscure material accounting policy information.

e

In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and examples
to explain and demonstrate the apphcaton of the "feur-step materialily process’ to accounting
palicy (nforrmaticn in order to support the ameandments to PAS 1,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting  perieds beginning on or alter
January 1, 2023, with earlier application parmitted

Amendment to PAS ll, “Defarred tax related to assets and Iia.bi'itles ::msin-g from a EingF-E
transaction”™

The amendments introduce an exception to the initial recognition exemption (IRE)] in PAS 12,
Additional exclusions have been added to the 1RE, detailed in paragraphs 15(b])(ii) and 24(c)
for defarmad tax Babilitles and assets respectively. The effects of these amandments essantially
mean that the IRE is not available for transactions which inwoive the recognition of both an
asset and liability = which in turn leads to equal and oppesite tempaorary differences - such
that deferred taxes are calculated and booked for bath temporary differences, beth at initial
recognition and subsequently. Applying this exception, an entity does riat apply the initial
recognition exemption for transactions that give mse to equsl taxable and deductible
temporary differances,

The Initial recognition eéxemption was nitially included within PAS 12 to prevent a lack of
reporting transparency for fransactions which are not business combinations and, at the time
of tha transaction, do not affect either accounting or taxable profits. Under this exemption,
ceferred tax assets/liabilities would neither be recognized at Initial recogniton of the
underlying asset/liability, nor subsequentiy.

The amendments apply 10 transactions that occur an or after the beginning of the earlest
comparative period presented. In addition, the amendments also apply to taxable and
ceductibe temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets and lzase liabilities, and
cecomm ssicning obligations &nd corresponding amounts recognized -as assets ab the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning cn or after Jandary 1,
2023, Early application of the amendments is parmitted.
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Amendment ta PFRS 17, "Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9—Comparative Infarmation”

The amendment is a transition option relating to comparative information about financial
assets presented on initial applicaticn of PFRS 17, The amendmeant |s aimed at helping entities
to aveid temporary sccounting migmatches between financial ascets and [nsurance contract
Habilities, and therefore Improve the wsefulness of comparative Information for users of
Francial statements.

FFRS 17 incorporating the emendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or aner anuary 1, 2025,

FFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

FFRS 17 sets out the reguirements that an entity shoukd apply in reparting information about
insurance contracts Ifissues and relnsurance contracts it Bolds. Tt sequires an entity that
Esues nsurence contracts to report them on the batance sheet as the total of the fulfilment
cash flows and the contractual service margin, It requires an entity to provide infarmation
that distinguishes two ways insurers egrn profits from Insurance contracts: the Insurance
sarvice result and the financial result. It requires an entity ko report as Insurance revenue the
amount charged for Insurance coverage when It s earned, rather than when the entity recelves
premivm. It reguires Lhat insurance revenue bo exdude the deposits thal represent the
investment of the policyholder, rather than an amount charged for services.  Similarly, it
raquires the antity to present deposit repayments as settlements of habilioes rather than as
iNSUFARCE EXPENSE.

FFRS 17 & effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.
Early application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 9 Fnancial Instruments and PFRS
15 Revanue from Conlracts with Custorners an or betore the date of indral applicabon of PFRS
17.

An entity shall apply PFRS 17 retrospectively unless impracticable, except that an entity is not
required to present the guantitative nformation required by paragraph 2B(F) of PAS B
Accowting Polfcies, Changes i Accownling Estimates and Errovs and an entity shall not apply
the apticn In paragraph B115 for perinds before the date of inifial application of PFRS 17, If,
and only If, it is impracticable, an entity shall apply =ither the modified retrospective approach
o the falr value approach.

amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Conlracts
The amendments cover the following areas.

» Insurance acquisition cash flows far remewals outside the contract boundary;

#» Reinsurgnce contracts held—onenus undesdying insurance contracts;

# Reirsurance contracts held=—underlying insurance contracts with direct participation
features; and

# Recognition of the contractual service margin in profit or loss im the general model.

The amendmenis are effective to annual reporting perdods beginning on o aRer
January 1, 2025,

3.02.02 Deferred

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contiibution of Assets belween an favestor and
s Assoddale or Jofid Venlure

The amendments clerify the treatment of the ssle or contribution of assels between an
investor and |t= associate and joint venture. This requires an Investor In its financial
staterments to recognize In full the gains and losses arising from the sale or contribution of
assets that constitute a business whila recognrize partial gains and losses if the assets do not
constitute a business (i.e. up to the extent only of unrelated investor shara).
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On January L3, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the original effective date of January 1,
2016 af the said amendments until the 1ASHE has completed its broader review of the ressarch
project on equity accounting that may result in the simpilficatien of accountlng for such
transactions and of other espeds of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

3, Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Principal accounting and financial reporticg policies applied by the Group in the preparation of
its consolicated financial statements are enumerated below and are consistently applied to all
the years presented, uniess otharwise stated,

4.01 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received ko s=ll an asset or pald or transfer a liability in an
orcerly transaction betwesn market participants at the measuremant date.

Whean measuring fair value the Group takes into consideration the characteristics of the asset
or llablity If market particpants would take those characteristics intg account when pricng the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurament assumes that the transaction to s2ll the asset or liahility is exchanged
in-am orderky transaction between market participants to sell tha asset or transfer the Habllity at
the measvrement date under current market conditions. In addition, it assumes that the
transaction bakes place either: (a) in the principsl market; or (b) In the absence of a prindpal
rmarket, in the most advantageous market,

The Group considers the fair value of an assel or a liability vsing the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liabiity, assuming that market participants act
i their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of @ non-financial asset takes into account a market particpant’s
abliity to gznerate econamic benefits by using the asset in itz highest and best use or by selling
it to ancther markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

A fair valug measurement assumes that a financial or non-Fnancial Hakility or an entity’s own
gguity instruments (e.49., equity interests issued as consileralion in g busiress combination) s
transfermed o 8 market participant at the measuremeant date. The transfer of a liability or an
enliby’s own equity instrument assumes the fallowing:

# A liability would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would be
requ red to fIr the obiligation. The Hability would net be settied with the counterparty or
octherwise extinguisked on the measurement date,

= An entity’s own eguity instrument would remam oukstanding and the market participant
transferee would take on the rights and responsibllities assodated with the msbriment,
Tha instrumant wauld not be cancelled or otherwise oxtinguished on the measurerment
date

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the arcumstances and for which
sufficient caka are avallable 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizng the use of unobservable inouts.

The far value higrarchy gives the highest priorty to guoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabllities and the [owest griority bo unobsaryvable inputs.

s level 1 mputs are quoted prices (uradjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
Iabiltics that the entity can access at the measuremeant date.

= Lleyel 2 inpuis are inputs other than gucted prices included within Level 1 that are
obsarvable far the assst or liability, either cirectly or indirectly.

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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4.02 Segment Information

An gperating ssgment is a comnponent of the Group: (a) that enoages in business activities fram
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, Induding revenues and expenses relating to
trensactions with other components of the Group; (b) whose aperating resulks are regularly
reviewed by the Group's chief operating decision maker to make declsions about resources to
be sllozated ta the segment and assess its performance; and () for which discrete financial
infermation is available,

The Group reports separately, information aboul an oparating seqgment that meets any of the
following quantitative thresholds: (a) (ts reported revenue, including hoth sales fo external
customers and inter-segment sales or trensfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenus,
internal and external, of all operating segments, pravided that: (b) the absolute amount of its
reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, In abselute amopunt, of the combined
reported prefit of all cparating segments that did not report a logs and the combinaed reportad
loss of all eperating segments that reported a loss; and (C) its assels are 10% or more of the
combined assets of all cperating segmeants.

Operatng segments that do not mest any of the guaniitatve threshoids may be considered
reportetle, and separetely disciosed, if management believes that information about the
segment would be useful to wsers of the consolidated financial statements,

The Group | currently organized Into four (4} segments namely as: Expaorts, Distribution, Retall
and Foreign Trading. These divisions are the basis on which the Group repeorts its primary

segrment information.
4.03 Financial Assets

G001 fnkeal Hecogmbion and Meéastramenit

The Group recognizes a financial asset in it consolidated statement of financal pasition when,
and anly whan, the Group becomes a party to the contractuel provisions of the instrument.

Except for trade receivables thet do not have a sigrificant financing component, at initial
recognitior, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial
asset not at fair value through proft or less, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acguisition or ssue of the financial asset.

AL initial recognition, the Group measures trade receivables that do not have a significant
financing component at their fransacton price,

= Financial Asset at Amortized Cost

& finarcial assat shall be measured 8t amortized cost if both of the following conditions are
met;

= the fingncial assat is held within & busiress model whose objective is to held financial
aszets in order to collect contractusl cash fows; ard

s the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest or the principal amount cutstanding.

The Group's financal assets measurad at amartized cost include cash in banks, trade and
ather receivable (except advances to officers and emplayees), doe from related parties, due
from stockholders and refundable deposits presented under *prepaymeants and other curment
assets’ and dezasits and cther non-cument assets.




- "lE -
&) Casn in Banks

Cash in barks include cash deposits held at call with bank that are subiect to insignificant
risk of change in value, This shall be measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash or
nther consideration expacted to be paid ar received.

Trede and other recelvables {except advances to officers and employees), dus from relstad
parties and due from stockholders are recognized initally at the transaction price and
subsecuently measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impamrment of the foregaing recevables is established when
there s objective evidence that the Parent Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due accarding to the original terms of the recsivabiles.

) Refundable Deposits

Refuncable deposits pertain to the amount surrendered to the Parent Company’s lessor as
part of tha fesse agreement. This amaunt will be refundad upon terreination of the contract.
This is measurad at armortized cost wsing the effective interest method, less any impairment,

The Group does not have financlal assets measured at falr value either through profic and
loss in bolh years.

= Financial Assel at Falr Value through Oter Comprehensive Inoome

The Group makes an imevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in
equity Instrurments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss to
present subsequent changes in fair velue through other commprebensive Income._

The Group's financial assets measured af AVYOCT pertaing to equity securities.

The Group does not have financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss in both
Y2Ars,

4. 03,03 Reclassifreation

When, and only when, the Group changes is business model for managing financial asssts,
it shall reclgssify all affected financial assets in aocordance with Mete 4.03.02. IF the Group
reclassifies financial assets, it shall apply the redassification prospectively from the reclassification
data. The Group shall net rectate any proviously recocnized gaing, losses (Including impairmant
gainz ar [nssas) or interest.

4.03.04 Effective Interest Mathod

Interest ncome = calculated by using the effective interest method. This is caiculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for: purchased
or origingted oredit-impaired financial assets and financlal assets that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired but subsequently have become credit-impaired.

4,02.05 Impairmant
The Graup measures expacked losses of a financial Instrument in a way that reflects:
= An unbiased and probability-waighteo amount that s detarmingd by avaluatiing a ranga of
possible outcomes;
The time value of money; and
Aeascnable and supportatde assumption that is avallable without undue cost or effort st the

meparting date about past events, current conditions and forecast of fulure econamic
conditions,
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The Group adopted the following approaches in accounting for impairment.

Simplified Approach

The Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount egual to lifetime expected
creclit osses for trade receivables. The Group determinas that a financial asset is credit-
impaired when one orf more events that heve a detrimental impact an the estimated futura
cazh flaws of that financial asset have occurred. Eviderce that a financial asset is credit-
impalred includes observable data about the following events:

»  Significant financial difficulty of the counmerparty
= A breach of contract, soch 25 a defau't or past due event;

«  Thea lender(s) of the countergarty, for econamic or contraclual reéasons relaling Lo
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty 3
cancessionis) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; and

= It B becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or cther financial
reosrgankzation,

General Approach

The Group applies general approach fo cash in kanks, other receivables (except advances
to officers and employees), due from related sarties, due from stackholders and refundable
deposit presented undar ‘prepayments and other curreat assets’ and deposits and other
non-current assets. At each reporting date, the Group measures the loss allowance for a
financial asset at an amaunt equal to the lifetime expected credit logses if the credit risk on
that firanclial asset has increased sign ficantly since Initial recognition. However, If the credit
risk has not increased significantly, the Group measures the loss allowance equal o 12-
mionth expected credil losses.

The Group compares the risk of default occurring as at the reporting dabe with the risk of a
default ocourring @5 at the date of initial recocnition and consider the macro-economic
factors such as GDP, interast, and inflation rates, the performance of the counterparties’
industry, that is available without undue cost or effort, to determine whether there s a
significant increase in credit rist or not since initial recognition.

The Group detarmines that there has been a significant Increase in credit risk when there is
a significant deding in the factors, The Group assumes thot the credit risk on cash in banks
nas not mcreased significantly since mitial recognition because the financial mstrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.

The Group did not apply the 30 days past due rebuttable sresumption because based on the
Company’s historical expedence, credit fsk hgs not incressed significantly even the amounts
are past due for more than 30 days.

If the Group Ras measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to Gfetime expocted cradit
insses i the previous reporting penod, but ceterminas akb the current reporting date, that
the credit guality improves (1.e., there 15 no longear a significant inoreasa incredit risk since
mitial recognition), then the Company shall measure thea loss allowance at an amount eqeal
fo 12-manth expected credit Isses at the current repoarting date.

The Graup recognizes in profit or less, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss sllowance at the reporting date,

The Group parforms the assessment of sigrificant ncreases in credit sk on an individual
basis by considering information that is indicative of significart increases in credit risk.
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The Group did not apply the 90 days past duz rebuttable presumption in determining
whathar & Ninanclal asset s credit impalred and considers a financial asset in default
when contractusl payments are S0 days past due, Howewver, In certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in cefeult when internal or external
information indicates that the Group Is unlikely to recelve the cutstanding contractual
amourks in fuil before taking intc-account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

The Group determines that a finencial asset |s credit-impalred when one or more events
thet have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of thet finandal asset
have occurred. Evidence that & financial asset is credit- mpaired includes cbservabie data
abaut the following events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the countarparty;
« A breach of contract, such as a defau't ar past due event;

s« The lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the bormower a
concessiaon(s) that the lender{s) wou'd not otherwise considar: and

« It i5 becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptoy or other
finandal recrganization.

4. 03.06 Derecogribmn

The Group derecognizes a fimancial assat when, and only when the cantractual rights to the cash
Mows of the inancial asset oxpire or it transfers the fnandal asset and the transfer qualifies for
deracogrition. The difference between the carmying amount and the consideration recewved i
recognized in profit or [oss.

4 7 Write-

The Group directly raduces the gross carrving amount of a financial asset whean the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety ora portion thereof. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event.

4.04 Prepayvments and Othar Current Assets

Frepaymeants represent expensas not yet incurred but already paid in cash. These are initially
recorded as assets and measurad at the amount of cash paid. Subsequentiy, these are charged
to profit or loss as they are consumead in operations or expire through passage aof time.

These are classified in the consolidsted statement of Aivanaal position as current assets when the
expanses gre expedcted to be incurred within one (1) year or the Group's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are cassified as other non-current assets,

) [
Input VAT arizes from the purchase of goods ar servicas,
For regular sales, input VAT is applied against output YAT, The remaining bafance Is recoversble

in future periods. This is carmied at cost |less allowance for imgaimnent loss, If any. [mpairment
loss is recognized when Input VAT can ne longer be recovenad,

For zero rated sales, input VAT is initially recorded as an asset and measured at the amount of
cash paid. Subseguently, the Graup may apply witkin two (2] vears after the close of the tazable
quarter when such sale was made for tha tax refund of creditable input tax due or paid attributable
to sales that are zero-rited or effectively rero-rated
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4,04 .03 Advances o Euppﬁer';

Advances to suppliers represent amount paid in advance for goods or services that are yet to be
delvered and from which future economic Zenslits are expectad to flow o the Group within the
mormal operating cycle or within bwelve [12) months from the financial reparting date. These are
initially racorded at actual cash advanced and are subsaquently apolied against subsequent asset
purchazes, msks or axpensas incumed,

4,05 Interests in Joint Arrangement

A joint errangement is 8 conktractual arrangement whereby the Group and cther parties have
agresed sharlng of control of an arrangement, which sxist only when decisions about relevant
activities reguire the unanimous consent of the parties sharing. The shanng of cantrol is also
known as joint control. A joint-amangement can eltherbe & joint venture or a joink operaticn,

4.05.04 Joint Venturs

A joint venture is a joint armangement whereby the Group and cther partias that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group reports Its
intarests in a joint venture using equity method, except whan the investmant s classiflad as held
for =sale, In which case it (3 accounted for |r  accordance with PFRS 5,
Non=current Assels Held fov Sale and Disconbinied Operations.,

The Groug ducounts the investiment under tie cost method. The Group recognices as inceme the
divicends recelved that are distribubed from net accumulated eamings of the investee since the
date of acquisition by the investor. Dividends received that are in excess of the eamings
subsequent to the date of acguisition are not income and therefore considered as returm or
reduction of investrment,

The requirements of PFRS 9 are applied to determine whether it is necessary o recognize any
Impairment loss with respect to the Group's Investment in joint venture, When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (ncluding goodwill) is eested far impairment in
accordance with PAS 36 Irnpainment of Assels as a zingle asset by companng its recoverables
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs ta sell) with s carrying amount.
Any impairment nss recognized forms part of the casrying amaent of the mvestment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with PAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
arnount of the investment subsequently incraazes.

4.06 Inventarias
Inventories are initially recordes at cost, Subsequent to initial recaegnition, inventories are stated

ab lower of cost and net reallzable value (NRY). Costs incurred In bringiog esch product to its
present location and condition is-accounted for as follows:

Property for sale - at construction cost
Merchandise, Fumiture gnd appliances - at purchasa price on a first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method
Agricultural praduce, beverzges and - -at purchase price on a FIFO method
vegan products
Packaging matarials and other supplies - at purchass cost an a FIFO method

KRV of finished goods Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary courss of bDusiness,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to sell. For property for sale, NRY is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business, basad on market prices at the
reporting dabte, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs of sale,
For packaging materials and other supplies, NRV is the current replacement cost. [nventaries arg
classified as current when they are expected to e ~ealized within the normal eperating cyvcle.
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Cost af property for sale includes:
= Landcost,
= Land improverment cost;
= Amounts paid to contractors for construction and development; and
= Planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees, property transfar
taxes, construction overheads and other related costs

Provision for inventory loss |s established for estimated losses on inventories which are determined
based on specific identification of slow-moving, damaged and obsclete Inventories and charged to
operations.

Inventories are derecognized when sold. The carrying amount of Inventodes sold Is recagnized as
an expense and reported under cost of sales in profit or loss in the period 0 which the related
revenue is recognized.

YWhen the circumstances that praviously caused Inventories to be Impaired na longer exlst or whan
there Is clear evidence of an increase in salling price less costs to complete and sell because of
changed 5 econemic arcumstances, a reversal of the impairment s recognized so that the new
carrying amount i5 the lower of the cost amd the revised s2lling price less costs o complete and
w3l Any impairment reversal 5 recognized in profit or loss but s lmited to the amount of the
original impsirment 'oss recogrized.

Vihen inventories ars sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized 2s an exXpense
in the period in which the related revenue is recogrized.

4.07 Business Combination

The Group aaplies the standard on business combinatian under PFRS 3 as amended and adopted
in 2009, The standard mlines the acoounting when: an acquirer nhtains contral of a husiness
(2.9, acquistion or merger), Such busingss combirations are 2ccounted for using the “acquisition
method”, which generally requires assets acquined and lablivies assumead 1o be measured at thelr
fair values at date of acquisition.

FFES 3 seeks to enhancea the relevance, reliability and comparability of infarmation provided about
husiness combinations {&.0., acquisition and mergers) and the r effects. Tt sets out the principles
on the recognition and measurement of acquirec assets and liabilitles, the detarmination of
goodwill and the necessary disclosuras.

In determining whether a transaction Is a business combination, PFRS 3 provides additienal

guidance on detarmining whether & transaction maets the defimton of & business combinaton

and accounted for in accordance with its requirsments. This guidance includes:

= Business combinaticns can occur in warlous ways such as by transferring cash, Including
liabiities, issuing equity mstrument (or any combination thereof), or by not issuing
conside-ation at all {i.e,, by contract alone); and

- Business combinations can be structured in various ways to satishy legal, taxation ar other
olxjectives, ncluding one antity becoming a subsidiary of anather, the transfer of net assels
from one entity to another or to new entity;

The busmes:s combination must involve the acguisition-of a business, which generally has three

elemants:

. Inputs = an economic resource (a.4., non-current asssts, intellectual proparty) that craates
outputs when one or more processes are appliad W i

=  Process — a system standard, protocol, convention or rule that when applied to an nput or
inpuis, creabes outpuis (e.g., sirategic management, operational processes, resource
managemeant); and

- Curtpiit - the result of inputs and processes applied o those input.




-
4.07.01 Acguisition Method

In every acquisition of busingss, the Group determines the acquisition date, recognize and
measures all identifiable assets acquired, the labilites assumec and non=-contralling interest (NCT,
farmerly callad minonty interest) in the Acquires, and determires if there is goodwill or gain fram
a bamain purchase if applicable.

The Group recoonizes the acquisition date as the date on which the Group obtains control cver
the acquires,. Generally, this 15 the date on which the Group legally transfer the consideratian,
acrulres the assets and assurmes the liabllitles of the acquiree - the closing date. However, the
Group as the acquirer may obtaln control o a date that is gither garlier or later than the cosing
date depand ng on what was agreed upon with the acgulres,

In recognizing and measuring the ldentifiable assets acquired, the fiabilties assumed and any
non-controllimg interest In the acquiree, the Group abserves the definition of assets and llabilities
in accardance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presantation of Financial Statements
at the acquisition date. Identifizble assets ecquired and liabllities assumed are measurad at thelr
acusition-date fair values.

On Income taxes, the Group recognizes and measures & deferred tax assetor labilicy arising from
the essets acguired and libilities assumed in accordance with PAS 12 while the skandard under
PAS 19 is relied on far employee benefits.

The Group recognizes and measures goodwill In accordance with PFRS 3, as the difference
betwoen:

= Aggregate of {1} the value of the considaration transfarred {generally at fair value), (2) the
amount of 2ny non-controlling interest in the acquires, and (3) in a business combination
achleved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's previously held aguity
interest in the acguires, and

" The net of the acquisition-date amounts of the dentifiable asselts acguired and the liabilities
assumed (measured n accordance with PFRS 3),

L0702 Conaulidalion

The consolidated finandal statements indude the financial statements of {he Group and its
subsidiaries.

The consolidated finandal statements incorporate the finandal statements of the Parent and the
entities controlled by the Parent (s subsidianes) up to Decembear 31 of each year. Control is
achigved wh=n the Parent has exposura ar rights, ta varigble retums from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affact those retums through its power aver an investea. In

assessing conliol, polential voling vights thal ane presently exercisable or converlible are Caken
Inta accowint

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date when contral is transferred to the Parent and ceases to
be consolidazed from the data when contral is trancsferned out of the Parant.

4.07.03 Megsyremant

The assets and liablities and the contingert liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair
values al the date of acguisition. Any excess of the cost of acouisition over the fair values of the
assets acquired = recognized as goodwill. &ny deficiency of the cost of acguisition below the fair
valugs of the identifizbie net assets acquired (i.e, discount on acguisition) is credited to the profit
and loss in the period of acquisition,

4.07.04 Goodwil

Googwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of fair value of the
consideration transfarred and the amount recogmized for non-controlling interest over the net
jdentifizble assets acquired and liabilities assumed. IF this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acguired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss.
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After init/al recognition, geodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For
the purposs of Impafrment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acuicition dote, allocated to cach of tho Group’s cash-goenerating units {(CGLU) that am ecxpected
to benefit from the combination, Irrespective of whether ather assets ar liabilities of the acquire
are gsshgned to those units,

4 0705 [nte--group Balances

The consolidated financial staterments are prepared using uniform 2ocounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.  Tnter-group balances and transactions,
Including Inter-group profits and unreatizec profits and losses, are séliminared. When necessary,
acjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring the accounting policies
used in line with those used by the Group All inter-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminztes during consalidation.

4.07.06 Loss of Conitrol

Upan the loss of control, the Group derecogrizes the assets and lisbilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus
or deficlt arising on the loss of controls is recognized in profit or loss.  If the Group retains any
interest In the previous subsldlary, then such interest Is measured at falr value at the date the
control is lost. Subsequently, it is accountad for as entity -accounted investee or as financial assets
at FVTHPL or FYLICT depending on the level of influence retained.

4.08 Investment Property

Investment property comprises properties under construction or redevelopments that are held to
eam rentals or capital appraciation or both and that are not accupied by the companies in the
Group. These are measured initially at ts cost, including trarsaction costs. Subsequent to Initlal
recognition, Investment property |5 measured at its falr value In 2021 while at cost ess
accumulated deprecation and impairment loss in 2320,

Investment property is eocounted for under the fair value model. Fair velue s supported by markeat
avidence and is determined by independent appraisers with sufficiant experlance with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investmeant property.

Any gain or loss resulting from elther a change in the falr value or the sale or retirement of an
investment progerty is immediately recogrized in profil or loss as falr value gains {losses) from
investment property under the other income in the separate statements of comprehensive income,

Investmant property 5 derecognized upon digposal or when permanantly withdrawn fram use and
no future ecoromic benefits are expected from its disposal,

A transfer Is made to Investment property when there Is a chance In use, evidenced by ending of
owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease ta ancther party or ending of
canstruction or development. & transfer Is made from investment prooerty when and only when
there Is & chang2 in use, evidenced by commencement of Dwaer-oCooupation or Commencermant
of development with a view o sake. A transfer between investment property, owner-occupied
property and invantory does not change the camying amount of the property transferred nor does
it change the cost of that property for measurement or disdosure purposes.

4.09 Property and Equipment

Froperty and equipment are initially measurad at cost, The cost of an asset consists of its purchase
price and costs directly attributable to bringing the assst (o its working condition for its intended
use. Subsequent to initial recognition property and equipment are carrizd 2t revalued amount iess
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.



.llg.

Subsaquent expenditures relating to an item of property and eguipment that have already been
recignized are added (o the carrying amount of the asset when it Is probalde thal future econmmic
benafits, In excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
fiow to the Group. All other subseguent expenditures are recognized as expenses in the period in
which these are Incurred.

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at thelr
revalued amounts, belng the fair value at the date of revaiuation, determined from market-based
evidence by appralsal undertaken by professional appraisers, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subseguert accumulated Impairment losses. Revalustions are performed with
sufficient recularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materaltly from that which would
b determined using foir values ot the énd of the repording perod,

Any revaluaton Increasse arlsing on the revaluation of such property and cquipment s credited to
the properties revaluation surplus, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decreasa for
the same asset previously recognized as an expenss, o which case the increase is-cradited to the
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previoushy charged. A decrease in carmying amount
arising on the revaluabion of such revalued assets & charged as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus refating to a previous revaluation of
those assets. Revaluation surplus is transferred directly to retalned eamings as the asset 5 being
wsed by the Group.

Land is not depreciated. Dapreciation is computed an the straight-fine method based an the
estimatad useful lives of the assets as follows!

Building 1% years
Delivery and transportation eqguipment 3 1o 17 years
Machinery and equipment 3t 12 years
Office furniture and fixtures Jio 12 yeais
Store and warehouse equipmeant 3 o5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter between the |Improvemeants’ usaful life
of five (5) years or the |lease term,

Properties in the course of construction for production are carried at cost less any recognized
impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as othsr property assets,
commences ahen the assets are ready for ther intended use,

Bearer plants are living planis that are used in the production or supply of agricultural produce
over a severdl periods and has 8 remote likelibood of being sold &5 agricultural produce, except
for incidents’ scrap sales.

The propzriy ond eguipmeant’s reaidual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a ssgnitficant chkange since the
last reporting date.

Cepreciation on revalued assetsis charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revaluad progerty, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluaton reserva
iz transferred directly to retained earnings.

An item af property and equipment s derecagmized on dispasal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal ar retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales sroceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized In profit or loss.
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4.10 Intangible Assets

Intangivle assets acguired separately are measurad on inibal recognition at cost, The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination 15 thelr fair value at the date of acquisiton.
Following irntial recogmtion, intangible sssets are carmed ab cost lé=se any accumulsted

amprtization and accumulated impalirment losses,
The useful lives of intangible assels are-assassed as either finite or indefirte.

Intangible asseks with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Tha
arnortizabion pered and the amortization methad for an inkanoibie assat with a brike useful hfe
dare revhewed at least at the end of each resorting period, Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the azset are
considered o modify the amortization period or method, as aporopriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates, The amortization expense on Intangible assets with finlte llves
is recognized in the consolidated statements of profit or lose as the expense catagory that is
consstent wth the function of the intangible assets,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are rot amartized, but are tested for impairment
annually, elther individually or 20 the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinice life
i5 reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite iife continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite s made on a prospectve basis.

Gaims or lasses arising from derecognition of an (ntangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carryvirg amount of the asset and are recognized in
the consclidated profit or loss whan the asset is derecognized.

10N Traremank

Trademarks acquired separately are initfally recognized at cost, Following initial recogniton,
trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. The
Group assesses for impalrment whenever there is an incication that these assets may be impaired,

The Group has assessed that certain frademark acquired in a business comnnation in the past
has indefinite usefu! lives, this are not amortized, but tested for impajrment annually, eithar
individually or at the cash-penerating unit level, The asssssment of indsfinite life s reviewed
anniually o detarmine whether the indefinite life continues to be suppartzble. IF not, the change
in useful life from Indefinite to finite is made on a prosgective basis.

The remaining trademark at current year has finite useful life and is amortized over straight-ling
basis ovar Iks estimated useful life of twenty (20 years., The amaortization period and the
amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes In the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumpton of future economic benefits embeodied in the
asset Is accounted for by changlng the amortization peried or method, as appropriote, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized in the
consalidzted profit or loss under "Depreciation and amortization™ account in the expenses category
consstent with the function of the intangiblz asset.

4.10.02 Goodw

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration of an acguisition over the fair value
of tha Group's share of the net identifiable assets acquired at thie date af acquisition. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more fregquently ([ events or changes in circumsiances indicate
that might be impaired, and is cartied at cost lesz accumulatad mpairment losses, if any. Any
impairment losses recognized for goodwill 8re not subsequently reversed. Gaing and losses on the
dispoeal of an entiky inciude the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Goodwill is zllocatec to cash-generating urits for the purposs of impairmant testing. When the
recoverable amount of cash-genarating units Is less than the carmying amaunt, &n impalrment loss
s recognized. The Group performs its Impalrment testing at the reporting date using a value-in-
use, discouniad cash Aow methodology.

. 1003 Franchise

The Group recognizes franchise as part of its intangible asseis when the franchise produces
revenue o the Group and the cost is measurahle. Ab initial recognition, franchise is valued at cast
which i the amount incurred in acquiring the franchise. Franchice whose life has been determined
to he finite is amortized over the years identified. IF the |ife of the franchise is determined to be
indefinite, such franchise is not amortized but tested for impeirment. Franchise is derecogniced
upon salz or retirement. The differenca betwean the carrying value and the proceeds shall be
recognized In the consalidated statements of profit or oss. Franchise |s amortized on a stralght-
line basis avar its estimated useful Ffe of ten (10} years.

4. 1004 Compuiter soffwarne

Computer software acguired separately are measured on initlal recognition at cost, The initial cost
of computer software consists of s purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directhy
aktributanle cost of bringing the assets to its working condition and iocation for intended use,
Subssquently, computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Mequired computer software is capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring ta
use the specific software. Computer software s amortized on a straight-line basis aver its
estimated vseful life af five (5) years. Costs associsted with the devalopment or maintenance of
software cost programs are recogrized as expense when incurred in the Group's consolidated
statements of peofit or loss. Software cost 15 derecognized vpon disposal or when noe future
economic benefits are expecied to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the Group’s consolidated stalements of profit
or loss in the year of derecognition.

4,11 Deposits and Investments

4.11.81 Depasit for Land Acguisitien

Cepesit for land acquisition which represents mainly the usufruct rights over @ properiy are initially
stated at actual amount paid and subsequently recognizad at cost less any impalrment,

4.11.02 Deposit for Business Acquisitions

Ceposit for business acquisitions which are paid in visw of call for the future investments are
initiall v stated al actual amgunt pald and subsaguentiy recognized ab cost less any impairmeart.

471103 Adw. WErs

Advances to producers pertaln bo advances made for the initial cost of cultivation and development
of farm lots owned by third-party. This is irtmally stated at actual amount paid and subsegquently
recognized at cost less any impairment.

4.11.04 Aovances o Arofects

Advances to prolects pertains to unliguidated expenditures made for the processing fees In
connection with the investmant of the Group to a foreign company. This is nitlaily stated at actual
drnount paid and subsequently recogmized at cost less any impaloment,
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4.12 Impairment of Assats

At egch reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that any assets other
than inventcries, biclogical assets, deferned tax assets and financial assets that are within tho
scope af PFRS 9, Fnancial Instroments may have suffered an impairment loss. IF any such
indication exisis, the recoverable amount of the asset s estimated in order to determine the extent
of tha impairment lass, if any. Whera it 15 not passible ta estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the zgcet belongs.

¥hen a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be Identified, assets are also allocated
to indivicual cash-generating urits, or atherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cesh-
generating units for which a reasonable ang consistent allocation basis can be identified.,

Intangible asset with indefinite useful fife is bested for impainment annually, and whenever there
Iz an indication that the assat may be Impairad.

Recoversile amount s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Tn'assessing
valug 0 use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present valus using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted,

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its

carrying amaunt, the carmying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit s reduced to its
racovaradle amount. An impairment loss s recognized as an axpense.

Yhen an impairment loss subsequently reversas, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased to the revised sstimate of [ts recoverable amount, but the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impalrmant [oss been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit In prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss |5 recognized as income,

4,13 Biclogical Assets

Biological assets or agricultural produce are recognized only when the Group controls the assets
as a result of past events, it is probable thet future economic benefits associated with the asseks
will Fow £o the entity; and the fair value or cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

The Group measures its biological @ssets on milial recognition and at each reporting date at their
falr value less estimated costs ta sall. Estimated costs to sell indude commissions to brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and commodity exchanges, and transfer tazes and dutkas,

Farvested agricultural produce are also camried at fair value less estimated costs o sell at the
point of harviest.,

The Group dassifies its biological assets between consumable and bearer biological assets,
Conmmahble bialagical assets are those that are to be harvested as agrcultural produce ar sold
as biological assets. The Group further classifies s bearer bislogical assals between mature or
immature Diological assets.

=ains or losses &rising an initial recognition of 3 bislogical asset at fair value less estimated costs
to seil and from a charge in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset are included
in prafit or loss for the period in which they arise.

4.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the pericd in which they are incurmed,
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4.15 Financial Liahilities

. 15.01 initial Recognition and Measurement

The Group shall recognize a financial liabiity in its consolidated stetement of finandal position
wher, and only when, the entity becornes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, the Group shall measure a financial liability at its fair value minus, in the
cage of financial llablity not at fair velue through profit or loss, trensaction costs thet are directly
aktriputable to the acouisition or issue of the lability.
1§ 5.07 Classificati
The Group shall classify all financial labllities as subsequently measured at amortized, except for:
v  financial liabiities at fair value through prafit or loss,

# financial llabilties that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvemeant approach applies;

» financial guarantee contracks;
« commibtments o provide a loan &t a below-market interest rate;
« contingent consideration recognized Ly an -2cquirer in a business combination.

The Group's fnanclal llabilizies measured at amortized cost include trade and other payabies
{excluding customers” depasit and government payables), loans payable, lease llahilites and due
to releted parties,

The Group does not have financial labllities at falr value through prafit or [oes in both vears,

4.15.03 Derscoanition

The Farent Company removes a financial Hazility { or part of a finandal liabiity) from its staberment
of finangal position when, and only when, it s exbinguished (le., when the obligation in the
cantract 15 discharged or cancelled or expires).

The difference betwean the carrying amourt of a financial liab ity {or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
nofi-cash assets transferred or labilities assumed, © recognized in profit or loss.

4,16 Contract Liability

A contract liagility is the obligation to transfer goods or services ta & customer for which the
Group has received consideration {or an amount of considaration is due) from the customer, IF
a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services ta the customer, a
contract liablity is recogrized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier), Cortract liabiliies are recogmized as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

The contract liabilities alzo include payments received by the Group from the customers for which
revenue recognition has not yet commenced.

4, 16.01 Costs fo afdain contract

The incremental oosis of obtaining a contract with a customer are recognized as an 2sset if the
Group expects to recover them, The Group has determined that commissions paid to brokers and
marketing agents on the sa'e of pre-complated rasl estate units are deferrad when recovery is
reasonably expectec and are chargad o expense inthe period in which the related revenug is
recogrized as earned. Commission expense is Included in the "Real estate oosts and expenses”
acoount in the consclidated statement of comprehensive (ncome.

Costs incurred prior to cbtaining contradh with customer are not capltalized but are expensed as
incurred.
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4. 16.02 Amortization, derecognition and impaimnent of capitaieed costs to obtain a confract

The Group amortizes capitalized costs to cbtain a cortract o cost of sales over the expected
construction peviod using percentage of completron following the pattern of real sstate revenue
recognition. The amartization is included within cost of sales,

A capitalzed cost to obtaln a contract is derecognized either when it B disposed of or when no
further economic benefits ara expected to flow from its use or disposal.

At esch reporting date, the Group determines whether there Is an indication that cost to obtain
acontract maybe impaired. If such indication exicts, the Group makes an estimate by comparing
the carrying amaunt of thie assets to the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
ecpects to receive less the costs that relate b2 providing services under the relevant contract, In
determining the estimated amount of consideration, the Grovp uses the same principles as it
does to determine the contract transaction price, except that any constralnts used to reduce the
transaction price will be removed for the impalrmant test.

Vihera the melevant costs or specific performance obligaticns are demonstrating marginal
profitabliity or other indicators of impairment, judament is requirad In ascartaining whether ar
not the future econcmic benefits from these contracts are sufficlent to recover these assets. In
performing this impairment assessment, management s reguired to make an gssessment of the
costs to complete the contract, The ability to accurately forecast such costs involves estimates
around cost savings to be achigved over time, anticipated profitability of the contract, as well as
future performance against any contract specific perfformance indicators that could trigger
vanable consideraticn, or service credits,

Vihiere a contract is anticipated to make a loss, thess judaments are also relavant in detarminirg
whether or not an orerous contract provision is reguired and how this is to be measured.
4,17 Equity Instruments

Amoequity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an ertity
after dedycting all of its abllities. Equity Instruments Issued by the Group are recognized at the
proceads received, ret of direct issue costs

Croinary shares are classified as equity.

Additionzl paid-in capitel represents the proceeds andlor fair value of consideration received in
excess of the par value of the shares-issued.

4.18 Employes Benefits

4.18.01 Shoit-term Benefits

The Group recognizes a lability, net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered
vy employees durirg the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Group to ks
employees include salaries and wages, diract labar, 555, HDMF, PhilHealth employer contributions
and 13 month pay.

4.18 02 Post-empiownent Benefife

The Group has an  onfundsd, non-contributory defined benefit  retirement  plan.
This benefit defines an amaunt of pension benefit that an emplayee will receive on retirement,
usuaily dependent o one or more factors such as age, years cf service and compensation.
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The cost of praviding bensfits is determined using the Projected Unit Cradit Mathod (PUCM) which
refllects serveces rendeied by employees to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions
concerning emplovees’ projected salaries. Post-employment expenses Include current servica
cost, past service cost, and net interest on defined Zenefit asset/hability. Remeasurements which
Include comulative actuarial gains and losses return on plan assets, and changes In the effects of
asset ceiling are recognized directly in other comprehensive income and are also presented under
exjuity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Actuarial galns anc losses . arsing from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial
assurnptions are charged or credited to eguity In other comprehensive income in the perked in
which they arise,

Past-service cosis are recognized immediataly in profit or loss,

The lzbility reccgnized in the consolidated statement of finarcial position In respect of defined
banefit pension plans is the present value of the accrued reti-ament benefits at the end of the
reporting perlod. The accrued retirement benefits is caloulated annually by an independent actuary
wsing the PUCH. The presant value of the accrued retirement benefils is determined by discounting
the estimated fufure cash cutlows using interest rates based on the market yiglds on governiment
bonds 2= of the valuation dates that have termes o matunty approximating to the terms of the
redated penson obliigation,

The Group's retirernerst plan is still anfunded, benefit claims under the plan are paid directly by
the Group when they become due.

4,19 Provisions and Contingent Assat

Provisions are recognized whan the Group has a present obligation, whather legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, [t is probable that the Group will he required to settie the abligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ohligation.

The amount recogrized as a8 provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking inte account the risks and
uncertainties surmounding the obligation, Where a provision B measured wsing the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

Vihen z=ome or all of the acormamic benefite reguined to settle a provision are expected to he
recoverad from a third party, & recelvable is recognized as an asset if it s virtually certain thak
reimbursemeant will be received and the amount of the recelvable can be measured retlably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best estimate,
F il 1t Lialanit
Contingerit liabilities ard assets are not recognized beceuse ther existence will be confirmed anly

by the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events not wholly within
the cantrel of the Group.

Contingent liabilties are disciosed, unless the possibility of an autflow of resources embodying
ecanamic benefits is remabe,

Contmaent assets are disclosed only when an inflow of econormic banefits 15 probabla.
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4.20 Revenue Recognition

Revenuea is recognized to the exient that it s prebable that the economic benefits will flow Lo the
Group and the revenue related cost incunmed or to be iccurred/costs to complete the transactions
can he rebably measured. The Group assesces (IS revenuse arrangemeants against specfic critena
in order o determing iF It is acting as a principal ar agent. The Group has concuded that it is
acting #s 2 princpal in all of its revenue arrangements . Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or recelvable taking inte account any trade dlscounts, prompt
sottfameant of discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Group, IT any. Reveanue excludes any
value added tax,

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance abligation by
transferring a promised good or service {l.e. asset) to a customer, An asset 5 transferred when
(or as) the cistomer obtatns control of that asset.

4. 20,01 Aevenue Contracts with Cuslomers

The Group recognizes revenue o depict the transter of promisad goods or services Lo the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitied In exchange
for those goods or services. The Group apphes the ollcwing five (5] steps;

1. Identify the contract{=) with a customes;

2. Identily the perfarmance obiigations in the contract, Perfonmance obligalions are promises in
2 contract to transfer to a cestomer goods or services that are distinct;

3. Dotermine the transaction price. The Eransaction price is the amount of conzideration to which
an entity expects to be entitied in exchange for transferring promised goods or services (o a
customer, If the consideration promised in a contrack includes a variable amount, an entity
miist esfimane the amotint of consideration to which it expacts to be entitled in exchange for
transfarring the promised goods or services to & customer;

4. Allocate the transaction price to each performance obiigation on the basis af the relative stand-
glone sefling prices of each distinct good or service promised in the contract;

5. Recogrize revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring 2 promised good
or service to a customer (which ks when the customer abtains control of that good or service).
& performance obligation may ba satisfied at a point in time (bypically for promises to transter
oocods o a customer) or gver time {(fypecally for promises (o transfer services to a customer).
For a performance oblgation satisfied over time, an entity would select an appropnate
measure of progress o determine how much revenue should be recognized as the
performance obligabon 15 satisfied,

4.20.02 S3e of gaods

Fewenue from the ssle of goods in the ordingry course of business is messured at the fair velue
of the consideration necebved or recaivable, net of meturns, trade discounts and volume rebates.
The revenue from the sale of goods is recognized upen delivery of the goods when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer,

4. 20.03 Reai estate sales

The Group derives itz real estate revenue from sale of residental and commercial units, Revenus
from the sale of these real estate projects under pre-completion stage are recognized over trme
during the monstruction perod (or percentage of completion) since based on the terms and
conditions of its contract with the buyers, the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an aklternative use and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for perfarmance completed
to date.

In rmeasuring the progress of its performance obligation oves time, the Group uses the input
mrethod. The Group recognizes revenus on the basls of the efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
a performance obligation (rescurces consumed, laber hours expended, costs incurred) relative to
the total expacted inputs to the satisfaction of that serformanca obligation.
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fAny excess of progress of waork over the right to an amaunt of consideration that is unconditional,
recocnized as residential and office developmeant recelvables, under trade recelvabiles, s included
In the “contract asset” asccount In the asset section of the consolldated statements of financial
position.

Any excess of collections over the tolal of recognized trade receivables and contract assets is
ircluded in the "contract liabilities” account in the lizbilities section of the consolidated statements
of financlal pasitian,

4. 20.04 Cost recogmition

The Group recognizes costs refating Lo satisfad performance obligations as these are Incurred
taking into consdleration the contract fulfillment assets such as connection fees. These include
costs of land, lard development costs, building costs, professional fees, depreciation, permits and
lieenses and capitalized borrowing casts. These costs o allocated to the saloabie arca, with the
portion allocable to the sold aree beng recognized as costs of sales while the portion allocable to
the unsold area being recognized as part of real estate Inventories,

Cantract cosis Include all direct matertals and lebor costs and those ndirect costs related (o
contract performance. Expected losses or contracks are recognized immechately when it is
probabls that the total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, Changes in contract
performance, contract conditions and estimated profitability, induding those arising from contract

penalty provisions, and final contract settlements which may result in revisions to estimated costs
and gross marging are recognized in the vear in which the changes are determined.

4.20.05 Service incame

Seryice income is recognized to the extent of actual services deliverad during the period.

4.20.0G Fracchise

Franchise fees may cover the supply of initial and subsequent services, equipment and other
tengibie assets, and know-haw. Accordingly, franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a basis
that refiects the purpose for which the fees were charged, Fees charged for thi wse of continuing
rights granted by the agreement, or for other services provided during the period of the
ayreement, are recognized &5 revenue as the services dre provided or the rights used,

420,07 Royalty
Rayaly is recognized on an accrial basis in accordance with substance of the relevant agreement.

Rantal income is recognized in the profit or ings on a straioht-line basis over the [Base term.

4. 20.09 Gair from Sale of Froperty and Equipment

Hzalized gains and Icsses are recognized when the sale fransachion ooCurs.

4. 2010 [nferest Incame

Interest income is recognized using the effective Interest methad on a time proportion basis that
reflects the effective yleld on the assets.

4. A0 1] Other [ncovme

Chher incoma is recognized when the related income (£ earned on an accrusl basis in accordance
with the relevant struciure of transaction or agreemeants
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4.21 Expense Recognition

BEdpense encompasses (05585 as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary
activities of the Parent Company.

The Group recoonizes expenses in the censolidated statement of comprehensive inoome when a
dacrease in future economic benefits related (o a decreass in an asset or an increase of a liablity
has arsen that can be measured rakably.

4.22 Leaacas

d. 2200 Mhe Houp as Lessor

Rental Income from pperating leases is recognized on 8 stralght-line basis over the term of the
redevant lease. Initial direct coste incumed in negetiabing and arranging an operating lease arg
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a stralght-line basis over the
lease term,

4.22.02 The Group as a Lesses

A lease is defined as ' contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset] for a perod of time in exchanoe for consideration”

To apply this definition the Group assesses wheother the contract mests three key svaluations
which are whether:

8. the contract contains an lcentifled asset, which Is elther explicitly ldentifled In the contract
or implicitly specified by being identified ac the Ume the assel is made avalleble Lo the
Group

E. the Group has the rght 1o obtaln susstantially 21l of the economic banefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of wse, considering its rights within the defined
scops of the contrack

c. the Group has the right to direct the use of the identifed asset throughout the period of
use. The Group assess whether it has the right to direct “how and far what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

Bight-of-Use (ROU) Asset
Mt the commencament date, the Group measures the ROU asset at cost, which comprises of;
= Initial measuremeant of the lease llability;

s any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, l=ss any incenbives
received;
= 2ny initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

« 2n estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee n dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition reguired by the terms and conditions of the lease, unlass those costs are
incurred to produce inventories, The Group incars the abligation for those costs either at
the commencemant date or as a consequerce of having used the underlying asset during
& particular period,

Subsaguent bo initial recogmition, ROU asset is carmed at cost ‘ess accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses,

The Group depreciates the ROU asset on a straight-line basis from the lease cammencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of the lease termn, The Group
also aszesses the ROU aszet for impairment whan such indicators exist,

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing ROU asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these
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are racognized a5 an expanse in profit or loss on a straight-line hasis over the l2ase term.

ROU asset is presented as & separate line itém on the consclidated statement of financial pasitan.

! Liabili
At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease llabllity 8t the present value of the

lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the kease i that
rate |s readlly available or If not, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate.

A the commencemeant date, tha lease payments Included in the measurement of the laase liability
comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement dala:

e«  [xad payments (ncduding li-substance fixed payviments), less any incentives recelvable;

= warieble lease payments that depend on an index or a rats, initially measured using the
index or rate a5 at the commencement date:

» amounts expected o be payable by the lessee under the residual value guarantees;

= ihe exercise price of a purchase option IF the lesses s reasonaoly certain to exercise that
ooticn; and

= payments of penalbes for terminating the lease, f the kease term reflects the lessee
exarcising ar option o terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease hability by
= increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lsase Hability,
o radusing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payvments made; and

= remeasuring the carrying amaunt to reflact any reassessment or leadse madifications or to
reflect in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Graup recognizes the amount of remeasurerment of the lease llabilicy 25 an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. Howsver, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use azsert is reduced bo zero
and there is further reduction in the measurement of the lease liakiity, the Group recognizes any
remaining amount of the remeasuremsant in profit or loss,

Subsequent o initial measurameant, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or medification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasursed, the corresponding

justment s reflected in the rioht-of-uce aezet, or profit ard loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced to zero,

Lease fabilites are presented as a separate line item an the consolidated statement of financial
position.

4.23 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

In preparing the consolidated financial statemants of the Group, transactions in currencies other
than the Parent’s functional currency, i.e., foreign currencies, are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevalling at the dates of the transactions, At the enc of each reporting period; financial
accounts which include cash in banks, trade receivable and deposits denominated in foreign
currencies are revaued using the reference foreign exchange rates provided by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF) on the date of reporting. Exchange differencas are recognized in profit
or loss as unrealized foreign exchange gainor loss at the end of each reporting period.

Exchange differences are récognized In profit or (088 in the pedod in which they aris€ except for
exchange differences arising on non-monetary assets and labilities where the gains and losses of
such non-monetary (tems are recognized directly in equity.

Assers and [abiities from foreign operation are translated at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting pernod. Exchange differences are recognized inltizlly in OCI and reclassifled from egquity
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to profit or loss on cispasal of the net investment, On the other hand, income and expenses for
each consolidated statement presenting profil or loss and QCI are translated al the average
axchange rate for the period. Al the result'ng exchange differances are recognized In the GCI.

A4.24 Related Parties and Related Party Transactions

A related party is @ person or entibty that is relsted to the Groug that is preparing its consclidated
financial statements. A person or 2 close member of that person’s family Is related to Group If
that person has control or joint control over the Group, has significant influence over the Group,
o 15 a member of the key management personnel of the Group aor of @ parent of the Growp.

An entity Is related o the Group IFary of the following condilcns applies:

«  The eptily and the Group are meinbers of e same group (which means that & parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary are related parties to each other); aor

»  Onoertity is an associate or joint venture of the other entty {or an associate or joint venture
of @ member of & group of which the other entity is a member); or

» Both entitles are joint ventures of the same third party; or

# On2ertty is a joint venture of 3 third entity and the other entity IS an associate of the third
entity; ar

»  The entity holds a post-employment benefit plan for the henefit of the employess af either
the Group or an entity related to the Group; or

v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person [dentified above; of

¥ A person identified above has significant influence over the enbity or s a mamber of the key
managoment persennel of the entity (or of an ontity); or

= Management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity,

Cipse members of the famiy of a person are those family mambers, who may be expectad to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group and nclude that
parson's children and spouse or domestic partner; chiddren of that person's spouse or domestic
partner; and dependents of that person or that person’s spouss or domestic partner.

A related party trersaction 15 @ transfer of resources, services or obligations betweean related
parties, regardiess of whethar a price is charged.

4.25 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deforrod taxos

4.25.0 Current Tax

The tax currently payable |5 based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported n the consalidated statement of comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liabiity for current tax is caloulated using tax rales that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax for the current and prior periods is recognized as a liability to the extent that it has

not been settded, and as an asset to the extent that the amounts already paid excesds the amaount
dhu,

4.25.02 Deferred Tax

Ceferred tax is recognized on temporary differances between e carrying amounts of assets and
liabiltties in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computaton of taxable profit.
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Defarred tax assets ars genarally recognized for all deductible remporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credics from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) aver Regular
Corporate Income Tax (REIT) and unused Net Operating Loss Carryover (MOLCO}, to the extent
that it is. probatle that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differgnces gnd carry forward of unused MCIT and unused MOLCO zan be utlized. Deferred tax
asset however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or lHability
in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at the tWme of the transaction that affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable prefit or loss. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differencas are only recognized ta the extent thar it is probable thal there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to ubitize the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are gxpeciec o reverse in the forgseeable future.

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced [o the extent that It is no longer probabla that sufficlent taxable profits will be avallable
to allow all or part of the asest to be racoverad.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary diferences excenpt In three cases
as follows:

= Lizhilities arising from the inltial recogntion of goodwill;

» Liabilities adsing from the initial recognition of assst/liability other than in & business
combination which, at the time of the transaction, dees not affect either the accounting profit
er tha taxable profit;

= Liabilities arising from temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes,
brarches and associates, end NTEFESHS N [DINC ArFrenQemants, but only 1o the extant that the
entity is able to cantral the timing of the reversal of the differences and it is probable that the
reversal will not occur in the foresesabls future.

Ceferred tax assats and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periad in which the liability s settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have baen enacted or substantively enacted by the 2nd of the reparting periad. The measurement
of deferred tax liabiliGes and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recowver or seitie the
carrying amount of its assets and labilities.

Ceferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
Current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and lizbilities
on a2 net bas's

42503 Current anda Deferred Tax for the Penicd

Current and daferred [ax are recognized as an expensa orincome in profit or loss, except when
they refate to itemns that are recognized outside profit or loss, whether in QL1 or clrectly in equity,
In which case the tax Is also recognized outside profit or loss.

4,254 [mipact of Change i Tax Regime

Components of tax expense include any adiustments recognized in the period for current tax of
prior perod and the amount of deferred tax experse (Income) refating to changes in tax rates.
The provision for current income tax during the year include the difference between income tax
per prior yesr finandal statements and prior year income tax retum.

Ceferred tax assets and liabilitizs a5 of reporting pericd Is remeasured using the new tax rates.
The impact of mmeasurement is recognized in profit or loss (i.e., provision for/benefit from
deferred ncome tax), unless it can be mecognized in other comprebensive income or another
equity account.

4.26 Earninge per Share

The Group cmpotas its basic eamings per share 3y dividing net income or 1055 attributable to
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ordinary equity holders of the Group by the weighted average nember of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.

4,27 Events after the Reporting Period

The Group identifies subsequent events as events that coccurred after the reporting date but betore
the date when the consolidated fnancial statements were authwrized for issue,
Any subseguent events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting period, adjusting svents, are reflected in the consclidated financigl statements, while
subseguent avents that do not require adjustments, ron-adjusting events, are disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financal statements whean materal,

4.28 Changes In Accounting Policies

The adaptior of the new and revised standards and as disclosed In Notes 3.01 and 3,07 was made
in accordance with their transitional provisicns, otherwise the adoption is accounted for as change
in accounting policy under PAS 8, Accaurting Poficles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors.

5.Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

In the applicabon of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Mote 4,
Management is reguired to make judgments, estimates and assumplions about the carrying
amounts of assets and lianilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimatbes and associated assumptions ame based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to he relévant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions ta
accounting estimates are recognized in the perod in which the estimate is revised f the
rivision affects only that period or in the period of the revislon and future periods If the
revision affects both current and future pericds.

5.01 Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are critical judgments, apart from those invelving estimations that Management
has made in the process of applying the entity's accounting policies and thal have Uwe most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in financial statements,

501,01 Assessinant of Going Cangern Issus

The management has made an assessment at the Group's ability to continue 8= 2 going concem
and & satisfied that the Group has the resources o continue the business for the forasacable
future. The Group's continued operations as a going concern depends upan thesuccessiul outcome
of efforts to achiave profitable cperations and generate sufficiant cash flows to meat obligations
on 3 timely basis. The Group generated a net income of 1,057 861,300 in 2021, B15,563 014 in
2020 and RE4,741,151 in 2019 Management believes that with its continued efforts in building
up equity and profitz bility, the Group will continue to operate in the normal course. Tharefore, the
consohidated financal statements continue to ba preparad on the going concern basss.

S00L.02 Functiopal Currency
FAS 21 requires Managerment to use its judgment to determine the Group’s furctional currency
such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events

and conditions that are relevant to the Grovp. In making this judgment, the Group considers the
following:

=  the currency that mainly influences sales prices for fnancial instruments and servicas
(this will often ba the currancy in which sales prices for s financial instruments and services
are dgenominated and settled);



- ﬁ3 -
= the currency in which funds from finandng activitias ars generated; and

# the currency in which receipts fram operating acthvities are usually retained.

Funclional currency is the currency of the primary econamic environment in which the Groep
operates. The Group has determined that its functonal currency is the Philippine Peso.
The Group's funclional currency s evidenced by its costs of labor, and other costs of providing
services and majority of its remittance fransactions are settled in Philippine Peso.

The Group getermined s funclional currency to be Philipping peso being the currency of the
primary economic environment i which the Group operates. IE s the currency that mainly
influences the sale of real properties, services, and investments and the costs of providing
the 2ernces and of the sald investments.

5.01.03 Uniform Accounting Policies

Consolidated financial stztements are prepared under line-by-line basis for consolidation.
Full ameunt of subsidiaries’ accounts, irrespactive of the percentage of ownership, are combined
with those of the Group an a line-by-fline bases by adding together similar or like items of asseats,
lizbilties, revenues and expenses. Appiicalion of line-by-ling basis for consolidation requires
judgment in determining that the Parent and its subsidiaries have uniform accounting policy for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances between the Parent and the subsidianes.
Yihile the Group regularly canducts review of the subsidiaries” accounting policy to ensure the
unifarmity in accounting policy, there would be instances that the policy over these transactions
would be diferent from that of the Parent, In the eveént that significant differences in the
accounting policy for a given transaciion exist batwsaen the Parent and its subsidiaries, the Parent
makes appropridte adjustment in the finandal statements of the subsidiary to conform to the
Group’s policy for the purpose of cansolidation.

The consalidated Nnancial statements are prépared under PFRS. Managemant assessad that the
acoounting policies of the Parent and its subsidiaries ars substantially similar far like transactions
and everis, thus, ro adjustment has been made in the consclidated financial statements,

5.0 .0 Assessmeant of Cont

The Group cetermines whether an entity qualifies 25 a subsidiary when it has control over an
entity. The Group controls an ertity when it has the three elements of control as disclosed in kote
4. In miking its judgments, the Group considers &l facts and clrcumstanoes when assessing
contral over an investea. A reassessment of contral is conducted when there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of contrel, Any changes from at least ene of the elemants would
result to lose or gain of control owver an antity.

The Group having fifty-ane parcent (51%) fo'one hundred percent {100% ) ownership and woting
interest, assessed thet it has control over all of its subsidieries since |t has power aver the
cubsidiarias, exposure o rights to variable retums from its involvameant and abllity to use [t
povwer to affect the comgonent of L5 retums.

50105 A o1 of Ooecating 5 ;

In accordance with the provisions of PFRS B, Operating Segments, the Group's reporting segment
i5 based on the management approach with regard to the segment identificatian, under which
information regulady provided to the chief operating decsion maker for decision-making purposes
is considered as decsive. The segments are also evaluated under the management approach,

The Groep reports its segment based on geagraphic areas, The Maragement identifies ts
operaking segments as generally based on nature and location of its customers. The Group has
four {4) reportable segments: Exports, Distribution, Ratail and Foreign Trading. The accounting
policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies, Segment
prafit represents the profit eamed by each segment without allocation of net trading gains
{losses), athar income, equity in net earnings, operating expenses and income tax.



5.01.06 Assesament of Contractua! Terms of g Fingnoial Asset

The Group determnings whether the confraciual terms of & finrancial asset give rise on a specified
date to cash fiows that are solely paymerts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. In making its judgements, the Group corsiders whether the cash flows before and
after the changes in timing or in the amount of peyments represent only payments of prinapal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Manzgement assessad [hal the contractual terms of it finandcial assets dare solely payments of
prinapal and intarest and consistent with Easic lending arrancement. As of December 31, 2021
and 2020, carrying amounts of the Group's financlal assets amounted o P1,287,378,496 and
P1,1130 286, 284, respectively, as disclosed o Noke 25

5.01.07 Existence of 8 Contract 5ales of Real Estate

The Group’s primary document for @ contract with a customer from reel estate sale is a signed
cantract (o sall. It has decermined, howewvar, that In cases whereln contract to sell are not signed
by both partias, the combination of its othier signed cocumentation such as reservation agreament,
official receipts, buyers” computation sheets and invoices, wou'd contain all the criteria to qualily
as contract with the customer under PFRS 15.

In addition, part of the assessment process of the Group belfore revenue recognition is Lo assess
the probability that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will be entitied in exchange
for the real estale property thal will be transferred o tha customer,

In ewvalusting whether collectability of an amount of corsideration is probabla, an entiby considers
the significance of the customer’s initial payments in relation to the total contract price.
Collectability s also assecsed by considenng tactors such as past history with the customer, age
and pricing of the property. Management regularly evaluates tha historical cancellations and back-
outs if it would still support its current threshold of customers’ equity before commencing revenue
recognition.

5.01.08 Ass¢ssment of Timing of Satisfaction of Performance Obligations

An entity satisfies a performance abligation by transfeming control of a promised good or service
to the customer, which could ocour over time or at a paint in time.

5.01.08.01 Sale of Real Estate

The Group concluded that revenue for real estate sales is to be recognized over time because;
{a) the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and; (b} the
Group  has an  enforceable right  for  performance completed too  date.
The promised property is specifically identified in the contract and the contractual restriction
on the Group’s abllity to direct the promised property for another use is substantive. This is
because the properly promised to the customer is not interchangeable with other properties
without breaching the contract and without incurring signifcant costs that otherwise wauld
nct have been incurrad in relation to that contract.

In acdition, under the current legal fremework, the customer is contractually obliged to make
payments to the develepar up to the perfformanca completed to date. In addition, the Group
requires a certain percentage of buyer's payments of  total selling price
{buyer's eguity), to be collected as one of the critere in order Lo initiate revenve recognition,
Reaching this level of coilection iz an indication of buyver's cantinuing commitment and the
probabifity that economic benefits will flow to the Group. The Group considers that the initial
and continuing investments by the buyer of about ten percent (10%) would dermonstrate the
buyar's commitment ta pay.

The Group has determined that input methoc uvsed in measuring the progress of the
performance obligation Faithfully depicts the Group's performance in transferring control of
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real esrare dE‘u‘Elﬂlp ment to the customers.

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, revenue from sale of real estate amounted to 2141249, 379,
FA0E, 231,931 and #2224, 869,449 ¢, respectivaly, as disclosed in Note 18,

5.01.08.02 Sgie of Goods

The Group identifies performance obligations by considering whether the promised goods or
cervices in the contract are distinet goods or services. A good or service is distinet whan tha
customer can banefit from the good or service on ils own or together with other resournes
that are readily available to the customer and the Group’s promiss to transfer the good or
sarvice 13 the custamear is separately identihable trom the otver promises in the contract, The
Group delivers the best quality praduce by exparting and locally distributing all kinds of Fruits
and wvegetables and other agri-products but its main products are bananas, mangoes, and
cacanut water. The Group determined that the dellvered varous agrl-products are capable of
being distinct and therefore considered as separate performancs obligations.

n 2020, 2019 and 2018, revenue from aales geods amounted to P4 407,781 467, P4,102,429 453
and P4,300,487,251, respectively, as disclosed in hote 18,

A performance obilgation s a vendor's promise to trancfer a gond or service that is "distinct” from
other goods and services identified in the contrack.

Manecement assessed that allocation of transacion price o performance obilgation Is not
applicable since the only obligation Identified is to cefiver goods bo ks customers,

501104 ent of 30 daps Rebutt sy mation

An entiby determines when a default occurs on its financal assats based on the credit management
practice of tho entity.

Management believes that the 30 days rebuttable presumption on determining whother there is a
sgnificant increagse inoredit nsk in financial assets 5 not applcable because based on the Group's
historical exparience, credit risk has not increased significantly even the amounts are past due for
maore than 30 davs.

5.01.171 Assessment of 90 daps rebuliable presomption

The Group determines when a significant Increase in credit risk occurs an its financial assets based
on the credit Management practice of the Group.

Manegement believes that the 90 days rebuttable presumption on determining whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk in financial assets is not appliceble based on the Group's histarical
experience the Group daetermines that past due amounts even aver 90 days 2re still collectible.

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment properties. In making its
judgments, the Group considers whether the property genarates cash fiows largely independent
of the obner assets held by the entity. Owner-occupied propeties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only toe the property but also to other assets used in the production or supply
process.

Some propeties comprse @ portion that s held to earn rental or for capital appreciation and
anocther portion that is helg for use for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold
sanaralely {or [easad out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
saparately. If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as investmeant
property only I an nsignificant porticn is hald for use in the production or supply of goods or
saryices or for administrative purposss. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary
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saryices are so significant that a property doss not qualify as investment property. The Graup
considers each property seperately in making s judgment,

The Grovp cassifed the construction n progiess for ietal and office spaces as invesbment
properties because these are Intendad for lease. Accardingly, the carrying amounts of investment
properties amounted to #1,220,900,340 and P1, 188,425,936 as of March 31, 2021 and December
31, 2021, respectively, as disclosed in Note 12,

Ceductifvlity of Degveciation Thereon

After recognibion as an asset. antem of property and eguipment whose fair value can be measurad
rellably shall be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated mpairmeant osses.
Revatuations shall be made with suflicient regularity fo ensure that the carmying amount does not
differ materially from chat which wedld be determined using falr value at the end of tha reporting
pariod.

The frequency of revaluation depends upan the changes in fair values of the tems af property and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its
carrying amaunt, & further revaluation is required. Some i2ems of property &nd equipment
experience significant and volatile changes in falr value, thus necassitating annual revaluation,
Such frequent revaluations are unnecessary for ltems of propecty, plant and equipment with only
insignificant changes in fair vaiue, Insktead, it may be necesszry ko revalue the tem only every
three [3) 1o fivis (5) vears.

The revaluation surplus included in equity in respect of an item of propery and equipment may
be transferred directly 10 retained earnings when the asset is derecognized, This may involve
transferring the who'e amount of surplus whan the asset is retired or disposed of. However, sume
of the surplus may be transferred as the asset is used by an entity. In such a case, the amount
of the surplus transfermed would be the difference between depreciation bazed on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset's original cost. Transfers fram
reveluation surplus ko retained €armings are not made through profit or loss.

In making its judgment on the frequency of revaluation, manzgemant considered the significant
changas in the fair value of s revalued zscets. Hence, a new mevaluation was adopted as of
reporting perinds. The Group also determined whether depreciation of its fixed asssts relates to
property and egquipment subseguently measurad using cost model and revaluation model, In
doing =0, Management considered the tax effect of the depreciation of the revaluation surplus
which corresoonds to the revalued amount of property, plant and eguipment. Since trensfers from
revaluation surplus to retained sarmings resulting from piecemeal amortization arg not made
through proft or loss but are transferred directly to equity, depreciation related to revalued assets
is not deductible for tax purposes,

In both years, the Group assessed that the carsying amount of the revalued property and
equipment approximates its falr value, As of December- 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amaunts
of the revalued property and equipment amounted to P316,229.570 and P247,378,079,
respectively, as disclosed in Mote 13,

1 L T+ LA TR WG 14 =N L FCIE o LA T Gl s FA 58

For contracts in place at the date ef initial application, the Group has elected to apply the definition
of a lease from PAS L7 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied PFRS 16 to arrangements that were
previoushy not identifiad as lease under PAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Management assessad that the lease of machinery, transpertation equipment and stare premises
qualined as a lease since each contract contalns an |dentifed asset, the Group has the right to
ohtain substantially all of tha econemic benefits, ard the Groug has the right fto direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the perod of use.

2.04.15 Determmining whether or not it is Reasopably Certain that an Extension Oplion will be
i i fati Ei i XErci
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Leasze termt is the non-canceliable pariod for which the Group has the right to use an Lease term
is the non=cancellable period far which the Group has the right to use an underiying asset including
optional pericds when the Group |s reasonebly certaln to exerclse an cptlon to extend {or not to
terminate) a lease. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances thet create an
econpmic Incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when cetermining the lease term and the
enforceanility of the option. The option to extend the lease term should be included in the lease
termif it i5 reasongbly certain that the lessee will exercise the option and the option is enforceable.
The Group is required to reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances
occur that are within the control of the lessee.

For lease contracks enterad into in both years, mos: are renewable by mutual agreement, except
fer contracts which doos not contain a provision on renewal eplion. Management asseased thot
these |ease contracks cannol be extended bevond e non-cancelable lease period since such are
mot enforceable under the Philippine law,

In both years, tha Mapagemant used the lease term of four (3} o seven (/] years in the
camputation of nght-of-use-assets and lease Labilities

5.02 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainties at the and of the reporting periods that have a significant risk of causing a matarial
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabiities within the next financial vear.

50201 Revenue amd Cost Recogrition oo Real Estate Mrofects

The Group's revenue recognition and cost polides require managemant to make use of estimates
and assumptions that may affect the reparted amounts of -evenues and costs. The Group's
revenue fraom real estate and construchon contracts is recogmized based on the percemntage of
campletion {FOC) are measured principally an the basis of the estimated completion of 8 physical
proportion of the contract work. Apart from invalving significant estimates in determining the
quantity of Impaorts such as materials, labor and equipment needed, the assessment process for
the FOLC is complex and the estimated project develsprment costs requires technical determination
by managemeant's specialists (project enginsers),

5.02.02 Estimating Allawances for Expectec Credit Losses (ECL)

The Group incorporates forwerd -looking information into bath its assessment of whether the credit
risk of an instrument nas increased significantly since s initia’ recognition and IEs measurement
of ECL,

The Group considers 2 range of relevant forward-ooking macro-economic assumptions for the
determination of wnblased general Indusiry adjustments and any related specific industry
achjustments thet support the calculation of ECLs. Based on the Group's evalustion and assessment
and after taking Into consideration external actual and forecast information, the Group formulates
a'base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a reprasentative
range of ather passible forecast scenarios. This process involves developing twa or marn additional
economic scenarios and conslderng the relative probabilities of each outcome. External
Information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bedles, monetary
authorities and selected private-sector and academic institutions.

The base case represents a most-likehy outoomea ana 5 aligred with informatien used by the Graup
for other purposes suach as strategic planning and budaeting, Tne other scenarios represent more
optirmistic and more passimistic outcomes. Perodically, the Group carries out stress testing of
more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of these other representative scenarios. Tha
Group has identi#ied and documented key drivers of credit rick ang credit losses of each portfolo
of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
betwzen macro-economic variables and credit nsk and credit losses.

The Group applies gensral approach for determining the ECL of cash in banks, other
rzceivables (except advances to officers and employess), due from related parties and
stockholders, and refundable deposits presented under ‘prepayments and other current
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asseis’ and deposits and other non-currert assets. A credit lass is the difference between the
cash Mows that are expected to be received discounted at the original effective interest rate
and contraciual cazh flows In accerdance with the contract. The |loss allowance for financial
asseis is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recogrized provision fo- expected credit losses on other
recelvables amounting to nil, 43,316,857 and nll, respectively. The Group alse made a revessal
of allowance for expacted credit losses amounting to P£3,316,857, nil and nil, in 2021, 2020 and
2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, allowance for expected credit |0sses on
other receivables amounted to P3,.516.1108 and P45,832,975 respectively, as disclosed in Notes
7,23 amd 24,

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognezed provision for expecied credit kosses on due from
rélated partes ond stockholders amounting to nll, nll and PG 264,530, respecthvoly.
The Group also made a direct write-off of the allowance for expacted credit losses amounting to
mil, #4,978,013 and mil, in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of March 31, 2022 and December
31, 2021, allowance for expected credit losses on due from related parties and stockholders
amounted to#5460,530, as disclosed in Notes 21, 23 and 24.

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, allowance for expected credit losses on refundablea
deposits presented under ‘prepayments and other current assels” and “deposits and olher
non-current assats” amounted to #5, 711,100, as disclosed in Nobes 9 anc 15

The Group applies the simplified approach in trade receivables to measure expected credit losses
which usas & ifetime expected loss allowance for a2/l receivables and financial asset at amortized
casts, The Group has estahlished a3 provision matrx fhat is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-icoking factors specific tc the debtors and the economic
environment, Detalled information regarding the Company’s impairment of financial assets is
discussed in Note 2E.

In- 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables amounting to nl, BS,504,378 and BL,EBS, 549, respactively, The Group also made a
raversal of allowanca for expected credit lossas amounting to P35,728,895, nil arnd nil, in 2021,
2020 and 2019, respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, allowance for expected credit
losszs on trade receivables amounted o P4E8055 688 ard £84,784,583, respectively, as
disclosed in Motes 7, 23 and 24,

F i, I

kel realizables vaiues of mvenbores are assessed regularly based on the prevailing seling prices
of inventones less estimated costs to sell. The Grovp recognizes expense and provides allowance
for declire in value of inventories whenever net rezl zable value of inventories becomes lower than
cost due to damage, physical deterioration, sbsolescencs, changes on grice levels or other causes.
Inwventory tems dentifled to be obsolete and unusable is written off and charged against allowance
account. Increasa in the net realizable values will increase the carrving amount through reduction
of allowance for decline but only to the extent of ariginal acquisition cost,

In bath years, Management believes the net realizable value of inventories approximate their
casts, thus, ne allowance for dedline in value was recognized. As of March 31, 2021 and December
31, 2021, Fmwventories amounted to P11, 384,451 4595 and 91,317,725 194, respectively, Bs
disclosed in Note 2.

5.02.04 Falr Valve of Investment Property

The Group has adopled the fair value approach in determinmg the carrying value of its investrment
property, While the Group has opked to rely on independent appraisers to determing the fair value
of 1= Ipvestment properties, such fair value was determined based on recent prices of similar
properties, with adjustments to reflact any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. The amaounts and timing of recorded changas in fair
value for any period would differ iF the Grovp made different judgments and estimates or utilized
different basis for determining fair value.



.ﬁg.

In 2021, the Managemsnt racognized gain on change in fair value of investment proparty based
o the valuation report dated December 27, 2020 by Guangdorg Tianshun Land Reasl Cstate Asset
Appraisal Ce., Lod. amounting to PO0B, 745,817 as disclozed in Note 12, The Royal Chartered
Surveyor has thoroughly and meticulously analyzed the cheracteristics and actual conditions
project, and has studied the Informatlon provided by the cllent. On the basis of market research,
the property to be assessed is commercial {agricultural commedity trading center) and leasing in
nature, In onder (o make the valuation resulls scientific, accurate and abjective, the appraiser usa
the market comparnison method and the income method to evaluats their value, The comparative
method & to compare the real estate of the object of valuation with the simidar real estate that
has beon traded recently at the time of value, and to make appropriate amendments to the
tranzaction price of these similar real estate. In order to estuvate the object of real estate
ohjective reasorable price or value of waluation method. The income method is a method to
conwert the net income of the expected valuation object real estate in the future perod into the
present valug af the value point by using the appropriate reduction interest rate, and to find the
sum of IS present value to determine the regl estate price,

A5 of March 31, 2022 and DecemBier 31, 2021, the carrylng amaunt of Investment property
amounted to £1,220,900,3490 and R1, 188,425,936, respectivaly, as disclosed In Note 12,

/ B i L5

The Grovp has sdopted the fair value apgreach in determining the carrying value af its biological
assets, The Group determines its fair value based on recent prices of similar assets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
nccirred at those prices, The amaunts and fiming of recarded changes in falr value for any perind
would differ if the Group made different judgments and estimmates or utiized different basis for
determining fair value,

The fair value of biolegical assets was derived using the markel approach. In March 31, 2022,
the Management recagnized gain on change in falr value of bialegical assets based on the valisation
amounting ta £15,026,678, as disclosed in Moke 14, As of March 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021, the carrying amount of biological assets amounted to P94 338 410 and 459,301 733,
respectively, 85 disciosed in Note 14,

r F P i

The valuaticn has been carmed out on January &, 2021, in accordance with the Santos Kright
Frank, Inc. ‘ncorporating the Intemational Valuaton Standards of the Internaticnal Yaluation
Standards Council [(Iv50), and the Philippine Yeluation Standards (PYS). In waluing the land
Markat Appreach was usaed which is the mast common technique for waluing land, and is the mast
preferred method when comparable sales-are availaole. With th-s method, sales of similar property
or parcels of land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the
property being appralsed. The comparison process is based on an analysis of the similarity or
dissimilanty of the comparzble, Cost Appreach was usec for the improvements while a combination
of the Market and Cost Approach was used for the machinery and equipment. The Caost Approach
generally Involves the following steps: {(a) The value of the subject land is normally estimated by
the Markat Diaka ar Sales Comparison Approach.
In instances whera available market data & sufficient, the Income Approach [Residual Method)
can be used, (b) The deprecdated cost of the subject improvement is estimated by calculating the
diract cost of reproducing or replacing the imprmvemert, deducting accrued depreciabion from: all
saurees, and adding the indirect oos1s atbributed to the improvement. Combining the estimales
shown above results in the ndicated value of the subfect property by the Cost Approach.

#s of Dacemoer 31, 2021 and 2020, the camying amounts of property and equipment at revaheed
amount are PI16,229 570 and F247,378,079, respectively, as disclosed in Nobe 11,
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50207 Reviewing Residial Values, Uesaful ifwes and Depreciation Method of Froperty and
Equiprmient

The residual values, useful lives and depreaation method of the Gioup’s property and equigment
are reviewero at least annuatly, and adjusted praspectively If appropriate, i there Is an indication
of a significant change in, Row an asset |5 used; significant unsxpected wear and tear;
technological advancement; and changes In market prices since the mest recent annual reporting
date. The useful lives of the Group's property and eguipment are estimated based on the perlod
over which the assets are expected to be availeble for use, Im determining the useful life of
property and equipment, the Group considers the expected usage, expected physicel wear and
tear, technical or comuimercial obsolescence ansing from changss or mprovements in production,
or from @ change in the market demand Tor the product or serdoe output and kegal or other limits
on the use of the Group's assals,

In addition, the estimation of the useful lives is based on Company's collective assessment of
industry practice, internal techoical evaluabon and experience with similar assets. [t s possible,
however, that future results of operations tould be materially affected by changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and biming of recocded
expenses for any perlod wauld be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

M reduction ia the estimated useful hves of property and equipment would morease the recognized
expanses and decraase non-current assets. The Group uses a deprecation mathod that reflects
the pattern in which [t expects to consume the property and equipment’s future economic benefits.
17 there Is ar indicaton that theré has been a significart change in the pattern used by which the
Eroup expects to consume the property and equipment’s future economic benefits, the entity shall
raview its precent dearaciacian method and, If current expactations differ, change the depraciarion
method to reflect the new pattem.

In both years, Management assessed that there are no indicaticns that there has been any change
in pattern used by the Group In consuming its property and equipment”s future econamic benefits,

The carrying amaoun:s of depraciabls propety and equipment measured at revalued amounts as
of Decamber 21, 2021 and 2020 amountad to P164,239 570 and P05, 378,079, respectively, as
disclesed in Note 11.01.

The carrving amounts of depreciable property and equipmenrt measured at cost as of December
34, 202C and 2019 amountad to £272,035,225 and P341,992,995, respectively, as disclosed in
hote 11.02,

0208 Rewewing Resdgual Valve, Useipl Life s Amortization Method of fnfangibie Assets

The residoal value, useful life and amartization method of the Group’s intangible asssts are
reviewed at least anaually, and adjusted prozpectively if approoriate, iF there Is an indication of a
significant change in, how an asset is used, technological advancement; and changes in market
prices sinca the most recent annual raporting date, Amortization beging when tha intangible asset
i= @vailable for use, L.e., when it s 10 the ecation and condition necessary for it to he usahle in
the manner Intended by Management. Amortizatdon ceases when the intangible assel Is
derecogrizad. The Group uses a straight-line method of amortization since it cannot datarmineg
raliably the pattern in which it expects to consume the intangible asset’s future economic benefits,

In beth years, Management assessed that there are no indicatlens that there has been any change
in pattern wsed by the Group in consuming its intangibla assets’ future economic benefits. As of
March 3L, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying amounts of the intanaible assets are
P1&7,989,167and P167,174.787, respectively, as disclosed in Kote 13,
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5.02.00 Assef Impairrrent

The Grovp performs an impairment review wher certain impairment indicators are pressnt.
Cetermining the fair value of advances o officers and employees; prepayments and other current
assets (Except refundable deposits), propery and equipment, investment property, right-of use
assets, intangible assets and deposits and other non-current asssts (except rafundable deposits),
which require the determination of future cash flows expected to be gererated frem the continued
use and wultimate disposition of such assets, requires the Group to make estimates and
assumptions that can materfally affect the financlal statements. Future svents could cause the
Group to conclude that aforementicned assats are ‘mpaired. Aty resulting Impalrment loss could
have a matenal adversa impact on the financial conditian and results of aparations.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations,
VWhile the Group belizves that Its assumptlons are appropriate and reasonable, slgnificont changes
in the assumpticns may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead to
future acditional impairment charges under PFRS.

In 2021, 2020 and 2015, the Group wrote-olf advances to officers and employees amounting ko
mil, nil and P428. 267, as disclosed in Mote 7.

In 2021, 2020 gng 2019, the Group recognized provision for impairment on prepayments and
other cumrent assets armounting to nil, R1ES,B20 and B6,113 433, respectively, as disclosed in
Motes B and 23.

In 2021, 2020 and 201%, the Group recognized provision for impairment on deposits and other
mof-current  assets (except refundable deposits) amounting o nil, P6,640,000 and nil,
respechively. The Group alse wrote-off  deposits  asd  other peon-cumment  assets
(except refundable depasits) amounting to nil, nil and PES.7 million as dsclosed in Notes 9
and 23,

In both years, Manzgement assessad that no indicators of impairment had existed on property
and eguipment, Investment property, right-of vse assets and intangible assets.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the sggregate carrying amounts of advances to officers and
employees, orepayments and other current assets (except refundable deposits), property and
erjuipment, investmeant property, right-of use assets, Intanglble assets and depaosits and other
non-current  assets  (except  refundahle  deposits]  amoonted o B3 184,744,468 and
F2,128 872455, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 7, 11, 12, 13 and 15.

50210 Deferred Tax Assels

The Group reviews the carrying amounts at each reporting period and reduces deferred tax assets
to the extent that it (s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized prior to its explration.

Mg of Decemnper 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized deferred tax assets from effect of PFRS
16 amounting to #10,009 eand £387,048, respectvely, as disclosed In Note 25,
In beth years, Managemeant believes that fuiure taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of deferrad tax assels to be utilized prior to expiraton.

202,11 Post-employment Benefits

The determinatian of the retirement obligetion and cost and other retirenent benefits is depencent
on the salection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions indude among others, discount rates, mortality of plan members and rates of
caompensation increase. [n accordance with PFRS, actual results that &ffer from the assumptions
and the effects of changes in actuarial assumpticns gre recognized directly 2= remeasurements in
other comprehensive income and therefore, generally affect related obilgatian.

YWhite the Group belleves that the assumptons are ressonable end appropriate, skgnificant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumpticns may materially
affect the pension and other retirernent obligations.

The carrying amounts of the Group's retirement benefit obligation are P19,275,038 and
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F12.088 815 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed in Note 25,

Tn 2021, 2020 and 2019, the rétirement beaefit expense recognized are P3, 144,024, P1,554,161
and £1,372,732, respectively, as disclosed in Nokes 23 and 25,

I 2021, 22020 and 2019, the remessurement, net of releted s, samounted to 8 loss af
P4,042,. 199, nil, P3,278.B6Y, respechively, as dischosed in Note 25

202 12 Assessment of Joint Contral

Jaint contral Is the contractually agreed sharing of contral of an arrangamant, which exicts only
when decisions sbout the relevant activities require the unanimous corsent of the parties sharing
contrgl.  An entity has a control when I 15 exposed, or has rghts o vardabla retums from
invalvament with the armangement and has the ability to affect those retums through their power
over the arrangement.

In beth years, Management assessed that the contractual errangement with a third party and the
landowrers gives both parties joint control since decision about the relevant activities requires
the unanimous consant of both parties shanng control,

5.03. 13 Claseification of Joint A : Yot Viking

The wint arrangement is classified into joint cperations and joint ventures. The joint aperations
ara a joint arrangement whereby the partles that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights o the assels, and obeyations for the llabilities, relating 0 e arrangement wiile the joint
venture (5 a joint arrangoment whareby the partles that have joint control of the amrangament
have rights to the net assets of the amangement. The joint 2rrangement agreed by the Parent
Company and a third party and the landowners was mutuzlly dassified by both parties as a joint
venbure.

Management beliaves Lhal a joint venture arrangement will maintain the parties’ rights to net
asgets,

5.02. 14 Estimats impairmeant wrill

The Group reviews the carmying value of goodwill far impalirment annually or more frequently, if
events or changes in croumstances indicate that the camying value may be impaired. Assessments
require the use of estimates and assumptions such as market evaluation and trends, discount
rates, future capital requirements and operating performance. If the recoverable amount of the
unit axceads the carrying amount of the goodwill, the coodwill shall be recarded as not impaired.

ko provision for impalement of goodwlll was recogrized in 2021 ana 2020, however, In 2019
provision was recognized amourting to £S5,343,063, as disclosed In Notes 13 and 23,

s of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carmying amount of coodwill amounted to P39,232 347
and P36,977,238, respectively, as disclosed in Note 13.

% Hngenars

The Group = currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs
fur the resolution of these claims has baen developed inconsultation with cutside counsel handiing
the defense of these matters and 5 based upon an analysis of potential results, The Group
currently doss not Delieve that these proceedings will have a material effect on the Group's
cansolidated financial skatements (sec Notes ¥ and 35),
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6. Trade and Other Receivables

2022 2021

Cash in banks 46,991,602 31.861,174
Cash on hand 882,049 48,334 058
g 47,873,651 80,195,232

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates of (ess then 1.0%
annually.Interest ncome eamed from cash in banks, net of final taxes withheld,
amounted to #2,508in 2022 and 8,072 in 2021.

The Group has cash in banks denominated in foreign currency such as USD, HKD and
RMB. These cash in banks were transiaeted as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2020
closing rates (see Note 28).

7. Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Trade 576,163,105 563,628 263
Advances 1o employees 63,154,057 63,661,313
Othars 153,076,947 169,875,155
. 792,304,149 797,085,731

Less allowance for impairment losses:
Trade 51,571,805 51,57 .804
Advances to officers and employees 4,026,949 3,654,834

Cthers

£5,598,754 55,225,638
736,795,395 741.832.093

Trade racelvables are nonintersst-bearing and are collectible within 30 to 90 days. These
are generally settled through cash payment or application of customers' depaesit.

Other receivables as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 include noninterest
bearingreceivables from sales of scraps and first-class rejects, which are sold to local wet
market ata lower price. This is generally collectible on 15 to 30-day terms, Cther
receivables as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 also include receivablz from a
third party amountingto ®#64.6 million which is included in an ongoing criminal action
initigted by the Group to recover the said receivable among others. The amount is
guaranteed by a stockholder in theevent of an adverse result of the ongoing case.
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The Group has trade receivables denominated in foreign currency which are translated at
March 31, 2022 closing rates (see Note 28).

Movemeants in allowance for impairmant losses pertaining to trade receivables follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 55,226,640 135,272,302
Pravision for impairment during the yea 372,114
Reversal during the year (RD,045,752)
Write off during the year .
Balance at end of year 55,598,754 55,226,640

Nene of the Group’s receivables were pledged to any of its liabilities.

8. Inventories

This account consists of the following at cost:

2022 2021

Propenty for sale 945,328,084 904,871,695

Merchandise, furniture and appliances 316,973,573 303,478 125
Agricultural produce, beverages and

vegan products 75,385,601 82,776,207

Fa;;hag'ig malerials and olher supplies 268,764,147 26,589,167

e 1,364,451,495 1,317,725,194

Property for sale represents development costs and construction materials for residential
andcommercial units of Shengmei Century Plaza Development Project located in Jiawang
District, Xuzhou, China.

The carrying amounts of the total inventories as of March 31, 2022 and December 31,
2021 are lower than their NRVs. There were no purchase commitments and accrued net
losses oninventories In the perod 2022 and 2021

No provision for inventory ohsolescence or impairment was recognized in 2022 and 2021.
Inventories are not pledged as security for any of the Group’s liabilitias.



-75 -

9. Prepayments and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Input VAT 135,293,664 132,781,931
Advanrces o supplers 51,711,921 53.257.630
Refurndable deposits 14,939,212 14,850,402
Creditable withholding 1axes (CWTs) 2,322,987 1,775,589
Prepaid expense 1,744,414 1,123,309
Deterred nput VAT 317,272 335,925
Materials and supplies E 142,040 142,040
206,471,530 204,316,916

Less allowance for impairment: losses:
Relundable deposits 12,383,848 12,493,878
194,087,682 191,822,938

Advances fo suppliers represent noninterest-bearing advanced payments to third-party
forzign and local suppliers for varicus future delivery of purchases of goods and performance
of services. In 2018, advances to suppliers amounting to #96,878 was directly written-off
as management believes it will no longer be recovered as at reporting date (see Note 22).

Refundable deposits are made for short-term store-leased spaces of the Group. These
deposits will be refunded upon end of lease term.

Creditable withholding tax is considered prepayments which are claimed for the tax to be
paid during the year and are carrizd over in the succeeding period for the same purpose.

Prepaid expense Includes insurance, short-term lease rental and IT services. Prepaid
insurance refers to insurances of vehicles, equipment and construction in progress.

Movements in allowance for impairment losses pertaining to prepayments and other current
assets follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 12,493,978 12,356,001
Provision lor impairment during the year 185,820
Reversal during the year (110,130) (47,843)
Balance at end of year 12,383,848 12,493,978
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10. Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FWOCI)

On April 3, 2018, the Group adquired 15% ownarship of CMP Supply Chain Management
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd, a company Incorporated i China, The acquired shares are dassified

asinvestment at fair valus through cther comprehensive income (FWOCT) amounting
to F49.11 millien and #£47.80 million as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,

11. Deposit for Future Investments

The Group entered  Into a purchase agreement with a third party in September Z0L6
invalvingthe purchase of 45% equity imterest in Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd. {Fucang),
a companyregisterad In China. Fucang 15 engagad In agri commodity trading and with
investments in real estabe development and agrn trading. In 2016, ANI made a deposit
for the acquisiton of 49% equity investmment in Fucang amaunting to BME42 63 million
ar ®B308.2 million, subject to the fuliiment of conditiors precedent as set forth in the
agreesrenk of the parties.

In 2017, the Group purchased an additional 2% of the tatal registered capital of Fucang
amounting to EMB4. 0% rrulion or B 30,6 milliar which resulbed to an increase in eguity
interast in Fucang., As. at December 31, 2017, the deposit for future investment
totaline #338.8% million i5 reclassified to investment in subsidiary In the Group's
consolidatad statements of financial pasition.

In 2017, Fucamng made a deposit amounting to #194.7 million to acquire 60% ownership
of the stockholdings of Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a real
estate company In China. The balance of thiz depasit amounted to #194.3 and #195.0 as
at Marcn 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. As of reporting dabe, the construction
is 33% completed and is expected to ke finished on year 2022,



- FF -

1Z. Property and Equipment

Rallfarward analysis of the Group's property and equipment as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 follaws:
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Certain assets such as celivery and transportation equipment, bulldings and machinery egquipment are cowverad by insurance

Land and bislding located in Pulilan, Bulacan with carrying value of 8 200 8 millinnand & 175 1 million as 8t March 31, 2022 and Decamber 31,
2021, respectively, are used as collaberals for one of Itz long-term llabllities.
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In 2018, three (3) delivery trucks under transportation equipment of the Group,
amaunting to #3.4 millien, is mortgaged as collateral for its own auto-loan (see

Mote 17). The carrying value of the trucks as at March 31, 2022 anc December
31, 2021 amounted to B2.0 millicn and B2.6 million, respectively.

The Group's commitment to acquire property is discussed in Note 15, The Group's
management had reviewed the carrying vaues of property and eguipment
as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 for any possible impairment.
Based on the evaluastion, there are no irdications that the property and
equipment are Impaired,

13, Investment Property

The roliforward analysis of construction In progress under investment property follows:

"

2023 2021
Balance at heginning of year P1,188 425 936 P2R2,34R R77
Transferred to inventory =9,B43,216 - 145,666,451
Transferred from advences to contractors - 38,531,280
Effect of foreign exchange transiation 42,317,620 135,466,413
Gain an thange in fair value - a0s, 745,817
Balance at end of year 1,220,900,340 F1,168,425,935

The Group’s management had reviewed the carrying values of investment property as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 for any possible impairment. Based on the evaluation, thera
are no indications that the investment property is impaired.

The Group's investment properties are not pledged as security for any of the Group's
liabilities. The Group has no contractual commitment to purchase investment property.
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14. Intangible Assets
This account consists of the following, net of any accumulated amartization and
impairment:
2022
Tradamork Goodwill Franchise  Computor Softwarn Total
Cost
Baance at begnning of vear 200000000 95,014,063 9,049,750 1.514,761 311678574
Aicitions during the yoo 164,530.00 23,006 207575
Sasinnees o end of the year 200,184 539 95,014 063 9,040 750 7,637,797 311886140
Acarelsted armoiaionand mparrment.
Balance at begnring of year 74500000 55.7BLT1E 9,043 750 747131 144.503.787
it sion "
Efiecy of foreign cusrency ransiation 184,539 {791.835) 491 160%,805)
Baiance al end of the year 73684539 54589881 9,049,750 7275812 143,896,982
Net carrying value 127,500,000 40,024,152 - L54.985 167 989,167
31
Trasdeim ark Goodwill Franchise Computer solleame Tokal
Cust.

Balance at beginping of year P20, B0, GO0 PS5.014,063 P, 045, 750 PPASTIDS  PILL520.918
Additicn during Ehe year - - - 157, 658 157,650
Balanve at énd of yoar 200, DDO. GO0 45.004,063 8.04%.750 7,014,761 ILL678.504
R LETT ST T Y

Aalance at Beginning & yesr 62, 500,000 5B, 006, B2 9,045, 750 7,094, 765 136, 6E0, 541

Amarbzaton Lo, DOG, 000 - - 78,056 10,078,056

Effect of fomign curmency translation - -4, 255,110 - = -4, 255, 110
Balance at end of year 72,500,000 55.781, 716 4,045,750 7172321 144,503,787
Het earrying value P127, 500,000 P3G, 232, 347 3 FAZ M40 PLET, L7407

Trademark

The trademark includes that related to the acquisition of TBC in 2011. During
the acquisitionof TBC, net assets acquired includes trademark for the use of “3ig
Chill” brand, amounting to £200.0 million which was |ncluded in the purchase
prica.

Goodwill
The goodwill of the Group is attributable mainly to the business acquisitions
made Iin 2017 toexpand tha Group's operations.

Franchise

On January 7, 2011, the Group ertered into @ Master Licensing Agresment with
Tully's Coffee Internationa Pte. Ltd. for the operation of coffes shops and sale of
coffee products under the brand *Tully's". The term of the license is for a period
of ten years but maybe extended for another 10 years. Under the agreement,
the Group paid $200,000 equivalentte #9.05 million as a sign-up fae.

Computer software

The computer software pertains to tha accounting software used by the Group.
The carryingvalue of computer software is reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may net be
recoverable. Mo impairmant loss is recognized as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021.
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The Group’'s intangible assets are not pledged as security to any of the Group's
lizkilities. The Group has no contractual commitment to purchase intangible
assets.

15. Biological assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s biological essets amounted te P59,301,732 and nil,
as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. Consumable biological assets
include coms, bokchoy, italian parsley, green ice lettuce, romaine, kailaan and coriander.
These are located In agricultural farms in Tanauvan and Batulao Batangas and Bansalan,
Davao del Sur,

The movements in the carrying amounts of the bioiogical assets are shown below:

L L

Year incurrad 2022 2021
Balance, January 1, 2022 59,301,732 o=
Increases due to purchases 20,000,000 41,689,411
Gain ansing from changes in
15,026,678 17,612,321
fair value less costs to sell PR
Balance, March 31, 2022 94,328,410 P59, 301,732

16. Deposit and other noncurrent assets

2022 2021

Advances and depasits 690,829,436 686,799,121
Deposit for future investments 220,118,392 214,263,521
Refundable deposits 1,633,524 1,774,276
912,581,353 802,836,918

Less aliowance for impalrment loss - 6,640,000 - 6,640,000
905,941,353 896,196,918

Advances and deposits include the following:

s  Deposil made Lo acguire a portion of the B39 heclares, or a corresponding porton thersof,
of titled and urtitled parcels of land amounting to #508.7 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The deposit was increased in 2019 by # 208.7 million
which was advanced by one of its stockholders (see Nole 20). As at reporting date, the
third party is completing the titling of the whaole portion of the property to fully execute
the transactions (see Note 1).

« In 2017, Fucang made a deposit amounting to #194.7 million to invest in Guangzhou
Tianchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a real estate company in China. Tha balance
of this deposit amounted to (CNY 26.8 million) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively and shall be converted (o eguity once the construction projects of Tlanchen
is completed. As at reporting date, the construction is 60% completed and is expected
tobe finished on the second quarter of 2022.
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Mdvances to project amounting to £130.1 milllon as 2t December 31, 2020 and 20189,
represenis advances for land acquisitions Infended for Tulurg LusSiness prospects.
In 2020, the land was sold and the Group authorizes its stockholder to recelve the
proceeds from sakbe.

Advance payment to Tolman Manufactuning Inc. (“Toelman®) for future acquisition of
equipmant necessary for pre-processing, sterilizetion, @septic storage and clean n
place station for coconut water amcunting to #30.6 milion as at December 31, 2020 and
2019, The Group has engoing criminal action against Tolman o recover the advance
payment mentioned. In 2019, the Group filed a complaint-affidavit charging the
directors, officers and shareholders (respendents) of Telman, with the crime estafa. The
Group alleges that during the neogotiation stage of the Shareholders Agreement,
respondents represented to the Group that Telman is in the process of increasing its
althorized capital stock from which the shares of the Group will he issued upon the
fatter's delivery of cash, equlpment and other resgurces. Relying on such
represantation, the Group entered into a Shareholders Agreement and defivered o
Tolman #30,000,000 cash, UHT processing equigmeant worth #1324 000,000 and leasa
payments i1 the amount of #46,000,000. Despite receipt of said cash, equipment and
lease payments, respondents falled to issue the Group's shares of stock. Worst, no
appiicalion to increase the capital stock wasever made before or during the axistence
of the Sharshalders Agreement. In the resalution dated January 29, 2021, the Office of
the City of Prosecutor of Makati finds and sufficient ground to ergender a well-founded
belisf that the crime of Estafa under Articla J15, paragraph 2 {a) was committed by
respondent Ermmanusi V. Duenas. The amount is guaranteed by 2 stockholder in the
event of an adverse result of the ongoing case. Due to the foregoing, the total
outstanding receivables of the Group from Talman is considered to be fully recoverable
as at December 31, 2020, In addtion, the assets of Actron Industries, Inc., Jemana
Holdings, Inc. and Duenas in Tolman exceeds the claims of the Group against the
autstanding moceivables. A civil casa can row be filed to furthar pursua for the overall
clalm of the Group against the concerned parties,

Advances amounting to #9.5 milion as at December 31, 2020 for the purpose of
conducting fresh mango production by means of fertilizer and pesticide usage and
harvesting mango produce relative to an agrzement entered into by the Group with
various owners of mango farm lots in 20240,

Peposit amounling o B6.3 million to a local rural bank a5 ab December 31, 2020 and
2018, 1o acquire 2,500,000 common shares representing 12.5% ownership, The said
investment is still for approval of SEC and Banglko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF),

Dreposit amountheg (o 26,3 millon (172,000 AUDY and £46,1 milllon (172,000 AUD) &5
at December 31, 2020 and 2018, respectivaly, to acquire an existing business in
Austratia to expand business operatians.

Apvances ty a local company for the processing fees related o an Insesiment with a
foreign company amounting to 1.5 million in 2020.

Proviswon hor .II"I'I-pail'I‘T'IEI"It loss amounting to B66 millon was recogmzed o 2020
(=zem Mote 22,  Advances and deposits amounting to B 62.8 milllon previously recorded as
deposit for land acquisition was writben off in 2019 as management believas that these are
no lenger recoverable as at reporting date [see Note 22).

Refundable deposits are relative to long-term opsratng and fingnce leased properties of
the Group (see Mate 26).

The balance of refundsble deposits as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was based on the
discourting of future cash flows using the Company's incremental borrowing rata.
Acoretion income from the discounting of mefuadable deposits amounted to #6860 687
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and £72,141 in 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 26).

Advances to suppliers represent noninterest-bearing dewn-payments to third party forelgn

suppliers for repairs and maintenance of fived assets,

17. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Trade payables 29,693,520 128,486 313
Mortrade payables 434,001,013 402,345, 434
Customers’ deposits
Real estate 41,904,759 45,695 212
Sale of goods 18,370,824 22,280,318
Gowemment payables 7,209,036 5,171,163
Accrued expenses 5,794,582 6,179,625
Accrued interest 414,559 1,272,758
538,379,193 611,431,024

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within one month.

Nontrade payables mainly include to unsecured and noninterest-bearing payable
from Thomas Loyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund GMHB (TLCIF) subsequently
assigned by TLCIFto the Group on December 29, 2014, as consented by
Greenergy Holdings Inc. (GHI) with the following terms and conditions:

8. The Group shall pay the nontrade paysbles on or before December 31, 2016
in cash or non-cash assets acceptable to GHI; and

b. If the nontrade payables will be paid with non-cash assets, the appraised
value thereof shall be determined by an independent sppraiser mutually
acceptable to the Group andGHL

As at March 31, 2022, the nontrace payables to GHI are not yet settled.
Nontrade payables also indude ouistanding liabilities to nontrade suppliers.

Customers’ deposit pertains to advanced collections from customers for goods to
bedeliverad.

Accrued expensas are nbligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear
interest. These pertain to accruals made for utilities, association dues, security
services, salaries andwages and professicnal fees. Accruals are made basec an
the prior month’s billings and/or contracts and are normally settled within twelve
(12) months from the end of the reportingperiod.

Government payables include expanded withbolding taxes, withholding taxes on
compensation, final taxes, sodal security, govemment health and other fund
premiums which are paid within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

All trade and other payables are noninterest-bearing.
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18. Loans Payable and Redeemabla Convertible Loan

Details of this account follow:

2022 2021
LOANS PAYABLE
Long temn:
Peso Currency
Bank 1 80,196,428 104,267,857
Bank 2 4,184,202 6,214,574
Others 8,322,953 0,084, 693
93,303,630 119,567,124
Less noncurmrent portion 30,408,993 20372043
Current portion 62,894 637 80,195,081
Short mrm;
Peso Currency
Bank 3 251,600,000 255,600,000
Bank 4 354,500,000 392,200,000
Bank 5 147,000,000 197,000,000
Others 3,000,000 3.000.000
808,100,000 647 800.000
The rollforward analysis of loans payable follows:
% 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of the 967,367,124 786,908,717
Availments during the year - 335,314,386
Payments during the year (67,963,494) (154,855,979)
Foreign exchange adjusime: - -
Balance at end of year 899,403,630 a 867 367,124

Loan features are summarized below:

Peso Currency Loans

Bank 1

The Group have various lcans from Bank 1, which pertain to Short-term Loan Line
(STLL), Export Packing Credit Line {(EPCL), Trust Receipt Lines (TR Lines) and other bank
loans that are currently maturing as of the end of the reporting pericd. The loans bear
interest rate of 6% per annum, with the interest payable on a monthly basis until
December 31, 2022

The loans are secured by an existing real estate mortgage over its land and building
located in Pulilan, Bulacan. The aggregate amcunt of net book values of the land and
building mortgage amounted to £241,205,181 and P201,795,344 as at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively [see Note 11).

Bank 2
The Group nhas a current loan fadility with Bank 2 with loans bearing interest rate of 8.0%
per annum, with interest payable on @ monthly basis. The loan has a term of thirty-two
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{32) maonths, and is payahble via rwenty-four (24) monthly amartization af prAincipal and
interest, payalle fom January 2016 to December 2017, Inciusive of a grace period of
elght {B) months on the payment of the principal from May 2015 ta December 2015.
On June 30, 2017, the loan was restructurzsd and has a remaining term of sixty {(50)
months, princinal pavable every month starting October 2017, The lzan is secured by
pledge on shares of stocks of the Group and continuing suretyship of a stockholder.

Various short-term, unsecured loans fram Bank 3, bearing Interest rates ranging from
3.0% Lo 6.75%: per annum, with the interest payatie on a monthly beasis. The loagn is Lo
be repriced evary thirty (30) to one hundred eight (1807 dayvs upon mutual agreement
of both parties.

Bans< 4
In 2021 and 2220, the Group vanous avaited unsecured, short-term loan From Bank 4
with interest rate ranging from 5% to 5.65% per annum, payahble in three {(3) months,

Hank 5

In 2021, the Group availed unsecursd, shor-term (oans from Bank 5 with interest rate
of 5.65% per annum, payable in six [6) months,

Other leans include the following:

In 2018, TBC availed a loan from a local bank, amounting te #£3,022,800 for acguwsition of
three units of dalivery trucks, with an interest rata of 9.4% per annum, payabla in five (5)
years., Qutstanding balance of loan as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to
P1,236,994 and P1,911,743, respecively, which are secured by a chattel mordoage {(sea
Mote 11).

In May 2004, the previous owners of FCI obtainegd 2 noninterest-bearing, unsecured loan
amounting to P13,650,000 from the Agrcultural Competitiveness Enhancement Fund
(&CEF) of the Department of Agriculture [DA) through the chosen conduit bank, Land Bank
cf the Philippines for the additional working capital and expansion of fruit processing
Facilities. The loan is payable guarterly within five (5] years starting September 2005 ta
Jupe 2009,

Due to unfavorable effects of economic condittons, FCI proposad to settie the ACEF |oan
with manthly payments of P30,000 starting Cctober 2007, The Company also has the
option to pay the lecan at R100,000 quarterly. The DA subsequently approved the
proposal in September 2012,

In Auguset 2018, the loan was restrostured as a result of the decision made by the ACEF
Executive Committee (EXECOM) during its meeting in May 2018, FCI proposed for
deferment of 10% of outstanding balance amounting to P1,046,000 to be paid on
January 31, 201%. The carresponding balance to be paid at P831,570, quarterly, for
three (3} years, starting on March 31, 2019, amount inclusive of fixed annual interest
af 3%, Interest of PAT.070 is payable on a guarterly basis, upon payment of principal.
Qutstanding balance of the lean amounted to F7,060,500 as at Decembear 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

AN availed short-term, unsecured lcans from third-party individuals which bear interest
ranging from 1% fo 2% and have terms of 1-12 months. Outstanding balance of these
hnans amounted to P57 milllon as at December 51, 2020, The loan was settled in 2021,

FFCI avalled short term, unsecured losns which bear interest rate of 1% per month, payable
on a monthly basis and have maximum terms of theee (37 te six (6) months. Cutstanding
balance of these loans amounted to #3.0 milllon a5 at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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The maturity profile for the Group's loans payable as at March 31, 2021 and
December 31,2020 is as lollows:

.l

2022 2021
Dug within one year 868,994,637 837,995,081
Dug beyond one year bul e 30,408,993 29,372,043

899,403,630 867,367,124
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19. Revenues

The table below shows the analysis of revenuves of the Croup by major sources for the years ended March 21, 2022 and December
31, 2021:

202
Colmanry Espoat Local Distribudion Rednil Foreign Trading Tatal
Geographical
China 262,443 727 250, 0,200 496,539,164 1,008,9848,801
Frilippings - 5,903,965 7438671 G2, 400,658
Liga, 15.098612
Horgkong 1310942 - 1,310,942
Middls sast 1,027 640 - 1,027,640
Japan 1,003, 398 - 1,008,358
Tatal 280,854,319 304,961,265 7.426,671 496,539, 164 1,089,834 1259
Magpr Goods/Samvices Line
Banana 256,904,340 156,904,546
Merchandisa 118,076 427 118,076,427
Fruks and vagembles 1,027,640 24,755,803 172,200,126 188,177 568
Bukcing ond materiak 88 571 568 B&,571,568
Furnilure and gacgat B4 08 299 BY, DM, 285
Tollirg TR 55T, 108
Residential and sormarcal rasl psiate 26 416,744 28,416,744
Flice 270,032 500 270,032 500
Coocorad wisder 15,080,612 913,108 16,009,720
Festawant food and beverages T.436 671 7,436 671
Puree 7855 520 8673 306 16,544 817
Vegan 21,838 21,838

Total 280,894 318 304,963 385 T.436.6T1 406,539,164 1.089,834,.130




._EE.



20. Equity

On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of
the Group from one billion pesos (P1,000,000,000) divided intg one billion shares Lo
two billion pesos (P2,000,000,000) civided into two billion common shares both with
par value of ane peso (P1).

Dua to the subscription of Plentex an December 23, 2020, the total number of
subscribed shares increased to 1,024,446,B88 as at December 31, 2020. The issuance
of Plentex shares in favor of the Group is mot yet fully completed as at December 31,
2021 (see
Note 1).

No movements In the Group’s authorized number of shares with a par value of P1 per
share during 2021 and 2020 as shown below:

2022 2021

Balarce P2,000,000,000 £2 000,000,000

Alsg, there was no mavement in the Group's subscribed and paid-up capital during
March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 as shown below:

2022 2020

Balance P2.000,000 000 P2 000,000 000
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Rollfarward analysls of subscribed capital at par value is shown balow:

2022 2021
Belance st beginning of year £1,024.446,888 1,024,445, 858
Subscriptions during the year - -
Balance at end of year P1,024, 446888 P1,074.446 8088

The movemant In the Group's additional paid-in capital is shown below,

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year £3,602,050,960 P3 567,071,760
Additions during the year - 34,979,200

Balange at end of yaar

£3,602,050,960 £3,60.2,050,960

The toatal number of shargholders of the Group is-41 as at March 31, 2022 and December
31, 2021,

The principal market for the Group’s capital stock is the PSE, The high and low trading
prices of the Group’s shares as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
High Low High Low
First 5.35 5.14 710 B.92
Second - - 6.30 6.09
Third - - 5.09 4.90
Faarth - = 498 4.88

21. Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net sarnings (loss)

attributable to stockholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the years.

Earnings (Loss) per shara attrbutable to the equity holders of the Group

o o 2022 2021
Met income {loss) from ontinuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the Group P42,359,134 P£520,031,454
Weighled average number of comimon shares -
subscribed and paid up B32,831,688 832,831,688
Basic and diluted eamings (loss)
pEr snare P0.05 P bd

& The welghted aversge number of shares fakes inta account the welghted average effect of the
new subscripghions dunimg Hre pear,

2022 2021
Mumber of shares begnning of year B32,831,688 830,774,088
Weightad average number of shares
issued during tha year - 2,057,600
Weighted average numbear of
outstanding common shares —
subsoribed and paid up B32.831,688 832,831 688

Eamings {Loss] per share attributable to the
aperalions

equity holders of the Group from continuing
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2022 2021

Net income (loss) fram continuing

operations attnibutable to equity

holders of the Group P42,359,134 R529,031,454
Weighted average number of common

shares - subscribed and paid up 832,831,688 832,831,688
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)

per share £0.05 PO.64

22. Related Party Transactions

The Company has transactions with related parties. For consolidated financial statements
disclosure purposes, an affiliate is an entity under common control of the Company's
shareholders.

The Group has the fallowing transactions with relatad parties:

Unsacured and non-interast-bearing cash advances to/from its related parties for the
acquisition of operating machinery and equipment and other investing activities and for
working capital purposes. These are payable on demand and usually settled in cash or
other form of assets by way of liquidation.

On December 28, 2018, the Group and a third-party individual entered Into an
agreement to form a joint venture to develop a property located in Taytay, Rizal,
Relative to this, the Group made a deposit amounting to P300.0 million to acguire a
portion of the 859 hectares, or a corresponding portion thereof, of titled and untitled
parcels of land.

In 2019, the Group made additional deposit amounting to £208.7 million which was
advanced by one of its stockholders. As at reporting date, the third party Is completing
the titling of the whole portion of the property to fully execute the transactions. The
deposit shall be recognized as property upon the determination of the final amount and
upon taking control of the related property (see Note 15).

A stockholder personally guaranteed several bank loans with its real estate property,
shares of stock and continuing suretyship of a stock (see Nates 17).

An affiliated company provides additional guarantee to the Group's S5-year loan in
denominated in RMB (ses Note 17).

Details of the related party balances follow:

i 2022 ' 2021
Receivables

Stockholders 171,187,015 275,733,442
Affiliates 281,041,552 282,628,054
452,228,567 558,361,496
Allowance for impairment - 1,142,721 - 6,460,530
451,085,846 551,500,966

Payables Affiliates
Stockholders 5,213,292 5,416,292
Affiliates 112,367,641 149,573,250

117,580,933 154,989,542
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The rollforward analysis of related party accounts follow:

F

2022 2021
Due from related parties:
E:L‘E'r”“e aLDegInnITg of 551,900,966 P538,254,012
Advances 258,799,714
Collections, settlements
and liquidation 100,815,120 245,152,760
451,085,846 551,900,966
Direct write-off - -
Balance at end of year 451,085,846 P551,900,966
Due to related parties;
3:;"& at beginning of P154,989,542 PS7,295,175
Advances 97,694,367
Payments 37,408,609 -

Balance at end of year

117,580,933

P154,989,542




a. Detalls of the related party balances follow: - 33 -

The summary of the above related party transactions follows:

2021 2020
Balance - Balance - Assef Terms and
Category Amount Assst Amaount {Lianihty) Condition/ Settilement Guaranty /Provision
{ Lialvility )
Stockholders
MNonf-interest bearing; Ungacured; no
Recarvable a171 187,015 H275,733,442 payable on demand; tebe significant warranties
= Advances made 106,783,847 settled in cash or cther and covenants; no
w Collisctions, settlements amd asmets impairment
liquidaticn {100,815,420) (221,357,457]
Payaliles {5,213,292) (5,416,292} Kon-interest besrng; Lingascured; no
= Advances receied (5,213, 2592) {5416,292) payabile an demand; o be  skgnificant warrantiss
+ Payments made sattled in cash or other and covenants
agsets
Enti ; i
Recsivables 279,898,831 276,167,524 Non-inferest beanng; Linsecured; mo
= Advances imade 113,510,362 152, 015,B67 payabile an demand; bo he ssnilicant warrantiss
& Collpction: :II,TSE,EUJ] settled in cash or other and covenants; with
& Diresct write-ofl = pasats Impalrment
= Allewance for impalnment {1,142,721)- {6460 5320) - {6,460,530])
Payable (144,281,715) Non-interest bearing; Linsecured; no

» Aduznces rece|vesd
= Payments mada

279,898,831 (gg 98E,540)

276,167,524

payable on demand; to be

settled In cash or other
assels

significant warranties
and cowvenants

23



Due from Stockholders

Due from stockholders mainly pertain to advances to the Group's President to be used in
the Agri-Sector Digitalization Program in partnership with government agencies (see Note
1). These are non-interest-bearing advances, unsecured, not guaranteed and no
impairment and are generally collectible on demand and to be settled in cash and other
assets  through  liquidation or  offsetting with  corresponding payable,
In 2022 and 2021, the balance of due from stockholders is current.

ion of Key Man m nel

The Group considers its President, Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Vice President as
key management personnel. Total remuneration of key management personnel,
composed mainly of short-term employee benefits and provision for retirement benefits
for executive officers, were included under “Personnel costs”™ In the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounting to P15.9 million, P9.9 million and P9.3
million in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, There were no other benefits aside from
the salaries and other short-term benefits.

There are no other significant related party transactions in 2022 and 2021.

23.Cost of Sales

2022 2021
Invantores al beginning of year 320,821,276 1,079, 026,621
Purchases and comversion of cosls 938,954 326 533,076,482
Cost of coods available for saje d 1,259,775,602 1,612,103,003
Less iventones at end of year 419,123,411 1,141.098,073
Cust ¢f goods sokd B40,652,191 471,004,530
Cost of goods sold of real property:
Inventories, beginning 758,205,245 919,869,285
Matorials, devolopman and ancllary cost 1,244,663, 842 2636, 261 .66
Trarsfer from advances to contractors for materials. d - T3.552.840
Trarsfer from CIP under investment property {958,551,463) 68,244,352
Cost of real proparty 1,044,317, 624 1,328.628,053
Invesntores, end 945 328 084 T58 205,245
98,980,540 570,422,808
Cost of goods and services sold 930,641,731 1,041.427,738

Others include production supplies, freight and handling costs, contracted
services, gas andoil, repairs and maintenance, tolling, sales commission and

utilities.



24. General and Administrative Expenses

Other employee benefits include SSS, HDMF, Philhealth employer contributions and
13" month bonus. Others pertains to trainings and seminars, pest controls, mails
and postages and printing.

2022 2021
Taxes and licenses 25,621,715 24,090,132
Personnel costs 23,012,827 20,231,737
Representation and entertainment 3,134,748 1,085,876
Addvertising 1,548,409 12 639,079
Depreciation and amortization 18,803,085 20,893, 562
Rentals 428,030 344,626
Communication, light and water 3,970,203 1,074,283
Professional fees 492,979 330,000
Freight and handling cost 930,478 657,177
Impairment and write-off 6,148 318
Transportation and travel 4,329,965 577,611
Supplies 762,425 613,243
Dues and subscription 155,144 601,221
Repairs and maintenance 1,485,213 Ba2, 154
Contracted services 656,284 451,335
Insurance 46,134 70 859
Bank charges 169,127 38,993
Others 3,529,810 1,424, 282
89,076,576 F92,119, 488
25, Other income (charges)
2022 2021
Other intoms
Gain {lass) on reversal of allowance for
'm}:*:: 1432, 579.00
FV gain on bio assets LSDIOGTE
Rental Income 2RR.RET
_Dhess e __s&ase
16,012,787 316.446.00
Ottt aopunsas:
Rosdizod Toralgn ehange ioms. {gn) 179,272 167,735.00
Oevers 339,272 167,735.00

15,683,515 14871100




26. Retirement Liability

The Company has 2 single retirement plan under the requlatory framework of the Philippines,
Under R.A, Mo, 7641, the Company s legally abliged to provide a minimum retirement pay
for quallfted emplovees upon retliremeant. The framework, however, does not have a minlmum
lunding requirement. The Company's benefit plan is alioned with this framework,

Under the funded plan, the employeas are entitled to retirement benefits eguivalent to 22.5
days per vear of cradited sarvice in accordance with R.A. No. 7641 on attainment of a
retirement age of sixty (60) years with at least five (5) years of service. The payments for

the funded benehts are borne by the Company as it falls due.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was
carried out on January 3, 2022 by Miravite Consulting Group The present value of the defined
benefit cbligation, and the related current service cast and past service cost, were measured

using the Projectad Unit Cradit Method (PUCM}.

Tke following table summarizes the components of pension costs recognized in the Group's

consohidated statements of comprehansive inoome;

Mate 2021 2020 2019
Charged to profit and loss:
Current service cost £2,466,198 BI63,165 £917,300
Met interest cost 677,826 590,596 455,432
23 3,144,024 1,554,161 1,372,732
Cherged {credited) fo other
comprehensiva income:
Nel remeasurement gains 4,042,199 - 3,278,867
P7,186,223 P1,554,161 P4,651,599

Movermnent of retirement liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial

position are as follows:

Noce 2021 2020
Eazlance at beginning of vear £12,088,815 £10,534,654
Retirement benefits expanse 23 3,144,024 I,554,161
Remeasurament loss 4,042,199 -
Balance at end of year P19.275,038 p12.0B8,B15

The milforward of net cumulative remedsurement gain on retirement hensfits as at

December 31, 2021 and 2020 follows:

2021 2020

Balance at beginning of year £3,652,613 B3,652,613
Remeasurament loss {4,042,199) =
_Balance at end of year P{389,588) P3,652,613



The cost of defined berefit pension plans and other post-employment medical benefits
as well as the present value of the penslon obligation are determined using actuarial
waluations. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. The principal
assumptions used In determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for
the defined benefit plans are shown below:

2021 2020 2019
Discount rate 5.20% 7.80% 7F.B0%
Projected salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit
liability 15 as follows:

Impact on Defined Banefit Obligation

Changa in Increase in Decraase in

Assumption Assumption Assumption
December 31, 2021
Discount rate +/-1.00% Decrease by 6.20% Increase by 4.209%
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% Increase by 6.00% Decrease by 4.00%
Dxcember 31, 2020
Discount rate +/-1.00% Decrease by 0.50% Increase by 0.50%
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% Increase by 0:.50% Detraase by 0.50%

All other assumpbons are held constant in determiming the sensitivity results above.

The estimated average remaining working lives of employees is 14 years for the years
ended December 38, 2021 and 2020,

27. Income Taxes

il

The Group and local subsidiaries are subject to RCIT or MCIT whichever is higher. Foreign
subsidliarles are subiect to corporate Income tax at statutory tax rate applicable to thelr

respecltive countries. [ncome tax expense amounted to P35,79€ 748, P44,700,430 and
PeS 678,716 in 2021, 2020, and 2019 respectively.



b. A reconciliation of provision for income tax expense (benefit) for 2021, 2020 and 2019
applicable to income before income fax computed at the statutory income tax rates

follaws:;
2021 2020 2019
Incowne befare ncame tax #1,094,664,173 P53361,938 P154,317 418
Multiplied by <tatubory rate 259 § X0 A% 419
Income tax at statutory rabe € 30% - 15,978,582 46,295,225
Income tax at statutory rate & 25% 276,377,583 - -
Incoume tax at statutory rate & 200 (2,169,232) - -
Income tax effects of:
Changes in unrecogrized deferred tax assats (9,523,083) 4,783,997 L
Difference in tax rates (223,504,739) (5.777.134) 1,931,008
Application of NOLCO (1,133, 378) (2504 B8E7)] (18213 9749)
Nomndeductible depreciation fram
plecamaal revalustion 2,469 859
MNondeductible sopenses 169,347 1,BE1,B49 2,057 45
MNantaralle incorme (32,957) {174 Bag)
Tnkerest income subject to final tax (5,765} {9,805) {9,270)
Prowvizlon far retirement expense - -
Amortization of security deposit 10,642 = =
Effect of change in tax A [1,045961) = -
Reversal of alowancs {2,235,600) - -
Unrealized foregn exchange galn {665) = -
Applied/Fxpired MCIT [3,606125) (7631 725) -
Total income tax - current and defermed 36,802,873 36,6%H,935 69,576, 267
Creferred income bax expense |beoefit) 1,006,124  [H.001,505) {1052 448
Current moome fAax axpanss P35, 796,749 P34,700,430 PGH,6VH,T1E

C. The Group reviews deferred tax assets at each financlal reporting date and recognized
these ko the axtant that it is probabla that sufficiant taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred Income tax assats to he utilized.

# The Group have recognized deferred tax asset arising from the effect of PFRS1S,

Leases as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2020 £ 102,449
Recognized in prafit or loss 284 800
Balance at December 31, 2020 387,049
Recognized in prafit or loss (248,024)
Effect of change in tax rate (129,016
Balance at December 31, 2021 2 10,009
# The Group has unrecognized daferred taxes from the following:
Notes 2021 2020 2019
Allowance for Impalrment losses 7.9,.15 P7L169,018 P45,321,511 P25,643,014
MOoLCO 5,733,030 33,128,024 22,042,489
Rietirerment liabifity 25 4,505,052 3,626,645 3,160,396
MCIT 1,731,776 6,185,034 14 982,151
Linrealized forsign exchange nss 96 489 J8,129 1,367,790
PR3,235 365 PRY, 339,743 P71, 195,840




d. The Group recagnized deferred tax liabilities from the fallowing;

Gain on change

Revaluation o fair value of
incrament biological assets Total

Balance at January 1, 2020 B- B- P
Recognized in other

comprahensive inoomes B, /37,251 = 8,737,251
Balance at December 31, 2020 B, 737,251 = 8,737,251
Recoqnized in profit or loss . 5,989 783 5,989 7R3
Recognized in other

comprahensive noome 17,335,743 = 17,335,743
Effect of change in tax rate (1,456,208) (1,456,208)

Balance at December 31, 2021 P24,616,786 P5,089,783  P30,606,569

&. The deferred income tax expense (bensfit] amountad to #1,006,125, (FA,001,5058) and

(P102,.449) in 2021, 2020 and 2015, Income tax benefit in 2021, 2020 and 2019 also
includes applied MCIT whose carresponding deferred tax asset was previously not

recognized amounting to P3,485,638, P77, 716,905 and nil, respectively.

f.  RNet Operating Loss Carry=-0Owver (NOLCO)

. NOLCD incurred prior to taxable year 2020
MOLCO incurred prior to taxable year 2020 can be clasmed as deduction against regular
texable income within the next three (3] consecutive taxabie years immediately
fallowing the year of such loss.

Year incurred Expiration Explred/Applied Unapplied Tax effect
2015 2022 P438,464 P27,446,593 PG 489,319
2018 2021 48,280,247 - .

P28,724,711 P27,446,593  P5,489,319

. MNOLCO incurred in taxabla vear 2020
Pursuant to Section 4 (bbbh) of Bayanihan 11 and as implemented under Revenue
Requlations [(RR) No. 25-2020; the net operating losses of a business or anterprise
incurred for taxahle years 2020 and 2021 ran be carried over as deduction from gross
income for the next five {5) consecutive taXable years immediately following the year of

such loss.
Year incurred Expiration Applied Unapplied Tak effect
2021 2026 P P31,367,140 P&, 273,428
2020 2025 1,016,738 53,190,924 10,638,185

P1,016,738 PB4,558,064 P16,911,613

. The Group incurred MCIT which can be claimed as deduction against future @&y duse as

follows:
Year incurred Expiration Expired/Appliad Urnapplied
2018 2021 Pi1,154,269 P
2019 20232 3,537,807 1,306,633
2020 2023 85,180 342,344
2021 2024 - 223,601
P4,777,256 £1,872,578

h. The Group opted for the itemized deduction scheme for its income tax reporting in 2021,
2020 and 2015,



28. Lease Agreements

Group a5 a Lessor
The Group bas an operating lease arrangement of its property to a thizd-party construction
CIHTIRRINY,

The lease has a term of one year commencing from January 1, 2018 subject to an annual
review and renewable upon mutual agreament of the parties. The lease contract was renawed
n 2020 and 2021 for another twelve (12) months from date of renewal, Refundable deposit
pertaining to this lease amounted to AL21,511 (see Note 16).

The leasa agreement includes clause requiring the lessee to be lfable when the property has
been subjected (0 excess wear-and-tear during the lease term. This strategy minimizes the
risk exposure to residual value of the underlying asset.

Estimated future minimiem [2ase recalpts to be collected to lessee not later than ane (1) year
as gk December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to £1.1 million.

Rental income from the leese amounted to P1,155,469 in 2021, P1,035,5923 In 2020,
P1,160.459 In 2019 {(sea Note 24),

Sroup as 3 Lasses
The Group leases machinery, transportation equipment and store premises from third parties
urder finance lease agreements ranging from four (4) te seven (7) years.

I Right-of-pse assels

The balance and movements of ROU assets relating to the lease of machinery,
transportation equipment and store premises is as follows {see Note 12]:

2021
Discount on
rental
Leases deposit Total
Cost
Balance $152,799,108 P198,692 P152,997,500
Accumulated amortization
Balance at the beginning of year 49 186,609 145 481 48,332,000
Amaortization during the year
[MNote 23) 23,926,450 53,211 23,979,661
Balance at end of year 73,113,059 198 692 73,311,751
et carrying value P79,686,049 P- P79,686,049
2020
Discount an
Leases rental deposit Taotal
Cost
Balance at the beginning of year £150,516,240 £191,508  P150,707,.847
Additions during the vear 2,282,859 7,094 2,288,953
Balance at end of year 152,799, 108 198,682 152,997,800
Accumulated amortization
Balance at the baginning of vear 24,461,114 76,128 24,537,242
Amortization during the year
{Note 23) 24,725,494 E9,353 24,794, 84
Balance at end of year 4% 186,608 145,481 49,332,089

Net cammying value £103,612,500 B53,211 Fl103,665,711




.
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Refundable Deposit

Tha balance and movements of refundable deposits as ol December 31, 2021 and 2020
folfow:

MNate 2021 2020

Carrying value as al beginning of year P10,728,536 Plb,752.269
Deposits made during the year - 483,824
Retund on deposits received during the
year {1,015,911) {72,000
Total refundable deposits 9,712,625 17,164,093
Refundable deposits on short term leases 9 (7,817,277) (15,2566,591)
Moncurrent refundable deposits 1,895,348 1,897,502
Refuncable depasits other than leases i5 (698,724) {698,724}
Refundable deposits refated to leases 1,195,624 1,198,778
Discount on refundable deposits = (7.084)
Accretion income on refundable deposits - 69,687
Carrying value as-al end of yoaar of

refundable depasits related to leases 15 P1,196,624 1,261,371

Relative to the leases, the Group's refundable deposit amounted PLE.S million as at
Ceecember 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is equivalent to one month lease rental
based on rental rate applicable on the fast year of the lease term. The refundable deposit
is presented under "Prepayments and other current assets” and "Other noncurment assets”
account in the consolidated statemments of financial position as at December 31, 2021 and
2020 (see Motes 9-and 15,

tease Liahilities

The balance and movements of lease liabilities as at December 31, 2021 and 2020
relating to the leases abdve follow:

Z021 2020
Salance at the beginning of vear £5,892,020 P11,865, 788
Payments of lzasa Hability (5,466,702) {7,102, 747
Additions during the vear - 2,282,859
Gain on foregone leases - {1,870,017)
Amortization of interest 184,314 716,137
Met camrying value 609,632 5,802,020
Less: current portion 291,160 h.282,3BB
MNoncurrent portion P318,472 P09, 632

At each reporting date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimem
lease payments under non-cancelable aparating leases, which fall due as follows:

2021 2020

Mot later than one {1) year f334,211 P334,211
Later than one (1) vear but not later than five (5) 334,210 Bo8 421
PH68.421 P1.002,632

Short-term Legsas

The Group ieases office spaces, warehouses, residential units, warehouse equipment
under lease agreements usually far & peried of one (1) yvear, renewable subject to the
mutual consent of the lessor and the lessee without any escalation clause.



V. Amaunts recognized in profit or loss:

MNoke 2021 2020 2019
Cost of services: 22
Amortization of RO P23,979,661 P24,794,8B47 P24,537,242
Renl expense
relating to short-
term lease 1,411,738 5,533,672 12,491,225
Operating expenses: 24
Rant expanse
reelating to short-
term lease 2. 232 654 2441 208 11,719 78T
Other income (changes):
Inkerest cost on lease liability 184,313 716,137 1,135,283
Rental income 24 1,155 469 1,039,023 1,160,459
Gain on foregone leases 23 - 1,870,017 -
Accretion income on discount
on refundable deposit 14 - 69,687 72,141

Asa result-of the COVID-19 pandemic, the lessors provided rent concessions tothe Group
in the form of rent-free periods and discounts. The Group accounted these. rent
concessions as not a lease modification. The rent concessions resulted to a decrease of
lease lighilities amounting to P1,870,017 as at December 31, 2020 2nd to the recognition
of gain on forgone leases in 2020 of the same amount.

Income tax benefit amounting to P248,025 in 2021 and P284,600 (n 2020 relates to
the adoption of PFRS 16 (see Note 26).

29. Financial Risk Management and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

Financial Risk Management Ohjectives and Policias

The Group's princlpal financlal Instruments consist of cash, trade and other recelvables
(excluding advances to officers and employees), due o and from refated parties and
stockholders, loans and [ease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
finance the Group’s normal course of Its operating activities. The Group has varlous other
financial assets and financial liabilities such as refundable deposits under “Prepayments and
other current assets” and deposits and other non-current assets and trade and other payables
(excluding government payables and customers’ deposits) which arise directly from Its
cperations,

The main risks arising Irom the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, Hguidity risk,
market nisk, intorest rake nek and Foreign cumency nsk. The BOD reviews and agrees policias
for managing each of these risks and thay are summarized below:

= Credit Risk
Credit risk refars to the potential loss arlsing from any fallure by counterparties to fulfill
their obligations, as and when they [aill due, It is inherent to the business as potential
Ioszas may arise due to the failure of its customers and counterparties to fulfill their
obllgations on maturity pericds or due to adverse market conditions.



Credit risk exposure

Tke table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group's financial
assets, without taking into account any collateral and other credit enhancements
as at December 31, 2021 and 2020

2022 2021
Financial assets at amortized costs:
Cach in bank P45,991,062 P48.316,792
Trade and other receivables - net 736,795,395 741,839,091
Due from related parties — net 279,898,831 276,167,524
Due from a stockholder 171,187,015 275,733,442
Aefundable deposits — nat 9,611,453 9,611,453

P1,207,200,530 Pl 351,668,302

The table above exdudes financial assets and finandial lisbilities of subsidiarias
accounted for using the guidation basis of accounting (see Note 29).

Credit guality per class of inancial assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using intemal cradit

ratings and is ciassified into three:

{a] high grade which has no history of default;

(b) standard grade which pertaing to accounts with history of one (1) or two [2)
defaults; and

{c} substandard grade, which pertains to accounts with history of at least 3 payment

defaults,

The table below summarizes the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets based
on its historical experience with the corresponding parties ag at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021:

2022
Meither past dus nor impaired
Past dus bk
High grade  Standard grade  not impaired  Impaired Total

Cash P47, 754,125 PL19, 426 = - 47,873,651
Trsda angd other

realeiyabibes A 589,436,216 147,358,079 51,571,806 THE, 367,201
Cue froim releted partes - 186,359,361 = 6,460,530 179 898,831
Ense Froun & stockbiolder - 171, 187 015 - - 171, 187,015
Firranciat assels al PEOTT = 49, 107,600 = = A9, 107,600
ERNiT0g(me pegesis = DA O0E BRI  18.503. 758
Tamal P47, 754,235 P1,157,435,193  PL47, 3590 P54, 733 436 P1,301,527 260

H1d1
ewthar past doe nor
irnaired Fast dua Bt
High grade  Stancardgrade 00bImpalred Impairen Total

Cash FEO, 04, 353 PL3G,5TT P #50,LTT 965
Tragie and other

ristovi g - 528,006,065 153,024,547 51,571,806 T33.504418
Diue Trom felabed partes 5 276,157,524 - G.A60,530 262,625,004
Dhome frewim & stockbiolder = 251,083 378 = - 251 0E2 378
Fimanciad assets st S0CT > A7, B, A0 = = 27,801,400
Refundahie deposits > 9553 68 = 6,711, 108 165,664 J68
Toml PO, 0k 38D Pl 134048612 £153,034 547 PEA.T43 456 Bl 411 ASH 0984




d.

The table above excludes financial assets and financial liabilities of subsidiaries
accounted for using the liguldation basts of accounting (see Mote 29).

= Cashin banks classified as high grade are deposited and invested with banks with
good credit training and can ba withdrawn anytime. Standard grade cash in
panks are thase deposited under rural banks,

» High grade receivables pertain to receivables from third party buyers of real
estate of the Group and program partners who consistently pay bafore the
maturity date. Standard grade receivables are receivables that are collected on
their due dates evan without an effort from the Group to follow them up. Both
high grade and standard grade receivables currently hawve no to mimmal history
of default,

=« [wue from related parties and stockholder are assessed as standard grade since
the Group practices offsetting of receivables and payables.

* High-grade refundable depasits are accounts considered to be high value. The
counterparties have a very remote likelinood of default. Refundable security
deposits assessed as stendard grade are refunded upon termination or fulfilment
of agreement.

Below is the aging analysis of past due but not impaired tracde and other recelvabies:

30 o [ Fore than
Trade 60 days ab days 90 days Tatal
2022 p31,288,243 P28,367,769 p87,703,067 P147,359,079
2021 E3Z2 491,172 B29 458 416 Bg].074,9549 Bi53, 0249, 547

Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arlse when a number of counterparties are engaged In similar
business activities or activides in the same geographic region or have similar
economic features that would cause ther ability to meet contractual obligations to
be similarly affected by changes in economic, political ar ather conditions,
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location. Such credit
risk eancentrations, if not properly manaqed, may cause significant losses that cauld
threaten tha Group’s finendial strength and undermine public confidence, The Group
is not exposed to large concentration of credit risks,

Impairment sssessment

The Group applies general approach for determining the expected credit losses of
cash in banks, nontrade recelvables, due from related parties, due from a stockholder
and refundable deposit, A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that
are expectzd to be received discaunted at the original effective interest rate and
contractual cash flows In accordance with the contract. The loss allowance far
financial assels is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expacted loss
rates. The management provided allcwance for impairment of due from related
parties amounting t© 256.5 milllon as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively and refundable deposits amounting te P8.7 million as at Decermbr
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Notes 9 and 21).

The Group applies the PFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit l0sses
which uses a lifetime axpected loss allowance for trade recelvables. Ta measure
expected credit loss, receivahbles were grouped based an days past dus and grouped
the customers according to their profile. The expected loss rates are based on the
histencal credit lasses within the period aftimea. The historical lass rates are adjusted
to reflect current and Forward-looking information affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.



The Group has identifisad GDP of Asla Pacific cantinent to which the principal entities
of the Group's customers are based as the most relevant factor, and accordingly
adjust historical loss rate based on the changes on GDP growth rates. The Group has
identified GRP of the Philippines as the most relevant factar for its lacal and related
party sales.

Based on the abowve basis, the loss allowance on receivables after specific
identification as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was determined using the expected
loss rates as follows:
2021
1to30days Over30to 60 Over 60 to 90 Over 90 days
past due  days past due days past due past dua

Expeched loss rate

Export 0.00% 0.00%: 0.00% 0.00%
Lacal 0.00% 0.00% 0. D0% 0. 00%,
Related party 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%: 0.00%
2020
lto3Gdays Over30to6d Overt0to®  OQver 90 days
past due  days past due  days pastidue  pastdie
Expeched loss rate

Eupinrd 0,050 0,300 0.03% L1 7%
Local 0.05%: 0.75%: 000 0. 00%
Ratatad party 0. 00 0.00%, 10,23 170,01 %

Total allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables from the simplified
approach of measuring ECL amounted to P48.1 million and PE4.8 million as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

Tatal provision for impairment losses recognized under "Operating expanses” account
in profit or loss amounted to nil in 2021 B5.5 million in 2020, P5.9 million in 2019
(zse MNate 7).

Liguidity Risk

Liguldity risk s the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances, To limit the risk, the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet operatmg capital reguirements. The Group also
mianitors the maturties of ks financial assets and financial Hahllities and ansures that it
has sufficient current assets to settle the current liabilitias,



The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial Habilities and
assets 2s at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 based on undiscounted payments:

2022 S — o - i
Bue writhin Bue bayend
On demand aome 1] year one [1] year Totml
FINanRoial s
Cash 46,991,502 46,991, 5032
Trado andl o
bl e e - AEYTIA 440 - ST SR
Touam from bt patles 279,858 831 = - 275, 8498 231
Ceap from 2 stockhchder 171, 1E7, 015 - = 171,187.015
Fioancial nsee s at PUGCt 49,107,600 - - 45,107,608
Rsfundabls dapositys = nel 6,735,000 TGS 987 342,315 14,839,212
553,915 048 !II_!!H-I-,M! 242,215 l.:’-";.WrWI
ey Avaeactad Wadities
Teade sl Gllese payaides Ll E17.077. 828 Lo E17.077, 18
Mhae by relafed parhes 112,067,642 = = 112,67, 642
Loars pavabla - B8 991,637 50.408,991 B8, 105,630
L wstai lialufilies = 1,160 31R.473 EOE, 532
JEShad 1.4 [T 4] 27 1,629 FIAEL
M
D wathin O beypont
Dwd D mamd ome [1] year ana (1} woar Total
Fineroal assess
Cash PERATT, 965 [ " PED, LT T 066
Tradu and cihmy
Tl e ; g, 023, 78] " G220, 383
[ras frarm relabsd paches 196 UGT, SR - - I AGT, N
B from & st kliolder 251,082,378 - - 510829
Finaredal anssis al PUOCT S7. B0 A07 d . #7501, 400
Eafundabls deponts - st 5 R5F, 495 2,185 581 1,774,276 411,453
LS R k= o P, Sl Db [ PR P L, S, Bl 1UE
memr Aol wabeifiny
Trade nrdd niher paynbles 7 PEF, 20T SE0 o L, 28T GED
Puw b sefalled pariam 153, 560, 134 d " 153,500,134
Loans payvabio - SEF.rgh JEl 28,352,040 LI 1A
| mads fialollms Exd TRl s ] FE477 0O R1Z
F15, Sl 1% P ASA %75 900 F3o,Ae0, 515 P, A1 had, 550

The table abowve excludes financial assets and financial liabilities of subsidiaries accounted
for using the liguidation basis of accounting (ses Mole 29),

«  Market sk

Market risk is the risk of loss to future earmings, to fair values ar to future cash flows that
may result from changes in the price of a finandial instrument. The value of a financial
Instrument may change as a result of changes (n foreign currency exchanges rates and

interest rates.



Fareign currency risk

Forelgn currency risk |s the risk to earnings or capltal arising from changes In forelgn
oxchange rotes. The Group takes on axposurs (0 affects of Muctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its consolidated financial statements and cash flows,
The Group has transactlonal currency exposures. Such exposure generally arises from
cash in banks, trade receivable and payables, deposits, loans payable and lease |ability
in Renminbl (RMB), Heng Kong Daollar (HKS), United States Dellar (US$) and Australian
Dollar (AL$Y. The Group did not sesek to hadge the exposure on the change In farelgn
sxchange rates bebwean the RMB, US$, HK$, AUS and the Philippine Pesos. The Group
does not generally believe that active currency hedging would provide long-term benefits
to stockholders.

The Group's policy s to maintain forelogn currency exposure within acceptable limits and
within existimg regulatory guidelines. The Group believes Lhat its profile of foreign
currency exposure on ks assets and liabilibes is within conservative limits for an
Institution engaged in the type of busingss in which the Group 15 Invalved,

FI] i
InUSD In Pap In USD In Php
Tt = bk § 58,520 P 3,560,288 5 LBl PoaIn
InEU In Pap InEU In Php
iL2g |1 bank £ (. 1] 18,756

The eguivalent exchange rates of one foreign currency In Philippine peso as- at Decembear 31,
2021 and 2020 are as The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In the exchange rate,
with all ather variahles held constant, of the Group’s income before income tax In 2021 and
2020 are as foliows:

2022 2021
LS4 P51.96 P50.77
RMB 6.35 7.97
HES 6.63 6.51
2021 2020
Increase Inerease
(decreass) {decrease)
Currancy in rate Net effect in rate Met
effect
RMB 1.305%% 66,888,361 0.89% 47,531,431
(1.30%) (56,B88,361) (0.89%) (47,531,431}
HKs 1.02% 10,998 0.68% 46,706
£1.02%) {10,598) (0.68%) {46,706)
uss 0.99% 120,547,405 0.60% 47,049,493
£0.99%) (120,547.405) (0.60%) (47,043 493)
AL 2.60% 25,940,055 2.B2% GB,415,85948

{2.60%]) (25,940,055}  (2.82%)  (6,415,898)



Forelgn excharge loss is as follows:

2022 2021
Raalired foreign exchangs
loss {gain) PaA2D 272 Pa2a B30
Unrealized forelgn exchange 3,014,382
loess
P3,29,272 P3,443,218

Interest Rate Risk

Tha Group's exposure Lo interest rate risk arises from its cash deposits in banks which
arg subject to variable interest rates while its loans payable at fixed interest rates.
The risk-is managed by the Group by maintaining appropriate fixed rate loans payabile,

Thea interest rate risk arising from deposits with banks is managed by maans of effective
investmeant planning and analysis and maximizing investment opportunities in various
lecal banks and financal institutions,

Profit for the yveors ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 would have been unaffected
since the Group has no loans payable at variahle rates and Interest rate risk exposure for
its cash in bank, which is subject to variable rate, s very immaterial.

Lapital Managemeant

The pnmary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that the Group has sufficient
funde In order to support their business, pay existing obligations and maximize sharehalder value.
The Graup conskders advances from related parties as capital.

The Group's palicy 15 io malntaln sufficient capital to cover working capital requirements. The Group
obtains advances trom related parties to cover inadequacy in working capital.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group cansiders tha following accounts as capital:

2022 2021
Capital stock P832,831,688  P832,831,688
Agditional paid-in capital 3,602,050,960 3,602,050,960
Due to refated parties 162,317,898 154,989 542
Tatal capital P4 597,200,546 P4 589,872 190

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirement. Mo changes were made in the ohjectives,
palicies or processes for the years ended March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 and 2020.

. Fair Value Measurement

Set out below = a comparisan by categary of carrying values and estimated fair values of Group's
financial instruments as at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Going concem basis of acoounting



Falr walisa ahservabie

nputs

Fingnoty aesefs ar ampmed s
Lear a5, 991, k02 A, 991,602 46,991, 602
Teode and ather recevobes - net S83. 718,448 63,718,448 583,718,448
Exim from rebated partss - ret 2749 898 8N Zre B98 8731 279 898,831
Crie Brom & stk leciler 171187 015 171,187,015 171187 045
Refimdahle’ deposits - res 14,939,252 14,933,212 14,939,212
1,085,735,100 1,207,200,530 1,207,200,530
Finsnclal acsets at POOCT 44,107,600 49,107,500 48, 107,600
1,149 A2 Toa 1,256, 300,130 1, 3946, 308, 130
EELTW ol Lt o 617,077,638 PSI0, 280,560 PSI0, 289, 660
D o related parties 113, 357,632 153,580,134 153,580,134
Loana payasia 890,403,630 067,367,124 67,367,124
Lisgcn Exbil iy 609,632 609,531 G039, 63T
1,629 458,732 1,121,556,890 1,131,556 690

2021

Sigreant
Nores Carryng value Fair yaha absprdabin immrs

Py ket | ann ool st
Cash rAB Y16, 292 P48, 14, e P, 06, T3
Trads and abher ramsreables - net WEE O R #2023, 363 hax CEe,
Erim froven eofarted parfbes - rot £, 167,524 AT 167 524 276,167, 524
Cras Fram A sbnekhekler 251,083 378 251,082, 378 20 0AF TR
Rafundabls daposils - ret 5,611,442 9.51E.453 §,511,453
1L, 20T, 200,530 1,307,200, 530 L 28T, 200, 530
Finenclal amots &t FWOCL AT, 601,800 47,808, 400 A7, B0, 400
Pl 255,001,530 P1,335,001 530 A1,255.001,930
lﬁ;‘:““*’“ i e P52, 35,660 P, 269, 660 P52, 25,560
Cuie fo ralamed partios 153 280, 134 153, GHO 114 153, 5810, 134
Loans pavaie 967,357,124 Yo7, 367,124 QBT I67, 124
| v Evhiliy FFLES Al ELs B, G317
1,6 s, 550 Pl 41, B4R, S50 L EAT B 550

Methods and Assumptions Used to Estimate Fair Valus

The Management assessed that the following Anancial instruments approximate their carrying
amaunts based an the methods and assumptions used to estimate the f&ir values:

Cash In banks, frade and other recelvabies, refundable deposits, due ba/ffrom related parties
antd stockholders and trade and other peyables.

The carrying amounts of cash in banks, trade and other receivables, due toffrom related
parties and shtockholders, curment refundable deposits and trade and other payables
approximate their fzir values due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Thke fair value of noncurrent refundable deposits from long-term lease contracts |s the present
value of the discounted expectad future cash flows using the incremental borrowing rate,

Loans and bomowings
The carrying value of lgans and borrowings approximate their fair values as their interest
rates are hased on market rates for debt with the same maturity profiles at the end of the

reporting period,



Lease Nahilities

Tke fair values of lease payable are based on the present value of future cash flows discounted
using the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile as at the end of
thereporting period.

There has been no reclassifrication among the leveis of hierarchy during 2022 and 2021.

29.01 Falr Valua Detarminations of Asset

The following provides an analysis of assets that are measurad at fair value on a2 recurring
basis subsequent ta initlal recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degres to which inputs ta valuation techniques are abservable:

«  Level 1 fair value measurements are those dernved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for jdentical assets or liabiibes;

« Level 2 fair velue measurements are those derlved from inputs other than guoted prices
Included within Level 1 that are chservable for the asset or llability, elther directly (l.e.
as prices) or indirectly (.2, derived fram prices); and

s Level 3 far value measurements are those derived from valuation techmigues that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

259.00.01 Fair Value Higrarchy

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Level 3 2022 2021

Ascets:
Biclogical assets £94,328,410 P59 301,732
Property and equiprment 316,229,570 316,229,570
Investment property 1,220,900,340 1,1B88,425,936
P1,631,458,320 P1,563 857,238

25.01.02 Valuston Technigue used o Lerlve Leval 3 Falr Value

The following are the vaiuation techniques used to derive level 3 fair values of the froflowing
assels:

Aszpts:

Property and eguipment: In valuing the land Market Approach was used which is the
most comman technique for valuing land, and is the most preferred method when
comparahle sales are available. With this methad, sales of similar proparty or parcels of
land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the property
being appraisad. The comparison process (s based on an analysis of the similarity or
dissimilarity of the comparable. Cost Approach was used for the improvements while a
combination of the Market and Cost Approach was used for the machinery and
equipment. The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: (a) The value of
the subject land is normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison
Approach. In instances where available market data is sufficlent, the Income Appreach
(Residual Method} can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is
estimated by calculating the direct cost of reproducing or replacing the improvement,
deducting eccrued depreciation from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attributed
ta the improvement. Combining the estimates shown above results in the indicated value
of the subject property by the Cost Approach.




Biological assets: The fair value was derived using the market approach. Market approach
is @ valuation technigue that uses prices and other relevant information generated by matket
transactions Involving identical or comparable assets. Under market approach, the most
sigrificant ivput into this valuation is the fair value less estimated costs to sell inan active
miarket.

Investment proparties: The fair value was derived wusing the market approach.
Markat approach s a valuation technigue that uses prices and othar relavant information
generated by marker transactions  involving  identical or  comparable  assets,
Under market approach, the most significant input into this valuation is the price per square
fiaot.

Financial assets at FVOCI: The fair value of financal asset at FYTOCL could not be reliably
determined because it does not have quoted market price in an active market, thus, cost is
a8 good approximate of its fair value.

The Parent Cormpany has no financial instruments that are carried at FVPL.

20.02.03 Highest and Best Use

The Company's investment properties are currently held for capital apprecistion. However,
in both years, the Company assessed the bighest and best use of the investment properties
from the perspective of market participants. The investment properties in combinabtion with
other assets and labilities could be leased out to others to earn rental income. Management
beleves that the current use of the investment properties is the assel's highest and best use.

1.

Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling  Interests represents the equity In subsidiaries not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Group. The details of the account are as follows;

2022
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year income {loss) and of year
Fucang P1,179,042,278 38,056,923 P1,217,099,201
ANL HK 114,798,585 = 114,798,585
TBC (32,408,953) (154,728) (22,563,681)
FFCL {19,108,7293) {140,874) [19,249,603)
FI {2,944, 544) = (2,944,544)
FGP 1,883,298 (245) 1,883,053
Heppy (780,323) = (780,323)

#1,240,481,612 P37,761,076 P1,278,242,688




2021

Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year Income {loss) end of year
Fucang £/ 20,008,406 P452 433,672 £1,17%9,042,278
AMNT HE 114,798,585 = 114,798,585
TBRC {31,886,805) (522,148} (32,408,953}
FFCI {18,631,691) (477,038) (1%, 108,729}
FI (2,944 5Saa) = §2,944 544)
FGR 1,918,629 (35,331} 1,8H3 2498
Heppy [756,452) {13,861} (780,323)
789,096,138 R451,385,474 B1.240,481,612

F2

Business Combinatian

acoulsition of Lexian

A discussed in Mote 1, Fucang acquired Guangzrhou Lexian Froit Industry Co., bed. {Lexan), &
forzign entity Incorporated In China angaged in wholesale industry in 2018, Fucang owns F0%
equity intarest in Laxlan which Is equivatent to RME7QQ, 000 divided into 70,000 shares at RMB10.0
per share (equivalent to 827,160,000 divided into 70,000 shares). Laian is an indirect subsidiary of
Agrinurture, Inc. (the Parent Company ) owning 51% eguity inberest in Fucang.

The cost of investment is equivalent to Fucang's share in net assets of Lexian at the date of
incorporation.  As such, na goodwill or investment income was recogqnized fram the business
comblination,

=

Segment Information

The Group has identified 5 operating segments based on intemnal reports that are reviewed and
used by Lthe Chiel Executive Officer {the chief operating decision maker) in assessing performance
and in detarmining the allocation of respurces. The opersting segments |(dentified by the
management are a5 follows:

Exports

The Expart segment is in charge of looking for markets abroad as well as sourcing the best quality
produce possibie to satisfy [is growing number of chents abroad. [ts main export products are friesh
banana, fresh mango; and coco-water.

Distritirtion
The Distribution segment Is respensible for the local sates and distrbution of various produce that
the Group offers to @ number of supermarkets around Luzon.

Retail
The Retall segmant is responsible for the management and opeération of the Group's retail
businesses,

Far=ign Trading
The Foreign Trading segment is charge of the international distribution operations of the
Group In Hong Kong and China,

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according o the nature
af the products and services provided, with 2ach segment representing a sktrategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. In addition, the Group’s reportable
segments also indude geographical areas for local and foreign operations.Forelgn operations are
included under "Farsign Trading” and local operations are included under the remaining reportad
sEprments,



The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to
the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. In
addition, the Group's reportable segments also include geographical areas for local and
foreign operations. Foreign operations are included under “Foreign Trading” and local
operations are included under the remaining reported segments,

REVENUE
{Phiippine Peso) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Philippine Operations
Export P 280,894,319 P 438,823,565
Local Distrbution and Others 304,963,985 93,353,318
Retail B Franchising 7,436,671 6,350,485
Sub-total P 293,294,975 F 338 7 8
Foreign Operations
Hongkong/China 496,539,164 663,348,737

Total P 1,089 834,139 P 1,201,916,105




